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DIRECTORS AND CORPORATE INFORMATION EEREEER

Board of Directors

Executive Chairman

Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO
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DIRECTORS AND CORPORATE INFORMATION EER &£EE R

Share Registrar ROBEZETE
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited ERARREFEZZTLERAT
46/F., Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, EARAEBFEFRKER183 %
Wanchai, Hong Kong SMAN46 1

Investor Relations Contact REEBRES

Tel: (852) 2468 9644
Fax: (852)2465 1008
Email: ir@vitasoy.com

ET:E 1 (852) 2468 9644
fEH : (852) 2465 1008
E# . ir@vitasoy.com

KEY DATES EZ H Hf

Closure of Register of Members

EEnEROBRER
- Annual General Meeting
BRRBFEARE

- Proposed Final Dividend
BEAHKRE

30th August, 2016 (Tuesday) to 2nd September, 2016 (Friday)
—E-XRENA=1+H(EHD) ZEZZE—A"FNAZH (EHH)
8th September, 2016 (Thursday) to 13th September, 2016 (Tuesday)
“E-XERANH (EHN) ZEZF—-AFEAA+=H (EHI)

Annual General Meeting

BRRBFRE

at 3:00 p.m., 2nd September, 2016 (Friday)

Salons 1-3, Level 3, JW Marriott Hotel Hong Kong, Pacific Place, 88 Queensway, Hong Kong
R-F—-XRFHRA=-H (EHFR) NF=KILE

BEEESEENT N\ FEALTESEE IWEREE=EER1-3HESE

Final Dividend Payable
IREBERERE

26th September, 2016 (Monday)
—E-XFRAZ+<H (EH—)

HPEREEERAT -1/ -<FER 03



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS BB R =

Year Ended 31stMarch B Z=A=+—HILEE

2016 2015
—E-RE —E-RE %
. HK$ million HK$ million Change
Results ¥4 ERENT EMEET  EHLSD
Revenue WA 5,552 5,052 +10
Gross Profit EF 2,826 2,511 +13
EBITDA (Earnings Before Interest REFMEWA « BERA -
Income, Finance Costs, Income Tax, s - ITEREE
Depreciation and Amortisation) ERAAF ([EBITDAL) 812 725 +12
Profit Attributable to Equity EATBRERFEA
Shareholders of the Company SR 531 372 +43
Basic Earnings per Share (HK cents) BREXREF (FBAl) 50.9 35.9 +42
Total Dividends per BRTBERERE
Ordinary Share (HK cents) (F&4L) 30.3 24.4 +24
Year Ended 31stMarchBBEZ=A=+—HLLFEE HK$ million B¥ HE T
Revenue Yt A Gross Profit £F|
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Note: In order to comply with Revised Hong Kong Accounting Standard 19,
Employee benefits, that is effective for accounting period beginning
on 1st January, 2013, the Group adopted new accounting policies
for defined benefit plans. Figures for the years FY2011/2012 and
FY2012/2013 have been adjusted.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS Bt =

Asat 31stMarchiR=A=+—H

2016 2015

—E-RE —E-HEF %

. . L. \ s HK$ million HK$ million Change

Financial Position 81 #§ A 5% EWEEMT  BREET SRS

Total Assets BEE 4,185 3,637 +15
(Net Borrowing Balance)/ (BEEZFE) BRe3E

Net Cash Balance (77) 177 N/ATEHA

Total Equity Attributable to Equity ERATRBREFEEA
Shareholders of the Company FEih RS 2,200 1,919 +15

Year Ended 31st March, 2016 B ZE=F—A~"E=ZA=+—HLEE

Sales Analysis by Location

HEFESH (RHE)

Mainland China
43% AR A it

Singapore

Dk %
f 1 2/\ /

Australia and New Zealand

BN B 7 B 8%

AN

North America

b EM 10% /

Hong Kong Operation
(Hong Kong, Macau
and Exports)

e
\ 379 (&E - BMREO)

HPEREEERAT -1/ -<FER



CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ETREHwE

| am pleased to report that we have delivered yet another year of solid growth whilst improving
our profitability. The Vitasoy Group recorded growth of +10% in sales and +13% in gross profit,
thus not only growing stronger market share and building competitive positions in our core
markets but also expanding the impact of our mission: to provide our core portfolio of high quality
plant-based nutritious, tasty and sustainable products, to more and more communities we serve.

RARARES  RMARNAFEBEENSREER  BARXETARENED - EHNEEREERS

MNAEDBEF+10% R +13% WIBR  EAFERATSOEREROTSETFELEARF

N BRFARSEMOED  RESHBRABEUENRATARLEE  ZREUEHE
BRENEM -

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2015/16



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FE#H &

During the year, the Vitasoy Group achieved these results by
staying focused on our long-term business vision, strategic
choices and growth model based on diligence in Execution,
Expansion and Innovation. We have also significantly
strengthened our infrastructure and capability to sustain
results via investments in manufacturing (new Wuhan plant),
IT (new SAP system), organisational capability (enrolment
in Vitasoy Success Drivers program and hiring of talent) and
our sustainability strategy (new formulation of glide path and
Key Performance Indicators for the next 10 years). Whilst
the deteriorating economic environment has shown signs of
increased volatility, there is an accelerating trend for healthy
products and nutritious foods. We are determined to sustain
our expansion by focusing on our core and ever improve the
sustainability of our operations.

Strong results for FY2015/2016

Driven by strong execution, expansion and innovation, the
Group’s revenue increased +10% to HK$5,552 million.
Margin improvement was driven by favourable commodity
prices and improved manufacturing efficiency. The profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
(excluding recognition of deferred tax assets of certain
subsidiaries in Mainland China and North America and
transaction cost incurred during the year related to the
divestiture of the Mainstream Business and SAN SUI
Business in North America) grew by +24% to HK$460
million.

The Group maintained a healthy financial position at the end
of FY2015/2016 due to improved margin and better cost
control. The Board recommends a final dividend of HK26.5
cents per ordinary share at the Annual General Meeting on
2nd September, 2016. Together with the interim dividend
of HK3.8 cents per ordinary share, this brings total dividend
for FY2015/2016 to HK30.3 cents per ordinary share
(FY2014/2015 total dividend: HK24.4 cents per ordinary
share).

HUNEREEERAR —T-1/ - FER

R EUHEEEBZ DT - WEKAF -
ELAERREXEBES FHRUEBRERER
B BERRHFRE - RAREELEE (BYH
REME) - ERBERE (BRI 8 HISAP &R
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BAT) RAFEBRRE (BRRTFHEH
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F U2ERBHFSR EREERREERMT
SAMEERE - BMEEIRBEMOLOBBRIEL
FERR  XTHRSRMEBHTSEMY -

—E-h/CE-NUREEEE
pR K

EHNBT  BRERAFHFEH T KEEHK
A IN+10% Z # % 5,552,000,000 T - ZER
EMREREEREERRREA  BRREUR
E - ARAREFAARGER (Tt RERH
B RERNETHEQRANEERTEE -
RERE H S 2N ERER KK R EERE A
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T o
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FE#H &

Innovation in plant-based products

Our focus on creating new products not only satisfies our
consumer’s changing demand, but also helps maintain our
competitive position in all of the markets we operate in. In
FY2015/2016, we created a new soy product line, VITASOY
GO. It provides consumers with a convenient way to enjoy a
nutritious product.

We also enriched our soymilk range in Mainland China
with the new VITASOY HEALTH PLUS which contains high
protein, high calcium, low sugar and zero cholesterol. In
Australia, we expanded our portfolio by including VITASOY
Coconut Milk and Almond Milk to meet the upcoming trend
of plant-based beverages.

Focusing on building core businesses

In FY2015/2016, we invested in upgrading our
manufacturing and processing capabilities at our plants.
We also finished construction of our production facility in
Wuhan, Mainland China. The new Wuhan plant commenced
operations in the first quarter of FY2016/2017. The excellent
location of the Wuhan plant lowers transportation costs
and facilitates improved customer services that support
the increasing demand from Hubei province and the nearby
provinces in Central China.

During the year, the Board conducted a strategic review of
our North American operation and arrived at a strategic
decision to divest the Mainstream Business and SAN SUI
Business in North America. This will enable the Group to
sharpen its focus and accelerate the growth of its core
business in Hong Kong and Mainland China. The move
will also support further expansion of the Group into new
markets. In March 2016, we entered into an Asset Purchase
Agreement with Pulmuone Foods Group, a leading food
manufacturer in South Korea, for the disposal of certain
assets in our North American operation at an estimated
consideration of US$50 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$387.5 million). The transaction was completed in the
first quarter of FY2016/2017. It is expected to record an
estimated gain of approximately US$19.8 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$153.5 million) before relevant taxes.
We will reinvest the proceeds in projects which will enable
us to continue building a stable and sustainable plant-based
business.

BAE Y 75 725 09 27 22 o

KPS IRHER TEATREHEEAFA
ENER AT EBHEBREMETSHNREH
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FE#H &

Producing products sustainably

We aspire to build a portfolio of plant-based products
that are compatible with a healthy lifestyle and establish
strong relationships with the wider community. Plant-based
products will become more important in the role of feeding
the increasingly growing population in the coming decades.
Last year, we started to share our social and environmental
efforts in the first Vitasoy Sustainability Report 2014/2015.
In FY2015/2016, we further evolved and consolidated our
sustainability framework with a two-pronged approach
- “Making the Right Products and Making Products the
Right Way”. We have a specific and detailed account of our
sustainability approach, goals and glide path in the separate
report that accompanies this Annual Report.

Looking forward

In spite of growing economic uncertainties, | am confident in
the ever lasting impact of our strategy and execution. We are
determined to develop our growth model which will continue
to expand the Group’s successful presence but also generate
sustainable long-term returns for our shareholders. We are
confident that we will continue our growth trajectory with
our vision of promoting good quality of life and passion for
sustainable nutrition.

Notes of appreciation

Mr. Valiant Kin-piu Cheung, our Independent Non-executive
Director, will retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting and will not stand for re-election. Mr.
Cheung has brought a wealth of business and financial
experience and expertise to the Board and notably, the Audit
Committee, which he chaired during the past two years. He is
also a member of Remuneration and Nomination Committee.
I wish to thank Mr. Cheung for his insights and guidance to
the Board and Committees over the past six years.

| would like to extend my gratitude to the Board, the
management team and our staff for their enthusiasm,
commitment and diligence. My appreciation also goes to our
shareholders, customers, suppliers and business partners for
their ongoing trust and support.

Winston Yau-lai LO
Executive Chairman
23rd June, 2016
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GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT/
BUSINESS REVIEW
SETRAREE REERE

In FY2015/2016, the Vitasoy Group continued to deliver profitable growth driven by the

acceleration of its core business in spite of the challenges facing global and local economies. We

maintained our gradual top line acceleration to +13% in local currency, with top line growth in all
our markets in local currency.

REZB—H /“Z—-AMBFE BAOHRAZREAGEEOLE - EEBMREOES
BR SUNEEHEZRSEANER - UEHMERHE  RAKKHEEEIERE +13%
MAR TSI REHERER -

10 Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2015/16



— GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT/BUSINESS REVIEW £B{THAR IRE " 4EBOmE —

In Hong Kong dollars, the Group reported a very strong
revenue growth of +10% to HK$5,552 million. Mainland
China led the markets with +25% growth, despite some
deterioration of market conditions. Our consistent three-
pronged growth strategy of Execution, Expansion and
Innovation has driven these encouraging results. On the
profit side, we have been able to improve our profitability at
the same time.

Stronger gross profit margin was achieved due to improved
manufacturing efficiency as a result of higher volume and
non-recurring favourable commodity prices, as well as a
better sales mix and disciplined cost management. Net
profits grew ahead of the revenue. Profit attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company recorded a strong
+43% growth and reached HK$531 million, primarily due
to the increase in profits from operations, lower net finance
costs, and the recognition of deferred tax assets of certain
subsidiaries in Mainland China and North America. Excluding
the effect of recognition of deferred tax assets as mentioned
and the transaction cost related to the divestiture of the
Mainstream Business and SAN SUI Business in North
America, the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company would be HK$460 million, representing a growth
of 24% (FY2014/2015: HK$372 million).

In FY2015/2016, the Group has enhanced its capability
and optimised infrastructure to support sustainable
future growth. The Group completed the construction of
a brand new state-of-the-art production facility in Wuhan,
Mainland China, which started operating in the first quarter
of FY2016/2017. An internal IT system upgrade was
also completed in the Mainland China business with the
implementation of the SAP system which has enhanced
operational efficiency and transparency. The Group has
divested its assets in relation to the Mainstream Business
and SAN SUI Business in North America, by entering into
an agreement with Pulmuone Foods Group, a leading food
manufacturer in South Korea, thus only maintaining the
profitable imported beverage business there, and thereby
sharpening the Group’s strategic focus to its core Asian
markets.
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The Operating Environment

In 2015, amidst increasing competition, the beverage
industry faced a number of headwinds including slowing
global economic growth, softer consumer spending and
higher operating costs. The economies of Hong Kong,
Mainland China, Singapore and Australia, saw slower
domestic growth, which impacted on the consumer
confidence. Consumers were more cautious in their
spending and market players deployed more tactful pricing
actions. Retailers have intensified discounts and promotions
to attract customers, placing pressure on margin. The
depreciation of currency against the US dollar impacted the
results of some operations when converted back to the Hong
Kong dollar.

For Vitasoy, favourable commodity prices have had a positive
impact on gross margin. The Group continued to benefit
from the growing market demand for foods that are healthy,
promotes wellness, and are sustainably produced.
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Financial Highlights

The financial position of the Group remains healthy. Key
financial indicators, including revenue, gross profit margin
and return on capital employed, reflect the solid position of
the business. The following table presents the Group’s key
financial highlights for the years ended 31st March, 2016
and 31st March, 2015:

MBREE

TEENMBERTZARBERR - RPANEEHKIE
B HFEFERA -  EFENEXERESE 13
FRUMEBRNEERR TREIAEEHE=-=
—RNEFEZA=Z+—-HLEBE=-ZE—-—HF=H
S+-HLEEEZTERBHEE :

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—HLEE
2016 2015 Growth rate
—E—RE —E-I1fF BE%
Revenue (in HK$ million) WA (B¥EER) 5,552 5,052 +10%
Gross profit (in HK$ million) EF (B¥EHER) 2,826 2,511 +13%
Gross profit margin ER = 51% 50%  +1%pointEH %
EBITDA (Earnings before RETFIBWA -« BERKA - 812 725 +12%
interest income, FEH - MERBHEER
finance costs, income tax, AEF ([EBITDAY)
depreciation (B¥BEER)
and amortisation)
(in HK$ million)
EBITDA to revenue margin EBITDA LSS EFIEER 15% 14%  +1%point B 2
Profit attributable to equity ARATRERFE AES 531 372 +43%
shareholders of the Company %% GB¥EET)
(in HK$ million)
Profit attributable to equity ROBBREFEAER. 460 372 +24%
shareholders of the Company %R (1 Bl R it
(net of deferred tax assets of bt EMNZETFHBL T
certain subsidiaries in BRAELEHBEER
Mainland China and BEHEELENER
North America and ¥BRINKREEEZ
transaction cost related to REBA)(BEEFET)
the divestiture of the
Mainstream Business and
SAN SUI Business in
North America)
(in HK$ million)
Gearing ratio EE= 16% 8%  +8% points B2
Return on capital employed EAREHE 34% 35%  -1%point B2 %
Return on capital employed, EREHRE (NKREEH 35% 35%  Nochange B# &
net of transaction cost HELENERERE
related to the divestiture WKREEE 2R B RA)
of the Mainstream
Business and SAN SUI
Business in North America

Revenue

The Group’s revenue grew +10% to HK$5,552 million
(FY2014/2015: HK$5,052 million). Excluding the currency
exchange impact, total revenue grew +13% to HK$5,703
million. During the year, all operating entities increased sales
in terms of local currency, particularly in Mainland China,
which had an impressive sales growth of +29% in Renminbi.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The Group'’s gross profit for the year FY2015/2016 rose
by +13% to HK$2,826 million (FY2014/2015: HK$2,511
million), mainly driven by the sales growth and improvement
in gross profit margin.
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Gross profit margin further increased to 51% (FY2014/2015:
50%). This can be attributed to enhanced manufacturing
efficiency as a result of increased volume. It also reflected
favourable commodity prices, particularly for soya beans,
packaging materials and crude oil.

Operating Expenses

Total operating expenses increased by +11% to HK$2,254
million (FY2014/2015: HK$2,026 million), mainly owing
to increased investment in brands and promotional
programmes; higher staff costs and increased headcount,
particularly in Mainland China to support the operation
of the new Wuhan plant; and higher transportation and
warehousing costs associated with sales growth.

Marketing, selling and distribution expenses increased
by +11% to HK$1,497 million (FY2014/2015: HK$1,345
million), which was the result of several marketing campaigns
which reinforced our core brands and supported new
product launches. There were also increased expenses for
sales staff and sales commission costs, in line with volume
growth and sales team expansion, particularly in Mainland
China. Distribution and delivery costs in Mainland China also
rose with the increase in sales volume.

Administrative expenses increased by +14% to HK$468
million (FY2014/2015: HK$411 million), reflecting
inflationary adjustments on salary; rising headcount;
increased depreciation charges associated with capital
investment in recent years; and higher traveling and
recruitment expenses, linked to increased headcount.

Other operating expenses were at HK$289 million, versus
HK$270 million for the same period last year. These
expenses included the transaction cost of HK$16 million
incurred during the year, related to the divestiture of the
Mainstream Business and SAN SUI Business in North
America.

EBITDA

EBITDA for the year was HK$812 million (FY2014/2015:
HK$725 million), up by +12 %. The growth was mainly due to
higher gross profit, despite being partly offset by increased
marketing investment, higher operating costs for staff
expenses, sales commission, transportation and warehousing.
EBITDA to revenue margin for the year improved, increasing
to 15% (FY2014/2015: 14%).

EFNRE-—SLAZESIN(ZF -0 =F—
MRFE 50%) ABRAREEEMSEE
MBEURAMY - LT RREMEBERE D
ERAERKE - BRUBRFEMERE -

HEER
48 4T & B A N+11% F 38 % 2,254,000,000
T(=F— l/:g—ﬁﬂjﬁirﬁ:‘}%ﬂﬁ

2,026,000000T) ' TEHRREMBEREE
EBSERIEMN - ETAREN RERPEA
o REHBERREEARMAFEREIK
REFA MEEGRAERABEEHEERERM L
H o

MGHEE HERIEEBERAEMN+1I1%E B
1,497,000,000 % (=& — l/_i AR ERE
B %% 1,345,000,0007T) & 2 B AR &
BEEEREEFERFSIBNSEMSERERT
B BEEHEENIREESERNER LHEEF
BEAth  HEETHIREERASERATEM
A mMAPEAEEENTIRFERSHEHRE
B A LR -

1T E AN +14% & % % 468,000,000 T (=
22—/ —F-AHKREE : B% 411,000,000
7T) HRFEEREBRMELAE BT AH
B MEAEFEERREEBNITER X LA
RETABEMFASIENAKKRER BERMX L
}|— °

Hih &= 8 HAE% 289,000,000 75T © = F6H

Al & #E ¥ 270,000,000t - ZEEREBERFR
EHELEEMNERERERINKREEBLTEEN
R 5 KA %% 16,000,000 TT °

KRl FERA - BELX - FTE8 - TE
R#EgEHpI&ZF ([EBITDA])

F A KMEBITDA{} #18 #& %# 812,000,000 T (=

BN,/ —E-HPREE : % 725,000,000
7)) EA+12% EEHRERNE M EmE
HEREEN EERY  HEAS EakE
ERASKEERNER  EETHoERRIE
18 RFEEEBITDALHEEF BREMKE @ 15
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Profit Before Taxation

With further reduction in net finance costs, prudent cash
flow management and moderate growth in depreciation and
amortisation charges, profit before taxation improved by
+14% to HK$599 million (FY2014/2015: HK$524 million).
Excluding the transaction cost related to the divestiture of
the Mainstream Business and SAN SUI Business in North
America, the profit before taxation from normal operation
would have been HK$615 million, representing a growth of
+17% compared to the previous year.

Taxation

Income tax charge for the year was HK$34 million
(FY2014/2015: HK$115 million) with an effective tax rate
of 6% (FY2014/2015: 22%). The decrease was due to the
recognition of deferred tax assets of certain subsidiaries in
Mainland China and North America, amounting to HK$87
million. The effective tax rate, excluding the recognition of
these deferred tax assets as mentioned, would have been
20%.

Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the
Company

With the improvement in operating profit, lower net finance
costs, non-controlling interest charges and lower income
tax charges, profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company was HK$531 million, representing an increase of
+43% (FY2014/2015: HK$372 million). Profit attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company excluding the
recognition of deferred tax assets of certain subsidiaries in
Mainland China and North America and transaction cost
related to the divestiture of the Mainstream Business and
SAN SUI Business in North America was HK$460 million,
representing a growth of +24% (FY2014/2015: HK$372
million).

Financial Position

We finance our operations and capital expenditure primarily
through internally generated cash flows as well as banking
facilities provided by our principal bankers. As of 31st March,
2016, our cash and bank deposits amounted to HK$273
million (31st March, 2015: HK$335 million). 14% and 69% of
our cash and bank deposits were denominated in HKD and
RMB respectively (31st March, 2015: 17% and 64%). As of
31st March, 2016, the Group had a net borrowing balance
of HK$77 million (31st March, 2015: net cash balance of
HK$177 million) and available banking facilities amounted
to HK$1,036 million (31st March, 2015: HK$877 million) to
finance future cash flow needs.
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The Group’s borrowings (including obligations under
finance lease) amounted to HK$350 million (31st March,
2015: HK$158 million). The borrowings comprised HKD
denominated borrowings for HK$295 million, AUD
denominated borrowings for HK$40 million, and RMB
denominated borrowings for HK$15 million. Fixed rate
borrowings amounted to HK$ 150 million with an effective
interest rate of 2.06% and 7.50% for bank loans and
obligations under finance lease respectively.

The gearing ratio (total borrowings/total equity attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company) reached 16%
(FY2014/2015: 8%). The Group has begun to take on bank
borrowings progressively to fund various capital projects for
capacity expansion and the upgrade of existing facilities.

The Group’s return on capital employed (ROCE) (EBITDA/
average non-current debt and equity) for the year was 34%
(FY2014/2015: 35%). Excluding the transaction cost related
to the divestiture of the Mainstream Business and SAN
SUI Business in North America, the revised ROCE would
have been 35%. The steady ROCE reflects the Group’s
commitment to employing its capital efficiently, thereby
generating greater value for shareholders.

Capital expenditure incurred during the year increased to
HK$714 million (FY2014/2015: HK$530 million). This was
spent on the construction and acquisition of machinery for
the new Wuhan plant; the expansion of production capacity;
installation of high speed lines and addition of packaging
lines in the Foshan plant in Mainland China; the upgrade of
existing production machinery in Hong Kong, Shenzhen and
Shanghai; and the upgrading of production and waste water
treatment equipment in the North American operation.

Assets with a carrying value of HK$71 million (31st March,
2015: HK$76 million) were pledged under certain loans and
lease arrangements.

Financial Risk Management

The Group’s overall financial management policy focuses
on controlling and managing risk, with transactions being
directly related to the underlying businesses of the Group.
For synergy, efficiency and control, the Group operates a
central cash treasury management system for all subsidiaries.
Borrowings are normally taken out in local currencies by
the operating subsidiaries to fund and partially hedge their
investments.

The financial risks faced by the Group were mainly linked
to uncertainties in interest rate movements. At the close
of FY2015/2016, the Group entered into foreign exchange
contracts to act as economic hedge against foreign currency
fluctuations for the receipt of royalty income in Australian
dollar from its Australian operation. As at 31st March, 2016,
there was an unrealised exchange loss of HK$2.2 million
exchange differences arising from these forward contracts
charged to the income statement.
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Sustainability Report 2.0

In Vitasoy’s Sustainability Report for FY2014/2015, the
Group shared its progress in four key areas: Workplace
Quality, Operating Practices, Environmental Protection and
Community Involvement. In FY2015/2016, the Group has
further evolved its Sustainability vision and framework to
better integrate it with its business. The Sustainability Report
2.0 elaborates on how the newly evolved framework with
a two-fold approach will take the Group through its future
sustainability journey, giving details on key performance
indicators and goals. The Sustainability Report 2.0 will be
delivered to shareholders together with this Annual Report
as a separate report.

Potential Risk and Uncertainties

During the year, the Group Internal Audit Department
has implemented a phased improvement plan to further
enhance the Group’s internal controls and risk management
systems. The improvement plan aims to embed a risk
management system in its day-to-day operations. During
the risk management process, six clusters of potential risks
were identified: reputation, strategy, market, liquidity,
credit and operation. Following analysis of these potential
risks, appropriate controls were established to mitigate risk
occurrence, and a new risk management framework was
developed.

The new framework will be rolled-out at the Group
Management functions and Company-level in Hong Kong
during FY2016/2017. Details of the new risk management
process were covered in the Risk Management section of the
Corporate Governance Report in this Annual Report.
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Review of Operations
Mainland China

Sustained strong sales and profit growth whilst
enhancing capability and infrastructure for the future

E S AR
Gl Tk

HERBFERIFERET) - FIF1EH EEEE
D RER L &R R

2016 2015
—F-R"E¥ -T-IF

2016 2015 % Change Group Contributions %
ZE-RE CZE-HF JFIHEH HESEERESEL

Revenue from REMEEEZWA

external customers (B¥BEER)

(HK$ million) 2,404 1,916 +25 43 38
Profit from operations Fed iyl

(HK$ million) (B¥EHET) 281 199 +41 37 31
Revenue from REMEEFZWA

external customers (AR¥®EER)

(RMB million) 1,978 1,532 +29
Profit from operations Fed iyl

(RMB million) (AR¥EBET) 232 159 +46

The overall economic growth in Mainland China continued
to slow down in 2015 and the competition in the beverage
industry remained keen.

Vitasoy China continued to strengthen the fundamentals of
our VITASOY Classic Soymilk products whilst also innovating
new products. In particular, we enriched our soymilk range
with the new VITASOY HEALTH PLUS. It is a high-end
soymilk drink that is a good source of nutrients with high
protein, high calcium, low sugar and zero cholesterol.

Meanwhile Vitasoy China continued to execute the “Go
Deep Go Wide” strategy and drive sales growth in Southern,
Central and Eastern China. It also enhanced its capability
with a stronger sales and distribution infrastructure.

In FY2015/2016, Vitasoy China completed the construction
of its new Wuhan production facility. The new plant
commenced production in the first quarter of FY2016/2017
and will support the Group’s development in Central China.

During the fiscal year, Vitasoy China also upgraded its
infrastructure and introduced a state-of-the-art SAP system
to enhance operating efficiency, synergies and collaboration.
The SAP system will help reinforce Vitasoy China team’s
capabilities in sales and marketing as well as supply chain
management from planning to execution.

With favourable raw material prices and enhanced
manufacturing efficiency due to higher sales volume, Vitasoy
China recorded a remarkable improvement in gross profit
margin. This contributed to improved operating profit
performance.

The average of 3% depreciation in Renminbi during the year
has negatively impacted our results when reported in Hong
Kong dollar.
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Hong Kong Operation (Hong Kong, Macau and
Exports)

Solid profit growth with strong execution and
innovation

BBEN (B8 RBFIR4O)

B AHBITRIER BIFTE i - KRR BFE R

2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-R"E C—E-1F% —E-RFE —B-1fF
HK$ million  HK$ million % Change Group Contributions %
EABEET BY¥EERT BEIHEH HEREEKESLE
Revenue from REMEEFZBRA
external customers 2,070 2,049 +1 37 41
Profit from operations ERF 380 355 +7 50 55

In 2015, the retail sector showed a drastic year-on-year
decline due to a significant drop in Mainland Chinese visitors
and the inflation eased for the fourth consecutive year.

Vitasoy Hong Kong results out-performed the industrial
average through disciplined execution and its focus on core
business and innovation.

In the Soy category, a new product range was launched under
the brand name VITASOY GO. It provides consumers with a
convenient way to enjoy a nutritious product.

The VITA Tea range remained the dominant leader in
the overall ready-to-drink tea category. VITA Yuan Yang
and VITA Milk Tea (stronger tea taste) were launched in
FY2015/2016 as new products to complement the VITA
Hong Kong Style range.

Vitaland Services Limited faced challenges in the tuck shop
business, mainly due to the drop in school numbers and
fewer school days. Meanwhile, Hong Kong Gourmet Limited
performed well with high lunch meal retention rate and
improved efficiency.

The Macau business recorded a moderate (+1.8%) sales
growth, primarily owing to the weak economy and drop in
number of tourists.

The Export business was negatively impacted by the
strengthening of US dollar. However, business growth was
recorded in some overseas markets, such as Australia and
Papua New Guinea.

While sales only improved by +1%, profit from operations
increased by a significant +7%, mainly due to the improved
gross profit generated from increased manufacturing
efficiency and favourable commodity costs of raw materials.
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Australia and New Zealand

Modest growth with strong market position

MR #r 7 B
BREA S EE

2016 2015
—E-RE —T-IHF
2016 2015 % Change Group Contributions %
ZE-RE CZE-If FHIHEH HEEEERESL
Revenue from REMEEEZWA
external customers (B¥EHETR)
(HK$ million) 420 479 -12 8 9
Profit from operation BERF
(HK$ million) (B¥EHETT) 84 - 11 13
Revenue from REMEEEZBA
external customers (ATHETRT)
(AUD million) 73.6 71.3 +3
Profit from operation KRR
(AUD million) (RxEHER) 14.8 12.6 +17

In 2015, the Australian economy remained in growth at
+2.5%; however, deflation affected manufacturers in the
food and beverage industry.

The plant milk category continued to show healthy growth,
driven by the segments of Almond Milk and Coconut Milk.
Meanwhile, the Soy, Rice and Oat segments declined due to a
consumption shift.

Vitasoy Australia grew ahead of the market average in terms
of value and volume, increasing its market leading share in
the plant milk segment.

Throughout the year, Vitasoy Australia continued to support
its plant milk portfolio with a new campaign that highlighted
its Australian-grown soy products.

In addition, Vitasoy Australia expanded into the Almond Milk
segment with two variants - Original and Unsweetened. The
new product launch was supported by a strong national TVC
campaign and sampling activities.

Improved manufacturing efficiency and prudent cost control
enabled Vitasoy Australia to improve margin and accelerate
profit growth during FY2015/2016.

Yearly results reported in terms of Hong Kong dollar were
adversely impacted by the weakened Australian dollar, which
depreciated an average of 15% compared with last fiscal
year.

R-ZZB-HF BNKSEERF25%8 R R
- BECERRRREREFNRE -

ZERBCORBFNER  BEVNNHRERER
f2itR - BRULER > AREERARE K= -
RKRRFEERBEHEERE T FE -

HOPENEHEEREESTEYELTSE TS
KF o WERAEENDRENTSEENE -

BHENEFEAELRTH —WREEED - BH
BNALBENAREER  BURREBHEY
DmBEEMARY -

b SN At 75 BN DU UK K S A B DMK E R
EAZMETS  EUXEZEMEREEUR
ERARITHEMRSHERMNED -

REZB—FH /- UHREE AREERR
BUMERBFEESAAR SR NNBER R
B BRI MEER -

F IR 55 A9 T B L MR B B B P39 B2 AE 15%
RUEBWTENFERE -
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Singapore

Expanded market share with accelerated trade
activation

%
BIMES ZE » A TS5

2016 2015
—E-RE —E2-1%F
2016 2015 % Change Group Contributions %
ZEB-RE CZEZE-FF @FouEH HEEEERESL
Revenue from REMEEFZWA
external customers (B¥BEET)
(HK$ million) 106 86 +23 2 2
Profit from operation e ER
(HK$ million) (B¥EER) 8 +38 2 1
Revenue from REMEEFZWA
external customers (HrTEET)
(SGD million) 18.9 14.4 +31
Profit from operation T RA
(SGD million) CETEER) 2.0 1.4 +43

Singapore’s gross domestic product (GDP) grew by +2%, the
weakest growth reported in the last five years. As consumers
were more cautious about their spending, retailers launched
more price discounts and promotions in an effort to generate
volume.

Against a backdrop of price-conscious consumption
sentiment, Vitasoy Singapore recorded a modest top line
growth (+1%) in tofu sales, in terms of local currency.

The overall business grew +23% (+31% in local currency),
including the business of imported beverage. In
FY2015/2016, Vitasoy Singapore began to handle the
imported VITASOY beverage business in order to better
execute it in the market. As we have launched VITASOY
Premium Tofu in last fiscal year, we integrated the beverage
business with the tofu one.

During the year, we continued to invest in marketing
activities with dedicated channel promotions and consumer
sampling activities. We maintained our No.1 market share
position in the tofu category.

The new premium tofu range under the brand name of
VITASOY was well-received. The VITASOY Premium Organic
Tofu complements the UNICURD brand, and provides
consumers with a more sophisticated portfolio to choose
from. It has helped fortify the brand equity of the imported
VITASOY beverages.

HUNEREEERAR —T-1/ - FER

FIENBEAEEREBELA 2% BRBEAF&H
EHIEE HRETHEENER TEFRE
BEE - DOENTNRERE -

EHEEZEERNAST  BHOFIENE
BHERSSRENER +1% (LEHEWTE) -

BEXBER+23% (UEHEBHER +31%)
HbhBEEORREK - R-2—FH ="FB-—X
P BOEF B A 0 B D0 3R B 4R AR G 2 O i ft BB B
e SUEARBITERER - L —MRFEE
HTHMRSHEE Rt tpomEn =
BERmEBBUGE -

FR - BMABERENHEREEERETAR
EHETSEREERE  YNERREEERED
BE— 2 AR -

HEPEEN TSR ERRVRAZ HEEER
#W-UNICURDREEEMAMMIPBS HEHKE
B BHEBEEERUHZELINERASEE
E—SEEREOMHMPARANREEE -
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The export tofu business registered a strong performance
(+16% in terms of local currency), with sales growth in key
markets in Europe and Asia. Significant drivers were Silken
Tofu, Pressed Tofu and Tau Kwa.

The healthy sales growth together with stringent
management control in expenses has led to a stronger
growth in profit from the operations.

The impact of depreciation of the Singapore dollar against
the US dollar was offset by some favourable raw material
prices in the fiscal year. Yearly results have been negatively
impacted by a weakened Singapore dollar, which depreciated
an average of 7% over the course of the year.

HOEREBRRAEEER (UWEBERFIESR
+16%) RBMEFTEMSNHEEIRMER -
WEER HREBRETHATENHEERE

—_
oA °

RENHEEER  MEBKREZRAX  9FHR
ERNEYER

RAEFHRFE  RAAXTRENTERETH
M EH BHEA RN - W2 FFHPRET% -
BARBTEUBTTENFERER
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North America

Completion of strategic review and divestiture of
Mainstream Business and SAN SUI Business

AEEM

TR MR T I M B F R 2 R LUK 7 1E
£ 3

2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-RE C—EZ-IF ZE-RE C—T-HF
HK$ million  HK$ million % Change Group Contributions %
B¥EET BY¥EER BoLEH HEREERESE
Revenue from REMEEEZBA
external customers 552 522 +6 10 10
Profit from operation T RR (33) (1) NATER - -

During the year, the Group carried out a strategic review
of its North American business to identify a structural
improvement in profitability. After a thorough study, it was
concluded that the divestiture of its Mainstream Business
and SAN SUI Business in North America would enable
the Group to focus on accelerating the growth of its core
business, and support further expansion into other markets.

As announced by the Company on 24th March, 2016, the
Group entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement with
Pulmuone Foods Group, a leading food manufacturer in
South Korea, to sell certain assets of the North American
business that related to the Mainstream Business and
SAN SUI Business in North America. Vitasoy USA will
continue to operate its Asian imported beverage business
in North America after the transaction. The consideration
of the assets concerned is US$50 million, subject to the
net working capital adjustment. The Group is expected to
record an estimated gain of approximately US$19.8 million
(before relevant taxes) in FY2016/2017. The proceeds will
be invested back into the development of the Group’s core
operating markets.

In FY2015/2016, the total combined Vitasoy USA net sales
in North America recorded a modest year-on-year growth,
with a strong performance in its total Tofu sales (+7%).

Vitasoy USA outperformed the category in terms of dollar
sales, which was led by a strong double digit growth in
NASOYA Tofu Baked. As a result, it continued to grow its
share and maintained the leading share in Mainstream
Channel Tofu market.

The imported beverage business continued its dominant
market position in Asian Channel, but recorded a slight sales
decline in the year owing to a change of distributors and
hiccups in product supply.

Higher manufacturing cost and the cost associated with
the divestiture of assets related to Mainstream Business
and SAN SUI Business in North America have negatively
impacted the profitability of the operation, resulting in a net
operating loss for the full year of FY2015/2016. Excluding
the divestiture transaction cost, the loss from Vitasoy USA
would be HK$17 million.

HUNEREEERAR —T-1/ - FER

FR - AEEBE A RMERETRBEREY - LR
ERLNEERRNED KE2EBIE REHE
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General Outlook

It is anticipated that the business environment in
FY2016/2017 will be similar to that of FY2015/2016 with
potentially even softer economic and retail sentiment in our
operating markets. Looking forward, we shall keep a laser-
sharp attention to productivity, efficiency and cost control.
We stay focused on building our fundamentals, strengthening
our competitive position and our core offerings with Taste,
Nutrition and Sustainability. We shall pursue growth and
expansion through Execution, Expansion and Innovation.
Each of the geographical markets will continue to launch and
execute brand new innovation on the core business in the
coming year. Given the uncertain economic environment, it
will also continue to improve manufacturing efficiency and
product mix, upgrade infrastructure, and carefully manage
operating costs, in order to deliver a profitable growth.

Mainland China

Vitasoy China will continue its “Go Deep Go Wide” strategy.
The new Wuhan plant, which is located in Central China,
will further support Vitasoy China’s business growth in the
market.

The business will further grow VITASQOY platform with the
new VITASOY HEALTH PLUS. It will continue to innovate in
its product offerings to meet different consumer needs.

Vitasoy China will continue to enhance its operating
efficiency and capabilities. The new manufacturing plant
in Wuhan will support expansion, whilst the advanced SAP
system will help create synergies among operations and
enhance operational and financial management standards.

Hong Kong Operation (Hong Kong, Macau and
Exports)

Vitasoy Hong Kong will further strengthen its leading market
position through product and marketing innovation in its
core categories.

In FY2016/2017, the Group will innovate in its core Soy
range. In recent months, we have launched the new VITASOY
Black Soymilk and a new variant of VITASOY GO “Dark
Chocolate Waffle” Drink, as well as revamped the packaging
of CALCI-PLUS Soymilk.

Vitasoy Hong Kong will further strengthen its Hong Kong
Style range with the newly launched VITA Coffee.

While the challenges of high wages and shortage of labour
supply persist, Vitasoy Hong Kong continues to enhance its
automaton and operational efficiency to overcome these
difficulties.

HERE

-2/ “E-tUWBRFENEHRRS
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Australia and New Zealand

The plant milk market is expected to grow beyond soy-based
drinks as consumers become more health conscious and look
for functional attributes of plant milk.

Nutrition and taste remain the key drivers of VITASOY
product portfolio. Vitasoy Australia will continue to invest
behind its full portfolio with the recent launches into the
segments of Coconut Milk and Almond Milk.

Singapore

Vitasoy Singapore will drive sales growth through store
excellence and by scaling up VITASOY brand equity.

While labour recruitment is a concern, Vitasoy Singapore will
continue to explore different means to improve operational
efficiency and profitability.

North America

After the divestiture of its Mainstream Business and SAN
SUI Business in North America, Vitasoy USA will focus on
driving sales growth of its imported beverage business in
Asian Channel.

Conclusion

In FY2015/2016, the core business has been accelerating the
Group’s growth on both the top line and bottom line. Growth
was broad across all core geographies. Looking forward,
we will continue to implement our strategy and business
model to deliver our vision to expand Taste, Nutrition and
Sustainability to the communities we serve.

Our ability to deliver these encouraging results attests to
our continuous focus on product quality, market leading
innovation, and excellent customer and consumer dedication
by all of our teams. We would like to thank all of our
colleagues for their energy and efforts in contributing to
another year of progress for the Group. We also wish to
thank our Executive Chairman and our Board of Directors
for their valuable guidance and ongoing support.

Roberto Guidetti
Group Chief Executive Officer
23rd June, 2016
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AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS Z&F Rk k&

Major Awards of Vitasoy International Holdings Limited BHEBREEERATR-_E—HEFENAE—A
from 1st April, 2015 to the Date of this Annual Report ERFRAPIFAEFTERIF

Corporate

T 3

“CAPITAL ECO Enterprise 2015” by CAPITAL Magazines.
(ERMERS) - FHIR e ¥ K 2015] -

Green Office Label under “Green Office Awards Labelling _——

Scheme (GOALS)”, and the United Nations Millennium Gp,:-.| 1 JG'@IWH ]
Development Goals (UNMDG) - “Better World Company Label” OFffice 1 APICET
by World Green Organisation (WGO) and Junior Chamber b )

International (JCI) North District, Hong Kong.

Bt R CESRERLESFHERR [RERLERBHE | RBRBSETERREFERRBOLE | FFE -

“Metro Awards for Eco-Business 2015” by Metro Daily and Metro Prosperity.
CERT B3R R (EmERE) - [HHERRDIER2015] -

HE I o I “The HKIoD Symbol of Credit in Director CPD” awarded by The Hong Kong Institute of Directors.

157 ol E 0% z00s . o
Direclor CPIx EEAESRERR [EZRAERESRIERR] -

“Consumer Caring Scheme 5 years” 2016 awarded by GS1 Hong Kong. - /b
EEBAERFEHHEER 2016FEMOLERFE] -

S T T

The “10 years Plus Caring Company” Logo from Hong Kong Council of Social Services.

:

ML s e RSB RS [ 10 4 Plus 75 R BDIE | 122 -

“Outstanding Corporate Communications and External Relations Award” in “Quamnet Outstanding
Enterprise Awards 2015” organised by Quamnet.

EEVRER [EEURBHOERR 2015 PERECEERRHIEHRE] - ﬂ

“Century Food Brand Awards” from Hong Kong Food Council.

| f BESAREAGNR BFARGE] -

n
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Vitaland Services Limited and Hong Kong Gourmet Limited

HURBBREERAARERERERLT

HHRBBRBEERAARETBXIRERAPDVERE [ EKTEBEREFE ] N[ REBHER
AR o

Vitaland Services Limited and Hong Kong Gourmet Limited were awarded “Green I.- n‘
Partner Appreciation Certificate” in the “Green Monday Carnival”. 9 eg

Human Resources

ADER

X

“Manpower Developer” awarded by the Employees Retraining Board.

EREBBIRENRIAATRE]-

Hong Kong
BE

The Champion in Team Relay (Business Associates) Men’s Section of “Walk Up
Jardine House” organised by Jardine Group.

RENEEERNBRED (BEL LRE| FESHXBHB FATSE -

Mainland China
FR Bl A it

Shenzhen Vitasoy (Guang Ming) Foods and Beverage Co., Limited was recognised as an
“Outstanding EcoPartner” in the “BOCHK Corporate Environmental Leadership Award” .
organized by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries and Bank of China Hong Kong.

RN L) RRABNARAAEETEIXAERTREBERN [TREBLERR bt & &
BAKRE2015] PRE [REHEHBH] - .
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B Vitasoy (Foshan) Company Limited was recognised as an “Outstanding EcoPartner” in the
C BOCHK Corporate Environmental Leadership Award organised by the Federation of Hong
- Kong Industries and Bank of China Hong Kong.

=Hﬁl.
e BB (L) ERAREEBIXLERTFEFTBERN [ FEFBLERRELKE]|H
- R TREEHBAE] -

Vitasoy (Foshan) Company Limited was nominated by the Food and Drug Administration of Nanhai District, as one of
the “demonstration units for food safety in Foshan area in 2015".

M (Bl BRAARBLE SERMEMEEEERTEA 2015 EERRRELEETREEN |2 — -

Vitasoy (Shanghai) Company Limited was recognised by the Office for Social Security Management Committee of
Songjiang District as a “safety demonstration unit in 2015 in Shanghai city”.

B (L) ERAFE LT IEBHEARRGREAEREEN AETA 2015 FELBH PR REEN] -

Vitasoy (Shanghai) Company Limited was recognised by Zhongshan Office of Songjiang District in Shanghai as an
“Outstanding Foreign Enterprise” in Songjiang District, and awarded the “Outstanding Contribution Award”, “Best
Value Award”, and “Outstanding Progress Award” in 2015.

iy (L) BRAGELESTMIERLHETR 2015 FN IR ILEEEBENELE| YRS HEE
RREE | [REMFR | R [HBRIEDSE] -

Vitasoy (Shanghai) Company Limited was recognised by the Songjiang District People’s Government in Shanghai as an
“Advanced Manufacturing Enterprises” and one of the “top 15 Foreign Enterprises” in Songjiang District, and received
the “Economic Contribution Award” in 2015.

#apyy (L) BRARELSTINIBARBFFR 201 FINIEB [ EERECE |IRIMELETTR I Z2—
WHEREEBERE] -

Singapore

¥ i3

VITASOY was endorsed as “Tasty Singapore Brand Ambassador” by International Enterprise Singapore (IE Singapore).
MR AR RN B RR B [ ERF I BB RAE

“Food Safety Awards” by Agri-Food & Veterinary Authority of Singapore (AVA).
EBFINEEEXERRRIVNZEZR/(AVA)BR [ RYZEE |-

VITASOY was voted by readers of Singapore Women’'s Weekly as the best soy drink and gained the
“Domestic Diva Award”.

CHFMPRLET) ERMNEERZZLHHEMPAREARZT KRR - B [Domestic Diva
g Award ] °
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Brand
A hE

VITASOY - Hong Kong # b4} - & &

“2014-15 Yahoo! Emotive Brand Award - Food & Beverage Category” by YAHOO! Hong Kong.
EREEBEIE2014-15 Yahoo! BiEmE A% - AR R ERER ] -

- s

:"‘a. One of the “Top 10 Favourite Brands” in the “Wellcome 16th Favourite Brand Awards 2015” by Wellcome
Supermarket.

EEEBRTEERZ (REF 16 EBTREBE2015 | hERR [ TABTEE] 2— -

“Touch Brands Award” by East Touch Magazine.
& (R Touch) ¥3E M8 % [ Touch M ERE] -

Brand (Milk Category)” in Park’N Shop Super Brands Awards by Park’N Shop.
it _,'E__.

.

e HEEBRTEEIRZ [ BEEREARE|FEER T ABEEmE] [Z88TmE|R

x k * One of the “Top Ten Excellence Brands”, “Super Supermarket Brand” as well as “Star Supermarket

- - [ERET@mE (I8 -
b s 1

The “Markies Award 2016 - Best Idea Consumer Engagement Award” by MARKETING Magazine.
¥ (MARKETING) #7582 [ Markies #2016 - REFRIZHEESHE ] -

VITA - Hong Kong #fth - & /&

* One of the “Top Ten Excellence Brands”, “Super Family Brand”, and “Star Supermarket Brand
(Ready-to-drink Tea Category)” in “Park’N Shop Super Brands Awards” by Park’N Shop.

EEHEBRATSEIN  BEAFERRAE PEER [t ABERB] 22— [EEXREMm
IR TERED@E (DERRERR) -
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CALCI-PLUS - Hong Kong 858 & - &%

“Outstanding Category Performance Award - Drinks” in the “Wellcome 16th Favourite Brand A
Awards 2015” by Wellcome Supermarket. }

HEEBRATEERZ [EEFI6EBTREBE 2015 | PR HERER -m]-

VLT - Hong Kong #fI1EE R - &&

1 One of the “Top 10 Favourite Brands” in the “Wellcome 16th Favourite Brand Awards 2015” by Wellcome
) Supermarket.

| EEEBATSEMZEEFI6EEHRMBEE 2015 hERA [T RETEE ]2 — -

“Touch Brands Award” by East Touch Magazine.
¥ (R Touch) ¥ E [ Touch mpEHRIE ] -

VITA Chrysanthemum Tea - Hong Kong #5572 3% - & &

One of the “Top 10 Favourite Brands” in the “Wellcome 16th Favourite Brand Awards 2015” by Wellcome
Supermarket.

L EEEBATSEMNZ [ EEFI6EETRMBEE 2015 hEER [t RETEE ] Z2— -

-y

VITA HK Style Milk Tea - Hong Kong #é ;B =L 2% - &8

“Best Idea of Launch - Silver Award” and “Best Idea of Customer Acquisition - Bronze
Award” in the “Markies Award 2015” by MARKETING Magazine.

£ {MARKETING) M2 1 [ Markies 882015 | P [ R{E M€ - R | R [ &
EHe-FFERE - R -

“TVB Most Popular TV Commercial Awards 2015 - Most Popular TV Commercial” by Television Broadcasts
Limited.

BEAREARATER (2015 TVBAZRNERRE AR - BEROBRES | -
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“Hong Kong Effie Awards 2015 - Alcoholic Beverages/Non-alcoholic Beverages Category (Bronze)”
by The Association of Accredited Advertising Agencies of Hong Kong (HK4As).

REBBSHE MW Z[2015EFFIE EERBAR | hREBEERM FEERmERE] -

“Excellence in Launch / Relaunch Marketing (Silver)” and “Excellence in Advertising (Silver)” in “Marketing
Excellence Awards 2015” by MARKETING Magazine.

B (MARKETING) M2 MN [RETBHER 2015 PE [REERRH EHBMEH(RE)I R
[RERS (RE)] -

“Touch Brands Award” by East Touch Magazine.
& (R Touch) ¥ E [ Touch mpEHRE ] -

VITA HK Style Yuan Yang - Hong Kong #fl /8L E & - & &

'r “Rising Star” in the “Wellcome 16th Favourite Brand Awards 2015” by Wellcome Supermarket.

EEEBRTEERZ [BEF 16 EBTRBBEE 2015 | pEER [RABI@E] -

32 Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2015/16






CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT ¥ &AW E

Vitasoy International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
firmly committed to a high level of corporate governance
and adherence to the governance principles and practices
emphasising transparency, independence, accountability,
responsibility and fairness. These principles and practices
are reviewed and revised regularly as appropriate to reflect
the ever changing regulatory requirements and corporate
governance development. The Board of Directors (the
“Board”) believes that the high standards of corporate
governance is the essential core for sustaining Vitasoy
Group’s long term performance and value creation for
our shareholders, the investing public and the other
stakeholders.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company has, throughout the year ended 31st March,
2016, complied with the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”).

Board of Directors

The general management of the Company’s business is
vested in the Board. The Board has established various
committees to manage and oversee the specified affairs
of the Company. The Board has delegated the day-to-
day management power of the Company to the Executive
Directors and Senior Management of the Company. However,
full delegation is not allowed for some specific matters under
the Companies Ordinance, the Listing Rules, the CG Code
or other regulatory requirements, and the final decisions on
those specific matters are required to be taken by the whole
board. A defined schedule of matters reserved for Board
decisions has been adopted by the Board as follows:

Corporate Governance
Practices and Significant
Financial Transactions
TEERER

REAPBRS

Approval of Financial

BMPEREREEERAT ([AAF]) BFEK
FHEXESR  YRANBFIEAENAE  BY
- BE SERAFZERRARESR - £ 2
AEHEEERERIREIZSERARER -
UM ESNEERERCREARRE - &
EEHE SEENCEERBSAMNEESR
RERE URAETRRE  ARREERHAEMRE
NEREEBEMNS DA UTHRNBERTE -

TEERER

EARRBE-ZT-—ARFE=ZA=Z+—-HLEE
—HEETEBBAXZMARQAABZLTHR
A (TEmARA]) s+ Az REERTA
([eEERFA]) 2RI -

BT

EXTS8TLANAXEBEREET YEK
VARZEZEEREERERAQAARKEHRR 2
BB EEERERQAZHTESERSEEE
ABEEEEQARABESE - Am - 27K
EHRA - EEEATFALHMBRERZRRE
BB ESEIAATZEEZTMARST - UAH
PRESSHEHEFLHBRRE - ESECEK
gg?ﬂﬂﬁ2$lﬁﬁ SIRAFEESHELRE
Ig

e Code and policies of Corporate Governance Practices
\ SRARATAREE

e Material business merger, acquisition and divestiture

BEARBEH  WBRHE

e Significant investment and joint venture formation
FERERBIGERE ‘

¢ Notifiable and connected transactions
AFDHREERS

e Provision of significant guarantee or indemnity

REUBABRRIBERE

Long-term Strategic
Plan and Annual

Reports Budget
HEEM R E REZERERER
Matters reserved FEREH
for the Board Decisions
BAFEEEHED
REZBE . .
Appointment and Appointment of Director
Removal of External and Company Secretary,
Auditor and e(x)pptr_ovallj;:)f Share
ion Plans
EERRRINBE FEEEEAAWE
A 44 B AR AT Y
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The Board strives to achieve high standards of corporate
governance practices as well as the Company’s mission to
creating value for our shareholders. The Board is responsible
for developing the strategic directions for the Company and
continuous monitoring of the performance of the general
management of the Company. Strategic planning is one of
the Board’s important functions for aligning mission and
vision and a lot of focus and attention have been devoted to
such a plan. Strategic planning horizons are generally three
years. The Board has adopted its latest Three Year Strategic
Plan for the fiscal years up to 2018/2019 in September 2015.
The Board takes a proactive role in reviewing and updating
the Strategic Plans periodically in response to changes in the
macro economic and business environment.

The Board plays a leading role for risk oversight in shaping
the Company’s risk appetite and ensure a proper risk
management framework is in place. Recognising the
increasing challenges for the Board in risk oversight,
Management has engaged an independent consultant to
identify the risk management objectives and develop a
structured risk management framework to manage risks. The
Board has formally adopted the Company’s risk management
framework in January 2016.

Board Composition

ESERIERERENCXERERARAETR
RARBRRALEEEZESD  -ESSEHEHELX
DNAZKBMLTE  IRFFERRQATEREE
R REXBCHARESSEBREHNESN
EERE AMESEEFREIERFIRRER
B RREB-—REBE=F -ESEER=-F
—EFNARMBE=—S -\ “E-AMEF
BB =—FRRRE ESSRERBER
REBBREzHE  BEEHRSREFBRE
BS o

ESehERRER-—RIREFREER  KRTRE
VAARzBEBEG  FEREESEYEEZERR
EEER EEESRIESENARERLE
AV RRE  HEEE - EBEBER
EREEEERFIEERGAAMEDTEREE &
METEBRER EEGCR-_FT-"F-ALE
ARAEQF zEBEERE -

EEEAX

Board of Directors

EEE

- ¥7

¢ 8 8

- ¥7

4 A 4 A

Mr. Winston Dr.theHon.Sir Mr.JanP.S. Mr. Valiant Mr. Anthony Ms. Myrna Ms. Yvonne Mr. Roberto
Yau-lai LO David Kwok- ERLUND Kin-piu John Liddell Mo-ching LO Mo-ling LO GUIDETTI
BREEE poll JanP.S. CHEUNG NIGHTINGALE @EEaZt BERLL FElERELE

FEHEBLT ERLUNDSEE REESLE REEEE

Executive Independent Independent Independent Independent ~ Non-executive Non-executive Executive
Chairman Non-executive Non-executive Non-executive Non-executive Director Director Director and
BITEE Director Director Director Director HHITEE HFHITEE Group Chief

B B B B Executive

HITEE PITEE HITESE HITEE Officer
HITEEEEE
1TBC 48 2

The category, position and brief biographical information of
each Director, together with the relationship amongst each
other, are set out in the “Directors and Senior Management”
section in this Annual Report. In addition, a list containing
the names of the Directors and their roles and functions is
published on the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and the Company at
www.vitasoy.com. Directors, including the Independent
Non-executive Directors and Non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient
and effective delivery of the Board functions.

HUNEREEERAR —T-1/ - FER

ZREEMEZER BUREEUARBILE 2R
RBIRAELEREERSEEEAR] & -
o BIESHERBEEZAGRBEZIIR
EHERERBERZFERAE ([HRA])
A& A 7 2 48 3 www.vitasoy.com - EE (B¥E
BYHTESRIPITES) YREEZNE
EvEBES  IBREXT HESFEU
AR ERETHRES -
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Analysis of Directors’ skills, knowledge and experience

EEsRRE  AMBRERIN
| | General management
EREE

B Financial, accounting and audit

B - EF RER

B Llegal
EE
B Food Technology
BRBH
| | Banking
BT
* Three out of five are/were directors of both
local and overseas listed companies
AREZET  —ZKESER GERRAR
WRBHETARREES
The Independent Non-executive Directors represent half of BIHTEESHEEGABZ-22— ES
the Board which far exceeds the Listing Rules requirement RETRABE=SZ2—HER -

for one-third.

Board Composition

EEEAM

Four Independent
Non-executive
Directors (INED)
NE B
FHITES

Two Executive
Directors (ED)
MEPTES

Two Non-executive
Directors (NED)
MEFEHITES

*INED: at least one-third of the Board
BUFHTES  ZVEESEARZ=IZ—

The Company has received, from each of the Independent ARRCRERBYFHTESRELTRAIZE
Non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his BIBBEHREESN 2B IUMBHCBFRIAE - K
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The ARARABRBELIHTESHRABIAL -
Company considers all of the Independent Non-executive

Directors are independent.
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Board Diversity

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy to set out
the objectives and the factors to be considered for achieving
the diversity of the Board in June 2013. The Board Diversity
Policy has been published on the Company’s website.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. Board appointment has been, and will continue
to be, made based on merit as well as complementing and
expanding the skills, knowledge and experience of the Board
as a whole, taking into account experience, professional
qualification, cultural, age, gender and any other factors
that the Board might consider relevant. The Remuneration
and Nomination Committee has established the measurable
objectives for achieving age and gender diversity for the year
of 2019/2020 during the year of 2013/2014. As at the year
ended 31st March, 2016, progress in achieving the objectives
are:

Gender

Female representation during the year of 2015/2016 was
25%, which has been progressing to attain the target of
“more than 25%” set for the year of 2019/2020.

(According to the Stock Exchange’s 2012 statistics, women hold
10.3% of the total directorships on Hong Kong listed issuers’
boards. On average, a large-cap or small-cap issuer’s board has
0.93 women.)

Age

Average age of the board members during the year of
2015/2016 was 70, average age will be reduced to attain
the target with the appointment of younger directors over
the years.

ESEHRESZ T

ETER 2= ARMNESFRES TL
BE BEFHIESEHNESTILNENURE
BERNEEREZ - EFTERESZ TLBED
HIBRAQ B -

AARRABDEEERESZ Tt 2% > IRAET
WREEECRELCR -BEE2ZIBAREY
RBEERIRRBAZTESRNE - EE5@ X - A
EESS2ERBoHE  ABRKCRAER  YEE
BREAZBALRE ZHEERK - XEES - F
B HEIREMEMCESSRAEEEZEE - #F
MRiEEEERER-E—=/_"ZF—NFER
FEAR=-Z—h S-S EEERFERRYE
AZTNTHEERE REBEE-F—<E=8
=+—HLEFER ERZEEHEZEENT

1 5

R-B—FH/ - "FE  ZHRAREZ
25% EESBR_-_E—Hh, —EBE-_ZEE
[BR25%] 2B & -

(REBXII—E——F2#181E ZMHEEEL
TERITANEESHANEZ103% - FHME &5
ABREPERBEITAZEEESHE093ELME )

Fik

R-Z—8 /22— EE EEEREN
FHERB70% - BEOLFREZEEFEN
EEMAESEE PHFREETREARK
SFQ

Designation
m INED
BUKHTES

m NED
FPITES

H ED
HITES

Gender

1 51

B Male

B Female

HUNEREEERAR —T-1/ - FER

Ethnicity
Eik
B Chinese
E=H
B Non-Chinese
FEH
Age Group
FiRE R
B 71-805%
B 61-705%
B 51-605%
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The Company has arranged Directors’ and Officers’ Liability AAFEMR—ZB—HETA—HEZZE—XRFh
Insurance for the Directors and Officers of the Company for B=+THLHEAXRAREERITHRABREE
the period from 1st October, 2015 to 30th September, 2016. ERTHAESETRE -

Changes in Directors’ information during the year ended RBE-ZE—ARXF=A=+—HLFERBEX
31st March, 2016 and up to the date of this Annual Report FHROMLEZES2ERNBBHIWOT ¢

are set out below:

Appointment of Independent Non-executive Director BIUFHTEE2ZRME

Mr. Anthony John Liddell NIGHTINGALE REESHE

e was appointed as an Independent Non-executive o RBZEEBARTBILIHITESE .
Director of the Company;

e  was appointed a member of the Audit Committee of o EZEAARQTEXRZEERKE R
the Company; and

e was appointed a member of the Remuneration and e EZFEFAAXLTNTMRIEBZEER
Nomination Committee of the Company. 8-

Changes in Major Appointments and Other Directorships FEZFERHMEERK 22

Dr. the Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI FEHES

e ceased to be a director of Armada Holdings Limited e HMIEHERBERAT (AIBEERERE
(formerly known as SCMP Group Limited). EERAT) EE -

Mr. Valiant Kin-piu CHEUNG REREE

e ceased to be a director of Bank of East Asia (China) o BHMEREMRIT (PE) BRAREE -
Limited.

Mr. Anthony John Liddell NIGHTINGALE REEEE

e ceased to be a director of China Xintiandi Limited:; o BIEFEHAGERQARAESE ., K
and

e was appointed as a director of Shui On Land Limited. e EBEIARTEHEARLATREE-

Changes in Directors’ Fees EEHEEH

There was a 8% increase in basic directors’ fees for fiscal R-IB-FH /2 UREEZEXAEEH

year of 2015/2016. 2EmM8% -
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Executive Chairman and Group Chief
Executive Officer

The roles of the Executive Chairman and Group Chief
Executive Officer of the Company have been clearly defined.
Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO serves as the Executive Chairman
and is responsible for providing leadership in the Board to
set strategies to achieve the Group’s goals. With the support
from the Group Chief Executive Officer and the Company
Secretary, the Executive Chairman seeks to ensure that
all Directors are properly informed of issues arising at
Board meetings and provided with adequate and accurate
information in a timely manner. The Executive Chairman
promotes a culture of openness and encourages Directors
to make a full and active contribution to the Board’s affairs
so as to contribute to the Board’s functions and encourages
Directors with different views to voice their opinions. The
Board, under the leadership of Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO,
has adopted a formal corporate governance policy, with
adherence to various best practices and procedures. We
have also established various communication platforms to
maintain an on-going dialogue with our shareholders and the
other stakeholders so as to allow them to engage actively
with the Company.

Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI, the Group Chief Executive Officer
is responsible for the overall strategic planning, business
development and general management of all the Group’s
operations. The Group Chief Executive Officer is primarily
accountable for keeping the Board apprised of the Company’s
business and financial performance, position and prospects
by providing Directors with a monthly management update.

Board Proceedings

The Board met five times in fiscal year of 2015/2016 to
discuss and approve the overall business strategies; to
review and monitor the financial and operating performance
of the Group and its business units respectively; and to
consider and approve the strategic plan, annual budget, the
financial reports and corporate governance related policies
and practices for the Group.

Z2-1/ 2R MBEE

Major Board Decisions in

HITEREREBITHRAR

ERAZHTERREETRRAB 2ABREER
BED BERXRELEREIHCTIE SHEFREES
SFRERBUZEREAKREZER - EEETHRA
BRAFAMEH L ATEESBRERZEES
HEESBRASEESEER L REZSER I
EREBRHZHAREREN - BITEFIREM
BB SBREEZAREBHSHRESS
B HESSCREFELHER BRIBEF
TERBrEESRERR ESEHERRBLLE
ZEEBT  CEHEMERXNCEXELRRE BT
SHBEERARERF RMATERIZEBER
B ARRREMBHESERSER  E4N
BEREBEAQNTER -

SETHRAREESAEAERALKREEK
BRELARER XBBRRAFEE - KRETH
MEBEITERENESSRUSATEERSEE
o BEBETEAQRAZERRUBRE - R
MEATR °

ESERER

EEER T4 /—T-AMERFEALRS
R i mR i EREERRRE ) B RERR
KEREEBREV MBEREERR  YEBR
ERFEECBRREE  FEEE  MEBRSK
EERERHBBERRESR -

June September November  January March
2015 2015 2015 2016 2016
—2-5f ZE-1fF “E-1F ZB-RE ZE-RE

FY2015/2016 ZEEEEGRE ~A hAR +-A -A =R
Approved Annual Results HEFEEE o
Approved Interim Results HAERHEE .
Approved Appointment of HEZEBIFATES .

Independent Non-executive Director
Approved Strategic Plan HAER R .
Approved Budget #ERE .
Approved Risk Management Framework HERRERER .
Approved Material Transaction HEEARS o .
Reviewed Operation Performance BUEERR . . . . .

HUNEREEERAR —T-1/ - FER
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All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information in relation to the Company. There are
established procedures for Directors to seek independent
professional advice for them to discharge their duties and
responsibilities, where appropriate, at the Company’s
expenses.

During the year, Directors have made active participation
in the Board meetings, Board Committees meetings and the
Annual General Meeting.

Board Committees

The Board has established a Remuneration and Nomination
Committee, an Audit Committee and an Executive
Committee with specific terms of reference.

Board of
Directors

EEE

Remuneration and

Nomination Committee
FHRIEEZSE
(all Non-executive Directors, a
majority of which are Independent
Non-executive Directors)

(REBERHBITESE » EFAHY

Audit Committee
ERZEE
(all Independnet Non-

executive Directors)

(2B BB HBTEE)

HERBUHHITEE)

BRESYN2EMEREESEREQRZRE
MEER - ARRACHARERFRESRETH
BEREMR (HEE) MEANBIEXER  ER
HARRA

TR ESYRBIHEEETSEE EFEET
ERRRRBFAE -

EEZEE

ESERTORUFNRESESE BREE
ERUFEEE  SEBEBEGE -

Executive Committee
BITESE

(Executive Directors and
Group Senior Directors)

(BITEEREEGRELE)
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HHRIEEZERE

Remuneration and Nomination Committee

Current Members

BRRR

Dr. the Hon. Sir

David Kwok-po LI

(Chairman)

FEHERL

Mr. Jan P S.
ERLUND
Jan P S. ERLUND
SEE

Mr. Valiant Kin-piu
CHEUNG
REFEILE

Mr. Anthony
John Liddell

NIGHTINGALE
REBSLE

Ms. Myrna
Mo-ching LO
ERELT

Ms. Yvonne
Mo-ling LO
ERELL

()

Terms of reference of the Remuneration and Nomination
Committee are published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. The Remuneration and
Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient resources,
including the advice of independent professional firms, if
necessary, to discharge its duties.

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee is mainly
responsible to consider and approve the remuneration
packages of Executive Directors and Senior Management of
the Group, including salaries, benefits in kind and bonuses;
bonus schemes and other long-term incentive schemes,
including share option and other plans. The Remuneration
and Nomination Committee also reviews the structure, size,
composition and diversity (including the skills, knowledge,
experience, gender and age) of the Board; Directors’ time
commitment; policies in relation to nomination of Directors
and Board diversity. The Committee would identify and
determine the measurable objective/s for achieving board
diversity and monitor any progress made in achieving such
measurable objective/s. The Committee also recommends
to the Board on appointment or reappointment of and
succession planning for Directors and Group Chief Executive
Officer.

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee met three
times in fiscal year of 2015/2016. Each member’s attendance
record during the year is shown on page 46 of this Annual
Report.

HUNEREEERAR —T-1/ - FER

PR RREZEECHESECTISRBR R
KRR ZP@Y - TR REZESRRHRERE
R BREBUEXRQAFAZER (MFEE) - UETT
HEE-

PR REEEEIEREENIREUTES
REEEBEAEBZHFHNERNGKSE  @FEHE &
MA@ RIA ; RATERAMRAERME
BEEREREMTE FHRREEZEESETS
RMNESEZRE AR ARKRKEZ T
(BfERKRE - A& &8 HARFR) ESH
FHZ2EE FRESRERESERES L
ZHER ZESKBANEETERESTERES
TG EERERERERZSUEERZ
EE ZEETHMESREBTRARZZER
BREREETEOESSRIESR -

FARRERERZEEN -2 -8 - AHHEE
ERAEBEE=ZR - ERERFRAEFEEEZ 2L
HNRAFRFEL46H -
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EERARA-B—H —S- A BREERE

Summary of work done during and for the fiscal year of

2015/2016 2 IEEEE

Reviewed, discussed and approved the remuneration
package of Senior Management including the
Executive Directors and key executives of the Group
by reference to the individuals’ job responsibilities
and performances, industry benchmarks and
prevailing market conditions;

Approved the discretionary bonuses and the grant
of share options, having given due consideration
to both the Group’s financial performance and
the individuals’ performances during the year
in accordance with the performance-based
compensation policy recommended by an
independent consultant;

Reviewed the re-election of three Independent
Non-executive Directors and confirmed that the
long tenure of services of two Independent Non-
executive Directors who have served the Company
for more than nine years will not affect their exercise
of independent judgment and will continue fulfilling
the roles of Independent Non-executive Directors;

Reviewed and recommended to the Board for
approval the letters of appointment of three
Independent Non-executive Directors;

Reviewed the structure, size and composition
(including the mix of skills, knowledge, professional
qualification and experience of the Directors) of the
Board;

Reviewed and updated the Board Succession Plan
and its Road Map;

Reviewed the measurable objectives for achieving
Board diversity;

Reviewed Directors’ time commitment to perform
his/her duties;

Assessed and confirmed the independence of all
Independent Non-executive Directors; and

Made recommendation to the Board for Directors’
Fees for fiscal year of 2015/2016.

B ARkt ESEEEAS (8
RAEEHTESRTETHRAE)
ZHEBRGEYSE  EPFESEM/EIA
TBERKRE  BEKERRTH
BIRE

REBYEREEZS  URRABEEZ
FMHER  EXNZERARE UK
RERTBATFRZBARRE
HEBRBPBIRARREERE

BEHN=fBUFITES2ERERRE
AMERAABRBEBNF 2B
HRVTESHRIBBSFISHER
EEEBY A TREEITENLF
BTEEZRE

EHRERESERHAE=EB I
TESZZER

BMNESE2RE  ABRAR (8
BEEERATRAZEE  A#H - &
RERRER)

EMNEFESSHITEREKRKE
B’m

EHNEREES S TILtWAHER
Z;

EHMEEETERBREMGTHZER |
FEYEREEB I TEECS
ISR

REBER-_Z—H —F-—APHBF
EzHEOESSRHEES -
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FREEE

Current Members

BRRR

Mr. Valiant Kin-piu

CHEUNG (Chairman)
REBESLLE ()

Dr. the Hon. Sir
David Kwok-po LI
FEERL

Mr. Jan P S.
ERLUND

Jan P.S. ERLUND

Mr. Anthony John Liddell
NIGHTINGALE
REBEE

The Audit and Corporate Governance Committee was
renamed as “Audit Committee” on 27th January, 2016 with
increased scope of risk management and internal control
duties set out in new C.2 of the CG Code which took effect
from 1st January, 2016. The Board has delegated the risk
management responsibilities to the Audit Committee to
oversee and review the adequacy and effectiveness of
relevant financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management procedures that have been in place.
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee were also
amended to ensure compliance with the new provisions in
the CG Code, in particular for the risk management role.

Terms of reference of the Audit Committee are published
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources,
including the advice of independent professional firms, if
necessary, to discharge its duties.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the External Auditors and
their audit fees; meeting with the External Auditors to
discuss the nature and scope of the audit; reviewing the
interim financial report and annual financial statements
before they are submitted to the Board; discussing problems
and reservations arising from the interim review and final
audit, and any other matters the External Auditors may wish
to discuss, and reviewing the External Auditors’ management
letter and management’s response; reviewing the internal
audit programs and to ensure co-ordination between the
Internal and External Auditors, assessing the effectiveness
of the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems which cover all material financial, operational and
compliance controls, and ensuring that the internal audit
function is adequately resourced and has appropriate
standing within the Group; conducting an annual review of
the adequacy of staffing of the financial reporting functions;
reviewing arrangements the employees of the Company
can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about the possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or
other matters; ensuring proper arrangements are in place
for fair and independent investigation of those matters
and for appropriate follow up action; and acting as the key
representative body for overseeing the Company’s relations
with the External Auditors.

HUNEREEERAR —T-1/ - FER

SEE

ERREXERZEEN-_B-—A"F-A=-tt
AEXEBAERZES ] YRAHREH=
E-R"F-A-BRBERNEXERTFAHC2
RETE > FERREENABEEZREHEE - &
EEREELZESRREESEUERR R
BANERUY LERGREERAREER
FREARAREBN BERZESNBEHESC
B BREFEERERTRNIFMEI - L
HERBEENRE -

EREEECHESECTERBRXIRALT
ZHY -  BREEERRURTEER  BEBY
EXQAzER (MFE) UETHERE -

ERZESTERENMERHMZEME - EF
ZERER  URKEZRBMHEESETEQE
EERMER . RIBRBMAENWELIE
ZMEREE . TRXTESSN  FRDHY
BRERZFUHERER  SwmERPHERARF
FERBRMBRBACAERSHZRERER R
EMEMIPELHARNRZER - ARFBH
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EH AR E B AL BEARABFTEARIEEE
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BALRAEETERBERL FHMBHRE - A
ERFHMSERE IR EETRIZHBEERE
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The Board discharges the corporate governance
responsibilities through delegation to the Audit Committee
the responsibilities of developing and reviewing the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance
and making recommendations to the Board; reviewing
and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and Senior Management;
reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; developing, reviewing and monitoring the
code of conduct and compliance manual applicable to
Directors and employees; and reviewing the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

The Audit Committee met three times in fiscal year of
2015/2016. Each member’s attendance record during the
year is shown on page 46 of this Annual Report.

Summary of work done during and for the fiscal year of

2015/2016

EXE2EBEREBEREZEEETEEERAZR
B SRAIERRNAQARZEXERRRRE
B UYHOESERHER BERARERESER
BEEBEASZEIIRGESXRRE  RIRE
EANREBTEEREERAETAZBRES
BHE BARERERARESREEZTR
JARERFM UARBNAATAHEXERLRT
AzBFERRECEERRENZKE -

BEREEEN -1 "B PERFERH
FE=X ZHERFALFEER ZTHREARE
FHEL46H °

EFERARR-B-5 "B MEFEME
Z TR

° Reviewed the 2015/2016 interim financial report
and annual financial statements with management
and External Auditors, and recommended their
adoption by the Board;

° Reviewed with the Internal Auditor the Company’s
internal control systems and the periodic audit
reports prepared by the Internal Auditor and
approved the 2015/2016 audit plan;

° Reviewed the Risk Appetite, Risk Management Policy
and the amendments to the Terms of Reference and
made recommendations to the Board;

° Met with the External Auditors to discuss the nature
and scope of the audit and reporting obligations prior
to the commencement of the audit work;

° Reviewed and considered the terms of engagement
of the External Auditors;

° Reviewed and approved/preapproved the audit
and non-audit services provided by the External
Auditors, together with their respective fees;

° Reviewed External Auditors’ management letter and
management’s response;

e  Reviewed the continuing connected transactions;
e  Reviewed the internal audit reports covering the

evaluation of risk management and internal control
systems of the Company;

e EEEEERNIEZEMEBHN_-Z
—fH/ ZE-ANFEZHHBBERE
REEUBBRR YEBEES T
R4

o EHEANBFARNADT ZAIMEE
AERBEHABETNENRREF
ARG UME—FT—H —B-X
FEZERAR

o RINEBEBRAZEHN BREEBER

BESE B TRESS/EHE

E

o MNEBEZXIIERBKA - B INE X B ER BT
ENRBER I N EREBURE
WEE

o FEHRZEIIEZEN 2 TREK

o EMIHMAE FALEAENEZBER
BHeERRABERRBEZTEBK
g,

o ZHMNMEXEENZ2ERBRHBARYE
FEEBEZEE ;

o ENBEBEXRS:

o EMEREALFAAREERAIMEE
RB a2 RERES RS
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Summary of work done during and for the fiscal year of

i/ —E-AUBFEERME

2015/2016

° Reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of the staff of the Group's accounting,
financial reporting and internal audit functions, and
their training programs and budget; effectiveness of
the Group’s internal audit function and compliance
with the CG Code;

° Reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and Senior Management;

° Reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

° Reviewed the code of conduct and compliance
manual applicable to employees and Directors;

° Reviewed the status of compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report;
and

° Held private sessions with External Auditors in
the absence of Executive Directors and Senior
Management.

FEBERSE - MBEHRKR A
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The Board has a Whistleblowing Policy to provide employees
with a more consistent reporting channel and guidance to
report any serious misconduct or malpractice internally.
The Audit Committee has been delegated with the overall
responsibility for monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness
of the Whistleblowing Policy. During the year, no incident of
serious fraud or misconduct was reported from employees
that had a material effect on the Company’s financial position
and overall operations.

The Board has adopted a Corporate Governance Policy to
provide a basic framework for developing the Company’s
policies and practices to ensure alignment of interests and
expectations from our shareholders, the investing public and
other stakeholders. The Corporate Governance Policy has
been published on the Company’s website.

The Audit Committee regularly reviews the corporate

governance structure and practices within the Company and
monitors compliance fulfillment on an ongoing basis.
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Executive Committee

BITEEE

Current Members

BERR

Mr. Roberto GUIDETT]
(Executive Director and Group
Chief Executive Officer)
(BITEELEETHAEE)

Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO
(Executive Chairman)

(BT ERE)

The Executive Committee operates as a general management
committee under the direct authority of the Board to deal
with certain operational matters of the Group.

Attendance records of the Directors at the Board Meetings,
Remuneration and Nomination Committee Meetings, Audit
Committee Meetings and Annual General Meeting during
the fiscal year of 2015/2016 are as follows:

Ms. Rosemary Pik-ling LI
(Group Senior Director,
Human Resources)

Bzt
(EEEHRELE N HEIF)

Mr. Chris Kin-shing LAU
(Group Chief Finance Officer)

BRI EE
(REEEHIBEAE)

HITEESNR-REEZESENF  HERE
Exg SEREAKREETEESHE -

R-Z-H /-2 PRFE SESRES
EER FHRREEZEESER BEXREEEE
BURRRBFAEZHELTHERIIMT :

Meetings Attended/ Held
HEXE GEAR
Remuneration
and Annual Overall
Nomination Audit General Attendance
Board Committee Committee Meeting Rate
MR
Name i3] EXE REZAT FUEAY BREFEAE EREHEE
Independent Non-executive Directors BikBTESR
Dr. the Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI ZEEEL 4/5 3/30 2/3 171 83%
Mr.JanP.S.ERLUND JanP.S.ERLUND %4 5/5 3/3 3/3 171 100%
Mr. Valiant Kin-piu CHEUNG REELE 5/5 3/3 3/30 11 100%
Mr. Anthony John PERELE
Liddell NIGHTINGALE (R=B-REXAZTAREZRM)
(appointed on 26th June, 2015) 4/4 2/2 2/2 11 100%
Non-executive Directors FUTES
Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO ERaat 5/5 2/3 NATER 111 89%
Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO ERRLT 4/5 33 NATER 111 89%
Executive Directors BiTES
Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO BREXE
(Executive Chairman) (H772E) 5/56 3/3e 3/3¢ 1/19 100%
Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI BESEE
(Group Chief Executive Officer) (EETRER) 5/5 2/29 3/3¢ 11 100%
Average Attendance of the Board Members EXgRATUHRS 95%
Group Chief Financial Officer SHERHMBEEE
Ms. Kitty Kit-yi FUNG B2Ext
(resigned on 1st April, 2016) (R=B-AEMA-AEHE) 5/5¢ N/ATER 3/3¢ 119 NATER
Group Internal Audit Director SERBEHEE
Mr. Terence Chiu-kit CHOW BRfEEE NATER NATER 3/3¢ NARER N/ATER
External Auditors 1 ]
KPMG ESRSHASRM NATER NATER 3/3¢ 119 NATER
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Notes:

(@)  Chairman of the Board

(b)  Chairman of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee
(¢)  Chairman of the Audit Committee

(d)  Chairman of the Annual General Meeting

(e) Attendance by invitation

The Company acknowledges the Annual General Meeting is
one of the important forums to engage our shareholders. In
the 2015 Annual General Meeting, all Directors, including
Executive Chairman, the Chairman of the Board Committees
and the External Auditors attended the meeting and
answered shareholders’ questions.

During the year under review, the Executive Chairman also
met with the Non-executive Directors without the presence
of Executive Directors and Senior Management.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

The appointment of a new Director is made on the
recommendation by the Remuneration and Nomination
Committee of the Company or by shareholders in a general
meeting. Shareholders may propose a candidate for election
as Director in accordance with the Articles of Association
of the Company and the Director Nomination Policy. The
nomination procedures by shareholders are published on the
website of the Company. Any Director who is appointed by
the Board shall retire at the next General Meeting.

Subject to the re-election requirement of the Company’s
Articles of Association, all the Non-executive (including
Independent Non-executive) Directors of the Company
are appointed for a specific term of not more than three
years under their letters of appointment. Pursuant to the
Company’s current Articles of Association, all Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation at least every three years
and one-third (or the number nearest to but not exceeding
one-third) of Directors shall retire from office every year at
the Company’s Annual General Meeting.

Induction and Continuous Professional
Development

Induction programs are arranged for the newly appointed
Directors on the general business of the Company. On
appointment, new Directors will also be given an induction
program kit advising them of their responsibilities and duties
as Directors under various regulatory requirements and the
Board procedures, including the Terms of Reference of the
Board Committees. Directors are provided with “A Guide
on Directors’ Duties” issued by the Companies Registry and
“Guidelines for Directors” issued by Hong Kong Institute of
Directors as guidelines on the general principles of duties of
directors.
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An induction program had been organised for Mr. Anthony
John Liddell NIGHTINGALE, the newly appointed
Independent Non-executive Director, in the headquarter
office of the Company. During the induction session, Mr.
Nightingale took part in a plant tour and met with the
Executive Directors and Senior Management and has been
acquainted with the vision, strategic direction, business
and operation of the Company. The Company Secretary
has provided to Mr. Nightingale an induction program kit
immediately subsequent to his directorship appointment.
The induction program kit mainly covers the Company’s
corporate governance framework, policies and guidelines
and the current year’s meeting schedule and annual agenda.

The Company also arranges continuous professional
development program to Directors at the expense of the
Company. The Company Secretary regularly provides to
Directors information about the enrollment of external
training courses and seminars as well as legal alerts and
articles which are relevant for Directors to keep up-to-date
on any legislative, regulatory and corporate governance
requirements and with professional practices in a dynamic
business world. The program would help refresh Directors’
knowledge and skills in relation to their performance of the
roles, functions and duties of directors of a listed company.

During the year, the Company Secretary has organised an
annual in-house training program for Directors in September
2015, covering the topics for risk management and internal
control and shareholder activism.

ARARERNEEZBUFHTESRERLE
RBXRARFREFNE - RBEFNEL - B
RETESBRELRATESERSEBEEAR
BH *MEEREAQAZESR - KRG - #HK
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EREMATY - AHESFEZERIEL
EEREXERREUAREHXAIANEXRE
%  ARRERMESRMNANENERREE -
BT LT RARAESHEREENASG  BEREE
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In March 2016, the Company has organised a plant and
market visit for Directors in Wuhan, Mainland China. During
the visit, Directors had also officiated the opening ceremony
of our newly opened Wuhan manufacturing plant and met
with local management team to be acquainted the current
business performance and strategy. Directors had made visits
in different sales channels in our growing Wuhan market.

R-ZB-—AE=A  AQAFARESERSBTE
N FREREL KR E TS - BE - EBTH
FENRELEREIEMEER  YHEEWE
EERERBRERGEBERERKE EXAE
RKRERPERETSANTEHEERE -

Directors and government officials at the opening ceremony of new Wuhan plant

EFERBFESTIFREN BB

Wuhan market visit 8 2Z 515

The Board also acknowledges the importance of continuous
professional development (“CPD”) to Senior Management
in this highly competitive consumer product market. Senior
Management is encouraged to participate in various CPD
program at the expense of the Company.

All Directors and Senior Management have provided to
the Company Secretary their training records for the fiscal
year of 2015/2016 which have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee. Directors has received an average of 30 hours of
CPD training during the year. Senior Management has received
an average of 75 hours of CPD training during the year.
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Directors’ Training Records

Analysis of training attended by Directorsin
FY2015/2016 by topic
BEER-E—H /- XUBRFESMZE
HIEB 247

B Company’s Business

ENNSE S

M Global Business Update
RREBEH

B Account and Finance

Bt RE%

B Legal/Regulatory Compliance
EB EE RS BT

W Directors’ Duties and Governance

ESRERESR

Senior Management’s Training Records

Analysis of training attended by Senior
Management in FY2015/2016 by topic
EEEEBAEBN-E-51 B HBREE
2 mzEINEE 54

B Market/Product/Business Development

wiEERSEERR

M Legal/Regulatory Compliance
EB EERS 2 BT

M Industry
7%

B Company’s Business

ENNSE S

Responsibilities of Directors

Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company. Directors are
not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The Annual
Financial Statements for FY2015/2016 are prepared on a
going-concern basis. All the new accounting standards and
policies adopted by the Company have been thoroughly
discussed and approved at the Audit Committee before
adoption by the Board.

The Group has adopted its own Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors (the “Code”) on terms no less
exacting than the required standards set out in the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
(the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules. A similar code has also been adopted by the Group for
the specified group of employees who may possess or have
access to price sensitive information. Specific enquiries were
made of all Directors and the specified group of employees,
and all Directors and the specified group of employees have
confirmed compliance with the required standard set out in the
Code for the year ended 31st March, 2016.

50

EE %

Analysis of training attended by Directors in
FY2015/2016 by type
BEEN-2—0 " RURFESMZE
BllERichapiy

B Readings
B

M In-house training

AERE I

B External Courses/Seminars/
Workshops
SRR TG TS

B Plant/Market Visit
BESE THEKR

BEEEALZEFG

Analysis of training attended by Senior
Management in FY2015/2016 by type
BEEEAEBR-Z—H /"—T-<UREE
2mzEIER 5

B External Courses/Seminars/
Workshops
SRR TG TS

M Readings
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M in-house training

AERE I

EEET

ESHERRAQAVYBRREAEREMT - ESA A
HEREMNEARTHBEZEHIBERITESRE
FEXRDNAFERCEZEN - —B—FH /=T
—AMBFEZEFUBRRDIEFACERE
B ARARPZ AN STERREELH
EREESERAFATRELE  REBREXTE
EERM -

AEBMORESCREFREZRN-—ETHATA
(Ir=FRI]) - EERAE EHRAME T AE <
IHRARESETESIENEETR ([RE
SR BIRERERR - AKE TR EE
FRETARAEHSELEREZHRERM
R —EBUTR - A AT CHRESRZEHR
FRETHRHARER MEBRESRZERE
METHRANBE_ZE-—A"F=ZA=+—-HLt
FE-HETTUARIZRAERE -

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2015/16



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT {2 &85 &

Confirmations have been received from all Directors that
they have provided sufficient time and attention to the
affairs of the Company during the fiscal year of 2015/2016.
Directors have also disclosed to the Company their interests
as director and other office in other public companies and
organisation in a timely manner, and have regularly reported
to the Company Secretary on any subsequent changes.

Evaluation of The Board and The Executive
Chairman

The Board believes that evaluation of the Board and
the Executive Chairman is an essential requirement of
good corporate governance and has already adopted the
Recommended Best Practice for regular Board Evaluation
under the CG Code as early as in the fiscal year of
2011/2012.

The objective of the Board evaluation is to review the Board
effectiveness and to identify areas for improvements. The
Executive Chairman has also been evaluated on whether
he has adequately and effectively performed his roles and
fulfilled his responsibilities as the Chairman of the Board.
Such evaluation is usually conducted once a year.

A formal evaluation of the Board and the Executive Chairman
was conducted for the fiscal year of 2015/2016. During the
evaluation process, questionnaire was used for collecting
opinions from all the Directors. Completed evaluation forms
were sent to the Company Secretary on a confidential basis.
The Company Secretary has then prepared an analysis of the
overall evaluation results for review and discussion in the
Board meeting.

Board
composition and
effectiveness

E=gAK
K Rhee

Continuous Board meeting and
professional EVALUATION procedures
development C_BITFRIA EESEER
SEELBR R A B

Strategic
planning and risk
management

AT BIR
B EE

Board
BEEg
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All Directors have actively participated in the whole
evaluation process. The evaluation results demonstrated
that the Board has performed particularly well in the areas
of Board procedures as well as strategic plan and risk
management. The Executive Chairman has adequately and
effectively performed his roles and fulfilled his responsibilities
as the Chairman of the Board. No major areas of concerns
were found in the evaluation results. Directors have
proposed a few constructive and valuable recommendations
for continuous improvement of the Board performance.
The Executive Chairman as the leader of the evaluation
process has provided the responses and actions to be taken
to improve the Board performance derived from the Board
evaluation results. Such responses and actions have also been
discussed amongst the Directors during the Board meeting.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company
and is appointed by the Board. The Company Secretary
is responsible for facilitating the procedures/activities
of the Board and the Board Committees as well as
good communication flow among the Board members,
shareholders and Senior Management.

The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is
subject to Board approval. The Company Secretary reports
to both the Executive Chairman and the Group Chief
Executive Officer. The Company Secretary is accountable to
the Board for matters relating to Directors’ duties, such as
giving advice on corporate governance developments and
compliance and facilitating the professional development
programme and induction programme of Directors. All
members of the Board have access to the advice and service
of the Company Secretary.

During the year, the Company Secretary undertook over 30
hours of external CPD training courses to keep abreast of
latest legislative and regulatory changes and to refresh her
skills and knowledge.
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B /A

Internal Control

The Company has had in place an internal control system,
which is developed based on the Committee of Sponsoring
Organisations of the Treadway Commission (COSO)
components for internal controls, to manage and mitigate
rather than to eliminate business risks. The key underlying

components of effective internal control system are
illustrated as below:
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Assessing risks and reviewing the effectiveness of internal
controls is a continuing process in the Company. Our internal
control system is designed to give reasonable assurance that:

e  Assets are prudently safeguarded,;

Business activities are conducted in an effective and
efficient manner;

Financial reporting is accurate, timely and complete; and

Laws and regulations relevant to the business are
complied.

Under the Company’s internal control system, management
is charged with the responsibility to design and implement
the internal controls while the Board and the Audit
Committee oversee the effectiveness of the internal control
system that have been put in place.
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Review of Internal Controls Effectiveness

The Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that
appropriate and effective internal controls are maintained to
provide reasonable assurance against material misstatement
of information.

The Group Internal Audit Department has conducted reviews
of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
system, including those of its operating companies. The Audit
Committee has reviewed the findings and impartial opinion of
the Group Internal Audit Department on the effectiveness of
the Company’s internal control system two times a year.

The Board considered that the internal control system
for the year ended 31st March, 2016 was effective and
adequate. No significant areas of concern that might affect
the financial, operational and compliance issues and risk
management functions of the Company were identified. The
scope of this review also covered the adequacy of resources,
qualification and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting, financial reporting and internal audit functions
and their training and budget.

Inside Information

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information, the
Company is aware of the requirements under the applicable
Listing Rules and Securities and Futures Ordinance and
the overriding principle that inside information should be
announced as soon as reasonably practicable after such
information comes to our attention unless it falls within any
of the Safe Harbours provisions under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance. The Company has had a system in place
with established policies and procedures for complying
with the Inside Information disclosure requirements under
the regulatory regime. The Board has adopted a Disclosure
Compliance Policy on 27th November, 2012. The Policy
has been formulated by reference to the “Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and
Futures Commission. The purpose of the Policy is to provide
Directors and employees with guidelines on assessing,
reporting and disseminating inside information, maintaining
confidentiality and abiding shares dealing restrictions.
The Company has included in its code of conduct and staff
handbook a strict prohibition on the unauthorised disclosure
or use of confidential and inside information.
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Internal Audit

The Group Internal Audit Department plays a critical role in
monitoring the internal governance of the Company.

The scope of services of the department is set out in the
approved Internal Audit Charter and includes:

° Unrestricted access to all the Company’s activities,
personnel, records, properties, and other information
sources required to carry out internal audits;

° Review the effectiveness of internal control over
operational, compliance and financial reporting as well
as risk management function; and

e Special reviews of areas of concern identified by
management or the Audit Committee.

The Group Internal Audit Department, reporting to the
Audit Committee, provides independent assurance as to the
existence and effectiveness of risk management functions
and controls in business operations.

Using risk assessment methodology and taking into account
the Company structure, management’s concern, nature
and complexity of operation, and operating environment,
the Group Internal Audit Department prepares its annual
audit plan which is reviewed and approved by the Audit
Committee. The risk assessment methodology assists in
identifying business risks and determining audit frequencies.
Based on the approved audit plan, the Group Internal Audit
Department schedules its internal audit programs to conduct
an independent review of different financial, business and
functional operations and activities with resources focusing
on areas with higher risk.

During the fiscal year of 2015/2016, the Group Internal
Audit Department issued reports to Senior Management
covering various operational and financial units of the
Company and its subsidiaries. The Group Internal Audit
Department also conducted reviews of major projects and
areas of concern identified by management.
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Risk Management

The Board is ultimately responsible for ensuring effective
risk management and internal control systems for the
business of the Company and its subsidiaries in place. To
achieve this, the Board ensures that there is an effective
framework of risk governance and ongoing risk management
process to promote the long-term success of the Company.

During the year, the Company has implemented a phased
improvement plan and progressed to further enhance
its internal controls and risk management systems. The
Company aims to embed a risk management system to its
day-to-day operations.

Our new risk management framework is illustrated as below:
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Risk Governance Structure
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Risk Governance Structure

The risk governance structure consists of three layers of
roles and responsibilities as explained below:

Layer

Oversight

Risk
Monitoring
and Review

Risk and
Control
Ownership

Roles and Responsibilities

Audit Committee, acting on behalf of the Board

Oversee the Company’s risk
management on an ongoing basis.

Oversee those risks that warrant the
Committee’s attention and supervise
risk management process as part of
good corporate governance.

Group Internal Audit

Conduct independent review on the
effectiveness of risk management
framework and provide risk assurance
to the Audit Committee.

Group Executives and Local CEOs

Design, implement and monitor the risk
management system.

Provide assurance to the Audit
Committee on the effectiveness of risk
management.

Group Risk Management, an independent
team under Group Internal Audit

Report risks and controls to
management continuously based on the
risk reporting from Department Heads.

Track progress of mitigation plans and
activities of risks.

Corporate Services

Advise the Board and management
of the Company on matters of good
corporate governance practices and
changes in legislation which impacts the
Company significantly.

Department Heads and Individual Employee

Responsible for identifying and
assessing risks in their respective area of
responsibility.

Carry out risk management activities
and report their day to day operations.
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Risk Management Process

Our risk management process is embedded in our daily
operations, financial activities, compliance, strategy
development and business planning, investment decision and
external factors.

It involves identifying potential risks that are related to
different business processes and relevant to the Company’s
objectives. Risks are grouped into six clusters (including
reputation, strategy, market, liquidity, credit and operation)
to facilitate analysis. Each risk identified is analysed on the
basis of impact and likelihood consistent with risk parameters
set by the Board. Appropriate controls are developed and
implemented to minimise the risk exposure. The Company
compiles a risk register and updates and monitors it on
an ongoing basis by taking into account emerging risks or
changes to the identified risks. A risk management report
that highlights key risks and action plans is presented to the
Audit Committee on aregular basis.

Our new risk management framework will be rolled-out
at the Group Management functions and Company-level
in Hong Kong during the fiscal year of 2016/2017. Moving
forward, the Group will assist other subsidiaries in roll-out
of this risk management framework and continue to enhance
its risk management framework.

External Auditors

KPMG has been appointed as the External Auditors of
the Company by shareholders at the last Annual General
Meeting. An amount of HK$5.1 million (2014/2015:
HK$5.2 million) was charged for fiscal year of 2015/2016
for statutory audits for the Company and subsidiaries.
The amount for the other non-audit services provided by
KPMG for the Company and subsidiaries during the year
was HK$0.95 million (2014/2015: HK$0.67 million). The
non-audit services mainly comprised market study and tax
advisory services.

The responsibilities of the External Auditors with respect
to the 2015/2016 financial statements are set out in the
section of “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 83 and
84.

Shareholders’ Rights

Procedures for Shareholders to convene General
Meeting

Pursuant to section 566 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the
“Companies Ordinance”), shareholders representing at least
5% of the total voting rights of all the shareholders having
a right to vote at general meetings are entitled to send a
request to the Company to convene a general meeting.
Such request must state the general nature of the business
to be dealt with at the meeting and may include the text of
a resolution that may properly be moved and is intended
to be moved at the meeting. A request may be sent to the
Company Secretary at the Company’s registered office in
hard copy form or in electronic form to ir@vitasoy.com and
must also be authenticated by the person or persons making
it.
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Procedures for Shareholders to request circulation
of statement at General Meeting

Pursuant to section 580 of the Companies Ordinance,
shareholder/s representing at least 2.5% of the total voting
rights of all the shareholders or at least 50 shareholders,
who have a relevant right to vote, can request the Company
in writing to circulate to the shareholders a statement of not
more than 1,000 words with respect to a matter mentioned
in a proposed resolution to be dealt with at that meeting or
other business to be dealt with at that meeting. A request
may be sent to the Company Secretary at the Company’s
registered office in hard copy form or in electronic form
to ir@vitasoy.com and must identify the statement to be
circulated. It must be authenticated by the person or persons
making it and be received by the Company at least 7 days
before such meeting.

Procedures for proposing a Person for Election as
a Director at General Meeting

Under the Articles of Association of the Company, if a
shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a
retiring Director for election as a Director at a general
meeting, the shareholder should deposit a written notice
of nomination which shall be given to the Company within
the 7-day period commencing the day after the despatch of
the notice of the meeting (or such other period as may be
determined and announced by the Directors from time to
time) and in no event ending no later than seven days prior
to the date appointed for such meeting. The procedures for
shareholders to propose a person for election as a Director
are also published on the Company’s website.

Constitutional Document

During the year, there was no change in the Company’s
Articles of Association. A copy of the latest consolidated
version of the Articles of Association of the Company is
published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

Communications with Shareholders and
Investors

We believe accountability and transparency are indispensable
for ensuring good corporate governance and, in this regard,
timely communication with our shareholders is crucial.

The Board has adopted a formal Shareholders Communication
Policy to ensure that shareholders are provided with ready,
equal and timely access to the Company’s information.
The Shareholders Communication Policy is posted on the
Company’s website.

We maintain a corporate website (www.vitasoy.com) to
keep our shareholders and the investing public posted of our
share price information, latest business developments, final
and interim results announcements, financial reports, public
announcements, corporate governance policies and practices
and other relevant shareholder information.

The Company’s Annual General Meeting is one of the important
platforms to communicate with its shareholders. During the
2015 Annual General Meeting, the Chairman of the Board
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briefed shareholders the business review and the outlook of
the Group and answered questions raised by shareholders. The
chairman of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee
and the chairman of the Audit Committee were also present
to answer questions raised by shareholders. The Company’s
External Auditors attended the 2015 Annual General Meeting
to address questions about the conduct of the audit, the
preparation and content of the auditors’ report, the accounting
policies and auditors’ independence.

Separate resolutions in respect of each substantial issue,
including the appointment and re-election of Directors
were proposed by the Chairman at the Annual General
Meeting and were voted on by poll. The detailed procedures
of conducting a poll were explained by the Chairman at the
commencement of the Annual General Meeting to ensure
that shareholders were familiar with such procedures. An
independent scrutineer was appointed to count the votes
and the poll results were posted on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company on the same day following the
Annual General Meeting.

We manage investor relations systematically as a key part
of our operations. We maintain regular bilateral, open and
regular communications with existing and potential investors
to ensure that the investment community has a balanced
and updated view of the performance of the Company and
relevant business development. As such, the Company
developed and adopted a formal Investor Relations Policy
as the guidelines for conducting investor relations activities.
We have established a dedicated contact ir@vitasoy.com
for shareholders, fund managers, analysts and the media for
a two-way communications with the related stakeholders.
We keep our investors abreast on the Group’s latest
developments and strategies through direct communications
including result announcement events, group and individual
face-to-face meetings, telephone conferences and email
correspondences with shareholders and investors. All
bilateral meetings are attended by at least two designated
representatives of the Company, while always taking
reference of applicable regulatory requirements and internal
guidelines concerning fair disclosure of information without
offering advantage to any particular investor or financial
analyst. We shall also leverage media platform to update our
latest corporate development. In addition, we are proactive
in responding to general enquiries raised by the investing
public, individual and institutional investors and analysts. In
order to keep updated with the latest market practices on
investor relations, the delegated persons engaged in investor
relations activities often attend industry seminars or training
sessions on various topics.

BRRZEZEE - HFHMEREZESEIFEUAREZRE
EEXFTESEERR2ER - ZQTZHE
BREMHE-F-AFRRBFAG  UEDE
FRERET RBBRE2ERRAST - S5
BURAR BB Mt 2 AR -

BRREFASZEIFENZTERSH (BEEER
EREE) REBURBR  MABRBRUR
MREHFXNETRR - TERBRRBFEASMHE
BHABBETROREZRSF BEKRRAS
BBREF - ARFAAREBULERAETHR
MBRHREERNRRBFASEREE AT
RIFRART ZRUETE -

BMEAGHEHEEREENERFR  WRLEAR
MzEEIF - BMEREREEREEREH
BREHZEMESRE  UBRRBREREHELT
ZRERHBERZRREREELTERENZER -
Hit » ZAFEHFTIRERAERN 2REERBRK
R ERETREEBBTB 21 - M
R EMNER IR ir@vitasoy.com » FEER
R-E2KE o WMEREBESEBERFNEER
BoEE RAMERERREEEEERE  EX
BEXERMIH  JME—¥H -8 EFS
BREFTHHAERE  BEREMOBREERKE
REBAEERFRERRB2ENR - HEER
MEEYHEIMEBELARAABEZREREE X
DEBEEBAFREERZERAREERRR
E1ES  MASOERENREESLUBINE
REHEBEALE - RPTKFNAERBFEEHF LA
BRHBEBR - W RMEBREELAR - BA
REEREEURSTESEMBEHZ—RER -
EEREEBREIHZZARKRKESHEZERE
B TEMAESRETIERER  ERNEBREEHR
BRemiERHER -

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2015/16



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT EERSEEE AR

Board of Directors

Executive Chairman

Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO (sBs, BSsc, Msc), aged 75, is the
Executive Chairman of the Group. Mr. Lo was appointed a
Director of the Company in 1972. Mr. Lo graduated from
the University of lllinois with a Bachelor of Science degree
in Food Science and gained his Master of Science degree in
Food Science from Cornell University. Mr. Lo is an Honorary
Court Member of the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology and life member of Cornell University Council.
Mr. Lo is a director of Ping Ping Investment Company Limited.
He is also a director of The Bank of East Asia, Limited, a
company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. He was a
member of The National Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference. Save as disclosed, he has
not held any directorship in other listed public companies in
the last three years. He is the brother of Ms. Myrna Mo-ching
LO and Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. the Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI (GBM, GBS, OBE, JP. MA
Cantab. (Economics & Law), Hon. LLD (Cantab), Hon. DSc. (Imperial), Hon.
LLD (Warwick), Hon. DBA (Edinburgh Napier), Hon. D.Hum.Litt. (Trinity,
USA), Hon. LLD (Hong Kong), Hon. DSocSc (Lingnan), Hon. DLitt (Macquarie),
Hon. DSocSc (CUHK), FCA, FCPA, FCPA (Aust.), FCIB, FHKIB, FBCS, CITP,
FCIArb, Officier de I'Ordre de la Couronne, Grand Officer of the Order of
the Star of Italian Solidarity, The Order of the Rising Sun, Gold Rays with
Neck Ribbon, Commandeur dans I'Ordre National de la Legion d’Honneur),
aged 77, was appointed a Director of the Company in 1994.
Sir David is the chairman and chief executive of The Bank
of East Asia, Limited, a company listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange. He is the chairman of The Chinese Banks’
Association Limited. He is a member of the Council of the
Treasury Markets Association. Sir David is a director of
Hong Kong Interbank Clearing Limited. He is also a director
of Guangdong Investment Limited, The Hong Kong and
China Gas Company Limited, The Hongkong and Shanghai
Hotels, Limited, PCCW Limited and San Miguel Brewery
Hong Kong Limited, all being companies listed in Hong Kong.
He was a member of the Legislative Council of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region from 1985 to 2012.
He was a director of China Overseas Land & Investment
Limited, AFFIN Holdings Berhad, CaixaBank, S.A., and
Armada Holdings Limited (formerly known as SCMP Group
Limited), companies listed in Hong Kong or overseas. Save
as disclosed, he has not held any directorship in other listed
public companies in the last three years.
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Mr. Jan P. S. ERLUND, aged 77, was appointed a Director of
the Company in 2006. He graduated with a Master degree in
Law from the University of Aarhus and studied at the Nordic
Institute for Maritime Law, the University of Oslo. Mr. Erlund
was admitted to the Danish Bar in 1968 and was admitted
to the Supreme Court in 1976. Mr. Erlund is now a partner in
Copenhagen Chambers focusing on Danish and international
arbitration. He was a partner of Gorrissen Federspiel
Kierkegaard, a law firm in Copenhagen, Denmark. He was the
president of the Danish Bar and Law Association, president
of the Danish Maritime Law Association and chairman of
the Maritime and Transport Committee of the International
Bar Association. Mr. Erlund was the chairman of the board
of directors of The East Asiatic Company Ltd. A/S and Dansk
Skovselskab A/S, deputy chairman of ERRIA A/S and a
member of the board of directors of PSA International Pte.
Ltd., all being companies listed overseas. Save as disclosed, he
has not held any directorship in other listed public companies
inthe last three years.

Mr. Valiant Kin-piu CHEUNG, aged 70, was appointed a
Director of the Company in 2010. Mr. Cheung is a fellow
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Cheung was a partner at KPMG, a
leading international accounting firm in Hong Kong, until his
retirement in March 2001. He has extensive experience in
the fields of assurance and corporate finance, particularly
in manufacturing, trading, wholesale, distribution and
retails in Hong Kong and Mainland China. Mr. Cheung is an
independent non-executive director of Dah Chong Hong
Holdings Limited and The Bank of East Asia, Limited, all
being companies listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
Mr. Cheung was an independent non-executive director
of Pacific Century Premium Developments Limited from
October 2004 to 6th May, 2015. Save as disclosed, he has
not held any directorship in other listed public companies in
the last three years.
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Mr. Anthony John Liddell NIGHTINGALE (cmMmg, sBs, JP), aged
68, was appointed a Director of the Company in 2015. Mr.
Nightingale graduated from Peterhouse College, University
of Cambridge with a Bachelor’s degree (Honours) in Classics.
Mr. Nightingale was Managing Director of the Jardine
Matheson Group (“Jardine Group”) from 2006 to 2012. He
joined Jardine Group in 1969 and was appointed a director
in 1994. Mr. Nightingale is currently a non-executive director
of Jardine Matheson Holdings Limited and of other Jardine
Group companies. These include Dairy Farm, Hongkong
Land, Jardine Cycle & Carriage, Jardine Strategic and
Mandarin Oriental. Jardine Matheson Holdings Limited has a
standard listing on the London Stock Exchange as its primary
listing, with secondary listings in Bermuda and Singapore.
Mr. Nightingale is also a non-executive director of Prudential
plc, a company with primary listings on stock exchanges in
London and Hong Kong and with secondary listings on stock
exchanges in Singapore and New York (ADRs). He is also
the non-executive director of Schindler Holding Limited
and Shui On Land Limited, companies listed in Hong Kong
or overseas, and the UK-ASEAN Business Council. Mr.
Nightingale is a commissioner of PT Astra International
Tbk. He is a Hong Kong representative to the Asia Pacific
Economic Cooperation (APEC) Business Advisory Council
and chairman of The Hong Kong-APEC Trade Policy Study
Group. He is also a member of the Securities and Futures
Commission Committee on Real Estate Investment Trusts,
a council member of the Employers’ Federation of Hong
Kong, a non-official member of the Commission on Strategic
Development in Hong Kong and the chairman of The Sailors
Home and Missions to Seamen in Hong Kong. Mr. Nightingale
is the former chairman of the Hong Kong General Chamber
of Commerce. Save as disclosed, he has not held any
directorship in other listed public companies in the last three
years.

Non-executive Director

Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO, aged 77, was appointed a Director
of the Company in 1992. Ms. Lo graduated from Oberlin
College in the United States with a Bachelor of Arts degree
in Music. Ms. Lo is a member of the Docent Committee and
Bishop White Committee of the Royal Ontario Museum
in Toronto, Canada. She does not hold/has not held any
directorship in other listed public companies currently and
in the last three years. She is the sister of Mr. Winston Yau-
lai LO and Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO, and the mother of Mr.
Eugene LYE, President and Chief Executive Officer of Vitasoy
USAInc..

Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO, aged 68, was appointed a Director
of the Company in 1993. Ms. Lo received a Bachelor of Arts
degree from Oberlin College, Ohio in the United States and
undertook graduate studies in Urban and Regional Planning
at the University of Toronto in Canada. Ms. Lo joined the
Group in 1980 and was the President of Vitasoy USA
Group until 2001. Ms. Lo was the president of the Soyfoods
Association of North America which represents more than
30 soyfoods companies covering the US and Canada. She
does not hold/has not held any directorship in other listed
public companies currently and in the past three years. She
is the sister of Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO and Mr. Winston Yau-
lai LO.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT EERSEEE AR

Executive Director

Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI, aged 53, was appointed as the
Executive Director of the Company on 1st April, 2014. Mr.
Guidetti is currently the Group Chief Executive Officer and
a member of the Executive Committee of the Company. Mr.
Guidetti graduated with a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics at
the Bologna University in Bologna, Italy in 1987 and further
obtained a Master’s Degree in Business Administration
at Centro Universitario di Organizzazione Aziendale in
Altavilla Vicentina, Italy in 1988. Mr. Guidetti is responsible
for the overall strategic planning, business development
and general management of all the Group’s operations. Mr.
Guidetti joined the Group as the Group Chief Executive
Officer on 1st April, 2013 and has fully assumed the roles
and responsibilities of the former Group Chief Executive
Officer on 1st August, 2013. He has 24 years of proven track
record in general management, strategic/business planning,
marketing/commercial leadership, product innovation and
new business development. He has matured his professional
expertise in two of the largest global fast moving consumer
goods organisations and across local, regional and global
roles in Europe and Asia. He has spent the last 14 years in
this field in Greater China before joining the Company. Mr.
Guidetti is a director of Ariston Thermo Group, a private
limited company incorporated in Italy. He does not hold/has
not held any directorship in other listed public companies
currently and in the last three years.

Senior Management

Group Senior Directors

Mr. Chris Kin-shing LAU, aged 53, Group Chief Financial
Officer. Mr. Lau is responsible for the strategic planning,
financial management and control, accounting, corporate
finance, investor relations and corporate services of the
Group. Mr. Lau joined the Group in April 2016. He has close
to 30 years of solid finance management experience gained in
multinationals in Asia Pacific, Greater China and the US. He
also brings a wealth of experience to this role with managing
start-ups, post-merger/acquisition integration, business
process improvement and ERP system implementation in
addition to Treasury, Tax and Credit management. Mr. Lau
holds a Bachelor Degree of Economics from the Australian
National University and a Graduate Diploma in Computing
Studies from the University of Canberra. He is an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a Fellow of CPA Australia.
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Ms. Rosemary Pik-ling LI, aged 59, Group Senior Director,
Human Resources. Ms. Li is responsible for leading all
global human resources strategies and initiatives, including
organisations structure, corporate remuneration and reward
programs, employee engagement, talent development, and
the overall human resources policies. She continuously
shaped the Group’s best practices in strategic human
resources management to enhance the organizational
capabilities. Prior to joining the Group in 2000, she had
human resources leadership experience gained from
multinational corporations and sizable local organisations.

Mr. Frank Changbo S, aged 46, Group Senior Director,
Manufacturing and Project Management. Mr. Si is responsible
for the formulation of the Group’s manufacturing and project
policy and strategy as well as the management and support
of plant capital expenditure project and manufacturing
performance. He joined the Group in 2012. He has extensive
experience in different multi-national companies focus on
quality, manufacturing and project management.

Dr. Joanna Shwu-Pyng Tzeng CHEN, aged 57, Group
Senior Director, Research, Development and Quality. Dr.
Chen is responsible for developing, leading and executing
research and development and quality strategies to meet
the business needs of local and overseas markets. She plays
a strategic role in driving global product direction and
innovation while assuring compliance, safety, sustainability
and quality excellence. Dr. Chen joined the Group in 2010.
With Advanced Food Science education training, she
joined company with diversified working experiences with
prominent multinational companies in the United States,
Greater China and Asia Pacific region. Her expertise covers
technical management and commercialisation in areas across
food ingredient, food product research and development/
manufacturing, regulatory compliance and quality assurance.

Hong Kong Operation (Hong Kong, Macau
and Exports)

Mr. Charles Chung CHYI, aged 61, Chief Executive Officer,
Hong Kong Operation. Mr. Chyi is responsible for the general
management and development of the Group’s operations in
Hong Kong, Macau and various export markets. He joined the
Group in 2008 and had held senior management positions
with a couple of prominent multinational companies
previously in the food and beverage industry focusing on
Greater China.
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Mainland China

Mr. Jack Jie YUAN, aged 46, Managing Director of
Vitasoy (China) Investments Company Limited. Mr. Yuan is
responsible for the general management and development
of the Group’s operations in Mainland China. Mr. Yuan
joined the Group in 2004 as the General Manager of the
Group'’s Shenzhen and Foshan joint venture operation. He
has extensive experience in the beverage industry and had
previously worked with a number of multinational companies
in Mainland China.

Australia and New Zealand

Mr. Christopher John GILLARD, aged 44, General Manager
of Vitasoy Australia Products Pty. Ltd. Mr. Gillard is
responsible for the general management and development
of the Group’s operation in Australia and New Zealand.
He joined the Group in November 2014. He has extensive
experience across the Asia-Pacific fast moving consumer
goods industry. Based in and a native of Melbourne, he
recently returned from almost a decade living and working
in Greater China. He has a strong track record in Sales,
Marketing and General Management.

North America

Mr. Eugene LYE, aged 46, President and Chief Executive
Officer of Vitasoy USA Inc.. Mr. Lye is responsible for the
general management and development of the Group’s
beverage business and the import and sales of the Group’s
products for all sales channels in North America. He joined
the Group in 2002 and has been closely involved in all
aspects of the North American business for over 14 years.
During his time at Vitasoy USA Inc., Mr. Lye has held sales
and marketing positions in the mainstream channel, managed
both the research & development and quality departments
and most recently served as the Senior Vice President of the
Asian Channel. He is the son of Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO, the
Non-executive Director of the Company.

Singapore

Mr. Derrick Teck Huat PEK, aged 55, Chief Executive
Officer of Unicurd Food Co. (Private) Ltd., the Group’s tofu
manufacturing company in Singapore. Mr. Pek is responsible
for the general management and development of the Group's
operation in Singapore. He joined the Group in 2012. He has
over 20 years experience in fast moving consumer goods
industry, spanning from food to personal care products
category. He had gained numerous years of sales and
marketing experiences and held senior positions in a few
renowned multinational consumer products companies in
Singapore.
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The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual
report together with the audited financial statements for the
year ended 31st March, 2016.

Principal Place of Business

Vitasoy International Holdings Limited (“the Company”) is a
company incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has
its registered office and principal place of business at No. 1
Kin Wong Street, Tuen Mun, New Territories, Hong Kong.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Company are the manufacture
and sale of food and beverages. The principal activities and
other particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in note 14 to
the financial statements.

The segment analysis of the operations of the Company and
its subsidiaries (“the Group”) during the financial year is set
out in note 3 to the financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required
by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance, including a
discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group and an indication of likely future developments in the
Group’s business, can be found in the Group Chief Executive
Officer’s Report/Business Review set out on pages 10 to
25 of this Annual Report. The environmental, employees,
customers and suppliers matters that have a significant
impact on the Group, are provided in the “Sustainability
Report 2.0” to be sent out together with this Annual Report.
These discussions form part of this Report of the Directors.

Major Customers and Suppliers

For the year ended 31st March, 2016, the percentage of
sales attributable to the Group's five largest customers was
less than 30%.

The information in respect of the Group’s purchases
attributable to the major suppliers during the financial year
is as follows:
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Percentage of
the Group’s total purchases

HEEEEEEFETS L
The largest supplier BRARMER 25%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate EERNG S 36%

At no time during the year have the Directors, their
associates or any shareholder of the Company (which to
the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s issued shares) had any interest in these major
suppliers.
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Recommended Dividend

An interim dividend of HK3.8 cents per ordinary share (2015:
HK3.2 cents per ordinary share) was paid on 28th December,
2015. The Directors now recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK26.5 cents per ordinary share (2015: HK21.2
cents per ordinary share) in respect of the year ended 31st
March, 2016.

Charitable Donations

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$50,000 (2015: HK$95,000).

Bank Loans

Particulars of bank loans of the Group, as at 31st March,
2016 are set out in note 20 to the financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 25(c) to the financial
statements. Shares were issued during the year on exercise
of share options.

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the
Company’s listed securities by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries during the year.

Directors

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of
this Annual Report are set out on page 2.

Mr. Anthony John Liddell NIGHTINGALE was appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director and a member of
the Audit Committee and the Remuneration and Nomination
Committee of the Company with effect from 26th June,
2015.

In accordance with Article 104 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Winston Yau-Lai LO, Ms. Myrna Mo-ching
LO and Mr. Valiant Kin-piu CHEUNG retire from the board
by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election, save for Mr.
Valiant Kin-piu CHEUNG, who indicated that he would not
offer himself for re-election at the Annual General Meeting.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting has a service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries
within one year without payment of compensation, other
than normal statutory obligations.

Non-executive Directors are appointed under the same
terms for rotational retirement as other Directors, pursuant
to the Articles of Association of the Company.

Z2ERE

AARER-E—HAF+-A=-+N\BIKEHH
BRESRIZTERISEWN (ZE—1F . EREE
B3.2%84) EERBIBRBEZE_Z—AKF=
B=1+—HBLEEEZKRERESREER 2658
W(ZE—hF: BREBER21.284) -

HEBX

FEERFAZEERAAZERR 50,0007 (=
T—HF BWI50007T) °

RITER

FEER-ZB-AF=ZA=T-HZRTEXRH
FER A IRRMEE20 -

SN

ERARFAZRASHFEHNYBEHRRME
25(c)c ARAEBREETHEMRFEAKTR
ﬁ o

AATMIEEAMBEARARFARERE - HE
FEOEAQF 2 LTRSS -

==t

REVBEEARBEFAFHZAMBTESZEZSA
E#HNFE28 -

REERLERZARALTLABILFYTES - R
ERZEENFHRREEZEERE B=%
—HFEARAZTAREEER -

BREAQRFAERMAE 104K EREEXE -
BRAZTIRREBAEAREERRBFARE
LBERTESSRYE  SERABMHEREF
HREELLECRTBEEITERRREAFAS L
BREE -

BREERRBFASLEEEFTCEEYME
RA T EAEME D R A QRS EAEMH
BRARAAER—FAKLEMAMEHRE (—KE
ERERN) 2REEW -

READF2ERMA - FATESHREHM
EESHEZRESERRRERE -

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2015/16



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS E=&#H

Directors of Subsidiaries

A full list of the names of the directors of the Group’s
subsidiaries during the financial year and up to the date of
this Annual Report can be found in the Company’s website
at www.vitasoy.com under “Investor Relations/Corporate
Governance/Board of Directors/Directors of Subsidiaries”.

Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures

The Directors of the Company who held office at 31st
March, 2016 had the following interests in the shares of
the Company and subsidiaries (within the meaning of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)) at that date as
recorded in the register of Directors’ interests and short
positions required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO:

(1) Interests in issued shares

MEARZES

RABBEEEARBZEEAERZAHA
EMBARZESHMABEREIAARE
(www.itasoy.com) [IREZEBE TEER
g WBLATNEE ] ETUHEER -

Bl 5

EENRG - HEROREREFEZ
EakXE

BR(BHERPEKRH) E2KREHEECES
EakXeSoMRHEME RZS—XK<F=A
=+ —HERBZAQAREEREBRREEERAQTIR
MEBAR (EER(BRFRBEMRH) ) 2RHOE
H|WTF :

(1) RERITRGZEZ

Number of ordinary shares

®iEEEA
Trusts and Total
Personal Family similar number of * % of total
Name Note interests interests interests shares held issued shares
Bt R ris *HERITRG
1 PR BAES FiEES FEES B8 #BZzESLL
Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO (i), (iv) 61,583,800 28,702,500 72,678,300 162,964,600 15.56%
EREBEE
Dr. the Hon. Sir David
Kwok-po LI 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000 0.57%
ZEEBT
Mr. Jan P.S. ERLUND 150,000 - - 150,000 0.01%
Jan P.S.ERLUND %4
Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO (i), (iv) - - 100,653,000 100,653,000 9.61%
ERELZT
Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO (iii), (iv) - - 93,344,750 93,344,750 8.91%
BRB L
Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI 200,000 - - 200,000 0.02%

*

The percentage has been compiled based on the total number
of shares of the Company in issue (i.e. 1,047,329,500 ordinary
shares) as at 31st March, 2016.
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Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
(Continued)

(1) Interests in issued shares (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO is deemed to be interested in
28,702,500 shares through interests of his wife.

(ii)  Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO is interested in 27,974,700 shares
held by Swift Luck Development Limited which in turn holds
such shares in trust for Lo Myrna Trust.

(iii)  Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO is interested in 3,338,300 shares held
by Yvonne Lo Charitable Remainder Unitrust and 17,328,150
shares held by Yvonne Lo Separate Property Trust.
Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO is a beneficiary of such two trusts and
is therefore deemed to be interested in such shares.

(iv) Each of Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO, Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO and
Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO is interested in 72,678,300 shares
held by The Bank of East Asia (Nominees) Limited which
holds such shares as a nominee for the K.S. Lo Foundation,
a charitable trust. Each of them is a trustee of the K.S. Lo
Foundation and is therefore deemed to be interested in such
shares.

(2) Interests in underlying shares

Certain Directors of the Company have been granted options
under the Company’s share option scheme, details of which
are set out in the section “Share Option Scheme” below.

All interests in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company are long positions.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the Directors of the
Company or any of their spouses or children under eighteen
years of age has interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or other associated corporations, as recorded
in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies.
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Equity-linked Agreements

Share option scheme RS
(1) Share option scheme approved on 4th September, (1) R==FZZ
2002 gl

On 4th September, 2002, the Company adopted a share
option scheme (the “2002 Share Option Scheme”) under
which the Directors might, at their discretion, grant options
to employees and Directors of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries to subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company.
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The 2002 Share Option Scheme was valid for 10 years
ended 3rd September, 2012. The purpose of this scheme was
to provide incentives and rewards to employees for their
contribution to the Group. The principal terms of this scheme
were as follows:

- The exercise price of the options is the higher of (a)
the closing price of the shares on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the
date of grant, which must be a business day; and (b)
the average of the closing prices of the shares on the
Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant;

- The options were exercisable for a period to be notified
by the Directors to each option holder, such period not
to exceed 10 years from the date of grant.

- There was no minimum period which an option must
be held before it could be exercised during the vesting
period, but the Directors were empowered to impose at
their discretion any such minimum period at the date of
offer.

- The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted must not
exceed 10% of the shares in issue on the date of
approval and adoption of the scheme.

- The maximum aggregate number of shares over which
options could be granted to any one participant, when
added to the number of shares issued or issuable to
that participant under the share option scheme must
not exceed 25% of the maximum aggregate number of
shares for the time being issued and issuable under the
share option scheme.

- An offer of the grant of an option remained open for
acceptance by an eligible Director or employee for
a period of 28 days from the date of offer or such
longer or shorter period as the Directors might in their
discretion determine. An eligible Director or employee
had to pay HK$10 on acceptance of the option as a
consideration.
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Equity-linked Agreements (Continued)
Share option scheme (Continued)

(1) Share option scheme approved on 4th September,
2002 (Continued)

- Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in a
general meeting, the total number of shares issued and
which may fall to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) to any one participant in any 12-month period
up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares
inissue as at the date of grant.

The 2002 Share Option Scheme was terminated by
shareholders of the Company at annual general meeting
on 28th August, 2012. Outstanding share options granted
under the 2002 Share Option Scheme prior to such
termination shall continue to be valid, and subject to the
vesting schedule, exercisable in accordance with the 2002
Share Option Scheme. As at 31st March, 2016, there were
8,453,000 outstanding options to be exercised under the
2002 Share Option Scheme.

(2) Share option scheme approved on 28th August,
2012

On 28th August, 2012, the Company adopted a new share
option scheme (the “2012 Share Option Scheme”). The
purpose of the 2012 Share Option Scheme is to recognise
and acknowledge the contributions which the Directors,
executives and employees of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries (“Eligible Participants”) have made or will make
to the Group. It will provide the Eligible Participants with an
opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company with
a view to motivating the Eligible Participants to excel their
performance and efficiency for the benefit of the Group;
and attracting and retaining or otherwise maintaining an
ongoing relationship with the Eligible Participants whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the long term
growth of the Group. The Board may at its discretion grant
options to any Director, executive or employee of the
Company or its subsidiaries.

The principal terms of the 2012 Share Option Scheme were
as follows:

- The exercise price of the options is the higher of (a) the
closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange on
the date of grant, which must be a business day; and (b)
the average of the closing prices of the shares on the
Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant.

- The period within which the options must be exercised
would be specified by the Company at the time of grant.
This period must expire no later than 10 years from the
relevant date of grant.
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Equity-linked Agreements (Continued)

Share option scheme (Continued)

(2)

Share option scheme approved on 28th August,
2012 (Continued)

There was no minimum period for which an option
must be held nor a performance target which must
be achieved before it could be exercised during the
vesting period, but the Board may determine at its sole
discretion any such terms on the grant of an option.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted must not
exceed 10% of the shares in issue on the date of
approval and adoption of the scheme.

The overall limit on the number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes for the
time being of the Company shall not, in aggregate,
exceed such number of shares as equals 30% of the
shares inissue from time to time.

An offer of the grant of an option remained open for
acceptance by an eligible participant for a period of 28
days from the date of offer or such longer or shorter
period as the Directors might in their discretion
determine. An eligible participant had to pay HK$10 on
acceptance of the option as a consideration.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in a
general meeting, the total number of shares issued and
which may fall to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) to any one eligible participant in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the
shares inissue as at the date of grant.

R E#H = @
B EE (E)

REZB-—ZFNAZ+TNBHAEZER
fEsTE ()

EREREA YEBRELCAREZREH
REBRETTEASAZEIN CRRER
HESSTRRTFTEREATREEEEM
BEMRAK -

MITEEBERF2BREM T FHITZR
HEE  BETEEAMERKMATEER
ZEBRITIR®G 10% °

HTERE-_ S —FERETEREAT
ERTMEMBRESEMER FEMKRT
FeEEREMTFRTZROBE EE
REE EHASBBHESRTEERITRE
230% Z2RHBEE -

SERSEENENEHEF -+ NBRE
ERNRREZBERIBEHERZRZ LB
BREZEZY  SEKRSHEEANEMNBRE
R {18 10 T/ERNRE -

BREAQRRRNRBRRAE LHES - RE
ERHAME2EM+—EABRBER - BE
A-—FEERSEETEERT2BRE
(BEETHE BEERRTEZBRE)
MERTRATRITZROBE - TEEB
REHBHZEBITRG 1% -

During the year, 5,712,000 options were granted under the
2012 Share Option Scheme. The total number of ordinary
shares available for issue under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme as at 31st March, 2016 was 82,059,950 shares,
which represented 7.84% of the ordinary shares of the

Company inissue at 31st March, 2016.
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Equity-linked Agreements (Continued)
Share option scheme (Continued)

(2) Share option scheme approved on 28th August,
2012 (Continued)

At 31st March, 2016, the Directors and employees of the
Company had the following interests in options to subscribe
for ordinary shares of the Company (market value per
share at 31st March, 2016 was HK$14.48) in consideration
of HK$10 for each grant under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme and 2012 Share Option Scheme of the Company.
As at 31st March, 2016, the total grant date fair value of
unexercised vested options and unvested options, measured
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(p)
(iv) to the financial statements, amounted to HK$16,676,000
and HK$33,549,000 respectively. The options are unlisted.
Once vested, each option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one ordinary share of the Company. Assuming
that all the options outstanding as at 31st March, 2016
are exercised, the Company will receive proceeds of
HK$261,610,000.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.
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Equity-linked Agreements (Continued)

Share option scheme (Continued)

(2) Share option scheme approved on 28th August,

2012 (Continued)

The Directors of the Company individually and other
employees of the Group in aggregate had the following
personal interests in options under the 2002 Share Option

IR ER = @)

BB E (&)

(2) R=2——FNAZ+T/\B#EZBR
RERHE (8)
REEEREAE BEHFAANESRAEEY

HthEEERBE ST _FEREFEIR=-F
——EBEREMETRBAQATEER2BEBRE

Scheme and 2012 Share Option Scheme to subscribe for EHEEZBAERZNOT
ordinary shares of the Company during the year and at the
end of the year:
Number of
options Number of Number of Number of *Market *Market
Price per outstanding options options options value value
Period during share on atthe granted exercised outstanding per share at per share on
Date of which options exercise heginning of during the during the attheend  dateof grant exercise
Participants grant are exercisable of options the year year year of the year of options of options
TR N ERE R i
RAfte AF{TEZ FRRHtZ ERiTEZ RAF{TEZ hifzAz | i1 1
8% dul:E BRETES SRER RRiaA RiaA LU L L] SHRHE BRTHR
HK$ HK$ HK$
Directors
ER
Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO 21/7/2009  21/7/2010to & 20/7/2019 4580 928,000 - (928,000) - 4510 12.20
BRELE 7/9/2010  7/9/2011to £ 6/9/2020 5942 2,120,000 - (2,120,000) - 5970 1344
8/9/2011 8/9/2012to £7/9/2021 6.358 2,320,000 - (580,000) 1,740,000 5470 1344
31/8/2012  31/8/2013to £ 30/8/2022 6.400 2,822,000 - - 2,822,000 6.700 -
9/9/2013 9/9/2014 to £8/9/2023 9.370 1,704,000 - - 1,704,000 9.950 -
10/9/2014  10/9/2015to £ 9/9/2024 10.080 1,792,000 - - 1,792,000 9.890 -
14/9/2015  14/9/2016 to & 13/9/2025 13.600 - 1,588,000 - 1,588,000 11,520 -
Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI 2/4/2013 2/4/2015 to £1/4/2023 9.090 2,100,000 - (200,000) 1,900,000 8.750 1146
BEERLE 28/6/2013  28/6/2014to & 27/6/2023 9.370 1,438,000 - - 1,438,000 9.180 -
2/7/2014  2/7/2015t0 E1/7/2024 10.080 1,576,000 - - 1,576,000 9.890 -
26/6/2015  26/6/2016 to & 25/6/2025 13.600 - 1,414,000 - 1,414,000 13620 -
Eligible employees 1/6/2005  1/6/2006 to & 31/5/2015 2375 62,000 - (62,000) - 2425 12,622
working under 5/6/2006 5/6/2007 to £4/6/2016 2.900 60,000 - (30,000) 30,000 2.850 12.680
employment contracts 21/7/2008  21/7/2009 to £ 20/7/2018 3.820 240,000 - (240,000) - 3.820 11,520
REEESHIfZ 21/7/2009  21/7/2010to & 20/7/2019 4580 312,000 - (78,000) 234,000 4510 13.860
AERES 9/6/2010  9/6/2011to £ 8/6/2020 6.022 1,504,000 - (1,100,000) 404,000 5.870 11.780
15/6/2011  15/6/2012 to & 14/6/2021 6424 1,726,000 - (734,000) 992,000 6.180 12.827
22/6/2012  22/6/2013to & 21/6/2022 6.274 3,268,000 - (1,037,000) 2,231,000 6.130 13028
28/6/2013  28/6/2014to £ 27/6/2023 9.370 3,092,000 - (440,000) 2,652,000 9.180 13.555
2/7/2014  2/7/2015t0 £ 1/7/2024 10.080 2,778,000 - (265,000) 2,513,000 9.890 12.688
26/6/2015  26/6/2016 to & 25/6/2025 13.600 - 2,710,000 - 2,710,000 13.620 -
29,842,000 5,712,000 (7,814,000) 27,740,000
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Equity-linked Agreements (Continued)
Share option scheme (Continued)

(2) Share option scheme approved on 28th August,
2012 (Continued)

The options granted to the Directors are registered under
the names of the Directors who are also the beneficial
owners.

* being the closing price or the weighted average closing price
of the Company’s ordinary shares immediately before the
dates on which the options were granted or exercised, as

applicable.

@ options granted to Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI was fully vested
after two years from the date of grant.

All options except for options granted to Mr. Roberto
Guidetti on 2nd April, 2013, are exercisable progressively
and the maximum percentage of the options which may be
exercised is determined in stages as follows:
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Percentage of
options granted

HERRBEREZESL
On or after 1st year anniversary of the date of grant REBHBET—BFHEE 25%
On or after 2nd year anniversary of the date of grant REBHETMEFRER another 2 25%
On or after 3rd year anniversary of the date of grant REBHEF=BFHEZ another B 25%
On or after 4th year anniversary of the date of grant BB INEFRHER another 3 25%

Information on the accounting policy for share options
granted and the value per option is provided in note 1(p)(iv)
and note 23 to the financial statements respectively.

FRARHBREZEFBRERSHBEREEEZ
BR 2 BB R B R R M 1p)(iv) RFEE23 ©
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other
Persons’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares and Underlying Shares

The Company has been notified of the following interests in
the Company’s issued shares at 31st March, 2016 amounting
to 5% or more of the ordinary shares in issue. These interests
are in addition to those disclosed above in respect of the
Directors.

FERRREMALARYG RKEE
RAD 2 BRI E

A=

F-AF=A=+-0 KATSEART

EERITEBRZS%RULZEATE T
ROEDE  ZERBTEBRELENIRECESHE

éo

Number of ordinary shares

YERHE
Trusts and Total *% of total
Personal Family Corporate similar number of issued
Substantial shareholders Note interests interests interests interests  shares held shares
HEERTT
BiER Fh% B
TERR [ BAER REER LEEE REES Bip e ZES
Ms. Irene CHAN (i), (ii) 23,514,700 750,000 - 72,678,300 96,943,000 9.26%
RERELL
Mr. Kai-tun LO (i) 18,508,950 - - 72,678,300 91,187,250 8.71%
EHBRE
Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO (i) 7,548,000 - - 72,678,300 80,226,300 7.66%
EEALE
Commonwealth Bank of
Australia (iii) - - 94,112,000 - 94,112,000 8.99%
BN B FRER 1T
Wasatch Advisors, Inc. (iv) - - 63,715,173 - 63,715,173 6.08%
Matthews International
Capital Management, LLC (v) - - 62,353,000 - 62,353,000 5.95%
Arisaig Asia Consumer
Fund Limited (“Arisaig”)
(T Arisaig]) (vi) 60,600,000 - - - 60,600,000 5.79%
Arisaig Partners (Mauritius)
Limited (“Arisaig Mauritius”)
(T Arisaig Mauritius ] ) (vii) - - 60,600,000 - 60,600,000 5.79%
Mr. Lindsay William Ernest
COOPER (“Cooper”) (viii) - - 60,600,000 - 60,600,000 5.79%

Lindsay William Ernest
COOPER %4 ([ Cooper])

*

This percentage has been compiled based on the total number
of shares of the Company in issue (i.e. 1,047,329,500 ordinary
shares) as at 31st March, 2016.

Notes:

(i)  Ms. Irene CHAN is interested in 750,000 shares held for her
daughter Alexandra CHAN who is under the age of 18.

(i)  Each of Ms. Irene CHAN, Mr. Kai-tun LO and Mr. Peter Tak-
shing LO is interested in 72,678,300 shares held by The Bank
of East Asia (Nominees) Limited which holds such shares as a
nominee for the K.S. Lo Foundation, a charitable trust. Each
of them is a trustee of the K.S. Lo Foundation and is therefore
deemed to be interested in such shares.

(iii) These interests are held by Commonwealth Bank of Australia
through its wholly-owned subsidiaries.
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other
Persons’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares and Underlying Shares (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iv) These interests are held by Wasatch Advisors, Inc. in the
capacity of investment manager.

(v)  These interests are held by Matthews International Capital
Management, LLC in the capacity of investment manager.

(vi) These interests are held by Arisaig in the capacity of beneficial
owner.

(vii) These interests are held by Arisaig Mauritius in the capacity of
investment manager of Arisaig. These interests are duplicated
by the interests disclosed in Note (vi) above.

(viii) These interests represent Cooper’s interests through his
indirect 33% interest in Arisaig Mauritius. These interests
are duplicated by the interests disclosed in Notes (vi) and (vii)
above.

All interests in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company are long positions.

Apart from the foregoing, no other interests required to be
recorded in the register kept under section 336 of the SFO
have been notified to the Company.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of the
Company as at the date of this annual report, the Company
has maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing
Rules.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and
in which a Director of the Company had a material interest,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

Remuneration for Senior Management

The emoluments of the Senior Management by bands are as
follows:

FERRKRHE @Ai%&ﬁ&ﬁ@
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(vii) ZZRE T Arisaig Mauritius B Arisaig 2 1RE&
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EHE— 0= -

(viii) 3% % #£ 3 #8 Cooper & 1B H B £ ¥ F Arisaig
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Number of

individuals

AE

HK$2,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 78 #& 2,000,001 JT &7 ¥ 4,000,000 JT 5
HK$4,000,001 to HK$6,000,000 785 4,000,001 jT E 78 ¥ 6,000,000 7T 1
HK$6,000,001 to HK$8,000,000 7B ¥ 6,000,001 T E &£ 8,000,000 J© 3
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Employees and Human Resources Policy

Details of the number and remuneration of employees,
human resources policy, development and learning of the
Group’s employees are set out in the “Sustainability Report
2.0” to be sent out togother with this Annual Report.

Indemnity of Directors

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of
the Directors of the Company is currently in force and was in
force throughout this year.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance

Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance was maintained
during the year.

Related Party Transactions

Details of material related party transactions entered into
by the Company in the normal course of business during
the year ended 31st March, 2016 are set out in note 28 to
the financial statements. In respect of each related party
transaction disclosed in note 28, the Company confirms that
it has reviewed the transactions which are complied with the
relevant requirements under the Listing Rules (if applicable).
The transactions disclosed in the section “Connected
Transactions” below fall into the definitions of continuing
connected transactions under Rule 14A of the Listing Rules,
also constitute related party transactions under the Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

Connected Transactions

(1) On 27th March, 2013, the Company’s subsidiary,
Vitasoy Australia Products Pty. Ltd. (“VAP”), entered
into a services and distribution agreement (the
“Services and Distribution Agreement”) to renew the
original and the subsequent supplementary services
and distribution agreements (“Supplementary Services
and Distribution Agreement”) with LD&D Milk Pty. Ltd.
(“LION”"), a fellow subsidiary of National Foods Holdings
Limited (“National Foods”), a substantial shareholder
holding 49% of the ordinary shares of VAP in issue.
LION would provide services to VAP in relation to soy
food and beverage products manufactured, imported
and/or distributed by VAP targeted for mainstream
market (“VAP Products”). As part of the services
provided, LION would be the exclusive distributor in
Australia of the VAP Products. In return, VAP would
pay a management fee equal to 5% of gross sales of VAP
Products distributed by LION in Australia.
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(1) R=FB—Z=5=A=1+tH x2TZH
B A F) Vitasoy Australia Products Pty. Ltd.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EEE€ &

Connected Transactions (Continued)

(1)

(Continued)

The management fee, payable monthly in arrears by
VAP to LION, is 5% of gross sales of the VAP Products
distributed under the Services and Distribution
Agreement. The estimated aggregate amounts of the
management fee for the three years ending 31st March,
2014, 2015 and 2016 are approximately AUDS5.5
million (approximately HK$44.6 million), AUD6.1
million (approximately HK$49.4 million) and AUD6.6
million (approximately HK$53.5 million) respectively.
During the year, HK$21,681,000 (2014/2015:
HK$24,577,000) was charged by LION.

The transaction constituted continuing connected
transaction under Rule 14A.76(2) of the Listing
Rules, which is only subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements and is exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement.
Announcement was made by the Company on 27th
March, 2013 in this respect.

The Directors, including the Independent Non-
executive Directors, considered that the transaction
during the year ended 31st March, 2016:

(i) was entered into in the ordinary and usual course
of business of the Company;

(ii) was conducted on normal commercial terms or
better; and

(iii) was conducted in accordance with the
Supplementary Services and Distribution
Agreement on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interest of the shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued his unqualified conclusion containing
his findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions set out above in accordance
with Main Board Listing Rule 14A.56. A copy of the
auditor’s conclusion has been provided by the Company
to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS E=&#H

Connected Transactions (Continued)

(2)

On 28th June, 2013, the Company entered into the
Distribution Agreement with LD&D Australia Pty.
Limited (“LD&D Australia”), an associate of National
Foods, which is a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules. LD&D Australia agreed to
supply to the Company the dairy and juice beverage
products for distribution in Hong Kong and Macau, and
to grant to the Company an exclusive right to distribute
the dairy and juice beverage products in Hong Kong and
Macau for a period of five years from 1st July, 2013 to
30th June, 2018.

The estimated prices to be paid by the Company to
LD&D Australia for the five years ending 30th June,
2014, 2015, 2016, 2017 and 2018 are approximately
AUD7.2 million (approximately HK$51.9 million),
AUDS8.7 million (approximately HK$62.7 million),
AUD10.1 million (approximately HK$72.8 million),
AUD10.9 million (approximately HK$78.5 million)
and AUD11.8 million (approximately HK$85.0
million) respectively. During the year, total purchases
from LD&D Australia amounted to HK$7,497,000
(2014/2015: HK$10,510,000).

The transaction constituted continuing connected
transaction under Rule 14A.76(2) of the Listing
Rules, which is only subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements and is exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement.
Announcement was made by the Company on 28th
June, 2013 in this respect.

The Directors, including the Independent Non-
executive Directors, considered that the transaction
during the year ended 31st March, 2016:

(i) was entered into in the ordinary and usual course
of business of the Company;

(ii) was conducted on normal commercial terms or
better; and

(iii) was conducted in accordance with the Distribution
Agreement on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interest of the shareholders as a whole.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EEE€ &

Connected Transactions (Continued)
(2) (Continued)

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued his unqualified conclusion containing
his findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions set out above in accordance
with Main Board Listing Rule 14A.56. A copy of the
auditor’s conclusion has been provided by the Company
to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Employee Retirement Plans
Particulars of employee retirement plans of the Group are
set out in note 22 to the financial statements.

Five Year Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
190 of the Annual Report.

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
KPMG as auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

By Order of the Board
Winston Yau-lai LO
Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 23rd June, 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B M #% S Fi 3R &

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Vitasoy International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Vitasoy International Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on pages 85 to
189, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31st March, 2016, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flow statement for the year then ended and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the Directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ¥ 3 #% B &l $R &

Auditor’s Responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at
31st March, 2016 and of the Group's financial performance
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

23rd June, 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

For the year ended 31st March, 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-E—XRFE=ZA=+—HLFE (UB¥HEH)

2016 2015
—E—REF —E-HEF
Note Hi&E $'000 F7T $'000 Tt
Revenue e A 3 5,551,898 5,051,827
Cost of sales SHER A (2,726,117) (2,541,137)
Gross profit Xl 2,825,781 2,510,690
Other revenue Hagg A 4 32,050 44,688
Marketing, selling HE - HE
and distribution expenses EoHER (1,496,807) (1,344,597)
Administrative expenses THER (468,279) (411,142)
Other operating expenses Hii&eE R (289,393) (270,375)
Profit from operations BERF 603,352 529,264
Finance costs BB A 5(a) (4,044) (5,655)
Profit before taxation ER#RATRF 5 599,308 523,609
Income tax RSBt 6(a) (34,064) (114,888)
Profit for the year FEERT 565,244 408,721
Attributable to: THALRER :
Equity shareholders of the Company  AATREFZTEA 530,616 372,079
Non-controlling interests FERES 34,628 36,642
Profit for the year EEERT 565,244 408,721
Earnings per share SRR 10
Basic K 50.9 Cents flli 35.9 Cents 1l
Diluted s 50.4 Cents flli 35.5 Cents 1lli

F92E 189 A METIAM BT 2 — 87 -

The notes on pages 92 to 189 form part of these financial
statements.

FRAAEERNPEMTAQRAREFEAZR
EFIBERME 25(b) °

Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in
note 25(b).
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

reBnkHEtEEWER

For the year ended 31st March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BEZE—XRFE=ZA=+—HLFE (UB%THEH)

2016 2015
—E—RE —E-HEF
Note HizE $’000 7T $000 ¥t
Profit for the year EEFERT 565,244 408,721
Other comprehensive income XEEHMG2EKS
for the year (after tax) (FriR#) 9
Items that will not be HEfSHEHNIE
reclassified to profit or loss: ERBZIEAR :
Remeasurement of employee EEEKENERE
retirement benefit liabilities ZEHE (11,457) 3,538
Items that may be reclassified HEVRHEENSE
subsequently to profit or loss: ERBZHEAH -
Exchange differences on translation HBREFBUIIME
of financial statements of CRy =N o g F - E
subsidiaries outside Hong Kong MELZEREZEE (41,943) (49,581)
Cash flow hedge: HEeRmE¥H
net movement in the hedging reserve ¥ {& B & F (217) 1,600
Total comprehensive income XEERXAKSEEH
for the year 511,627 364,278
Attributable to: TH AL :
Equity shareholders of the Company  &2ATREZFHA 480,523 348,865
Non-controlling interests IR R S 31,104 15,413
Total comprehensive income EEERXEKSETH
for the year 511,627 364,278
The notes on pages 92 to 189 form part of these financial FNEIBHZME I AMBHRKZ — M -
statements.

86 Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2015/16



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

n‘/T\

SHIARR

At 31st March, 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

R=Z—

RNREZRA=1+—H (LUB%FE)

2016 2015
—E—REF —E-RE
Note fi{zF  $’000 FiT $’000 FIiT $'000 7t $'000 Tt
Non-current assets ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment  #1% - E R & E 11(a)
- Interests in leasehold land - REKEEE
held for own use BEEBA
under operating leases ZHEE TR 67,568 72,099
- Investment properties -REWME 5,140 5,666
- Other property, plant - HiaE - R
and equipment RRE 2,114,264 1,775,752
2,186,972 1,853,517
Deposits for the acquisition of BEYE - KE
property, plant and equipment RBR#HZITE 11(g) 309 3,716
Intangible assets BILEE 12 4,530 4,809
Goodwill BHE 13 36,547 35,813
Bank deposits RITER 17(a) 1,406 -
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE 24(b) 101,290 32,678
2,331,054 1,930,533
Current assets N EE
Inventories FE 15 528,264 561,252
Trade and FEUBR TR
other receivables & H th R X 16 827,627 805,182
Current tax recoverable FEWRHAS 18 24(a) 8,072 5,435
Cash and bank deposits HERBITEX 17(a) 271,731 335,056
1,635,694 1,706,925
Assets of disposal group PERBBFEFEHEZ
classified as held for sale HEMAREE 18 218,078 -
1,853,772 1,706,925
Current liabilities mEERE
Trade and R
other payables R EHMESR 19 1,286,879 1,247,908
Bank loans RITER 20 139,652 125,948
Obligations under finance leases BEHE 2 & 21 1,135 1,043
Current tax payable PE{TIR AT IE 24(a) 16,675 27,324
1,444,341 1,402,223
Liabilities of disposal group SEAEBEHEZ
classified as held for sale HEARRE 18 26,039 -
1,470,380 1,402,223
Net current assets BRBEE 383,392 304,702
Total assets less current HEERTEBER
liabilities 2,714,446 2,235,235
Non-current liabilities EREBIAR
Bank loans RITER 20 207,341 27,714
Obligations under finance leases BEHE = B 21 2,134 3,238
Employee retirement EERKENERE
benefit liabilities 22(b) 28,033 10,234
Deferred tax liabilities EEHESE 24(b) 65,075 69,377
302,583 110,563
NET ASSETS PEE 2,411,863 2,124,672
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e ISR AR

At 31st March, 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
REZB-—XRFZA=+—H (UBEHE)

2016 2015
—E—RE —E-AF
Note fi{zZF  $’000 F7T $'000 F7T $'000 ¥t $'000 Tt
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BERGEE
Share capital B 25(c) 733,722 677,694
Reserves s 1,466,013 1,241,391
Total equity attributable to X OTBRIE
equity shareholders BEAEWR
of the Company k=t 2,199,735 1,919,085
Non-controlling interests JERRRES 212,128 205,587
TOTAL EQUITY =t k] 2,411,863 2,124,672
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors R-BE-RERAZ+HZHEESSHETLRE
on 23rd June, 2016 B o
Winston Yau-lai LO Roberto GUIDETTI
YA FEiES
Director Director
EE EF
The notes on pages 92 to 189 form part of these financial FNREIVEHZMENAMBHRRZ — 0 -
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
e B R

For the year ended 31st March, 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-E—XRFE=ZA=+—HLFE (UB¥HEH)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KARREREAEE
Share-based Non-

Share Capital Surplus Other General Hedging ~ Exchange  compensation Retained controlling Total

capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
RHER

Re  EARR  BHRE  EMEBR  -REE  WMEE  ENER  RERE  REW o FERER  ERAE
(note 25(d)() ~ (note 25(d)fi) - (note 25(d)i) (note 25)(v)) ~ (note 25(d)v)) - (note 25(d)(vl)
(HE&E25(0)0)  (AEsE 25000 A&k 251a)(i) (BEE25()) - (REE25(d00) (HEEE25(d)0)

NotelfE ~ $000F%  $000F%  S000Fz  $000Fz  §000Fx  §000Fm  S000Fm  S00FRm  S000Fm  S000FE  S000FE  $000FR

Balanceat 1st April, 2014 R25-mE
MA-REE 655,299 55,133 44,095 (48622) 2261 (1,600) 58,992 18538 965,565 1749661 207651 1957312

Changes inequityfortheyear:  ZEEZHARE:

Profitfor the year KEERH - - - - - - - - 372079 372079 36,642 408721

Other comprehensiveincome £ 2ENE 9 - - - - - 1,600 (28352) - 3538 (23214) (21229) (44043)
Total comprehensive income PHANRAE - - - - - 1600 (28352) - 375417 348,865 15413 %4278
Transferfromretained profits ~~ ERBEHERE

tosurplus reserve BhiR - - 4,634 - - - - - (4634)
Transferfromcapitalreserve  BEABEERZ

toretained profits RERH 25(d)() - (4087) - - - - - - 4087
Shares issued on exercise of HiTERRE

share options figfhe 25(c)i 20,395 - - - - - - (3188) - 19207 - 19207
Equity settled share-based DEVEDES

transactions E#R% - - - - - - - 11124 - 11124 - 11124
Finaldividend approved n HERRL-EEZ

respect of the previous year Rl 25(b)i - - - - - - - - (176527)  (176527) - (178527)
Interim dividend declared n ERAEEL

respect of the current year hEke 250 - - - - - - - - (33245) (33245 - 33.245)
Dividends paidto mEERER

non-controlling interests TERE - - - - - - - - - - (17477) (17477)

Balanceat 3tstMarch, 2015 R=B-1&
ZR=t-RER 677,694 51046 8709 (48622) 2261 - 30,640 26474 1130863 1919085 25587 2124672
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
e B R

For the year ended 31st March, 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-Z-XFZA=1+—HLFE (UBEHEH)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KLEREREARY
Share-hased Non-
Share Capital Surplus Other General Hedging ~ Exchange  compensation Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
Rip&R
Bt  ESHR  EBER 0 REER 0 -REE 0 HARR  ERGR 0 WEER  REEN A NBEE  feuE
(note 25(d)()) (note 25(d)i) (note 25(d)(ii) (note 25(d)iv) (note 25(d)(v)) (note 25(d)(vi)
(IREE25())) (s 25(a)i)) (M 25(d)i)) (REE25()iv)) (IR 25(d)v)) (PR 25(d)vi)
NoteM&  SO00FE  $000FT  $000FT  $000FT  $000FT  $000F™  S000FE  S000FT  SO00FE  S000FE  $000FT  S000FE
Balance at 1st April, 2015 N-%-i%
WA-ALe 677,694 51,046 4879 (48,622) 2061 30,640 26474 1130863 1,919,085 205587 2124672
Changes inequityfortheyear.  ZEEZHAEE:
Profit for the year KEERA - - 530616 530616 34,628 565,244
Other comprehensiveincome 2 ENE 9 (217) (38.419) (11457) (50,093) (3524) (53617)
Total comprehensive income ANREE 217 (38419) 519,159 480,523 31,104 511,627
Transferfromretained profits B RERAERE
tostrplus reserve BhiE 4089 4089)
Transferfromcapitalreserve  BEABEERE
toretained profits RERH 25(d)() (4087) 4087
Shares issued on exercise of RiTEERE
share options figkh 25(c)i) 56,028 (7527) 48501 48501
Equity settled share-based DEVEDES
transactions ER2R5 12393 12393 12393
Final dividend approved n HERRL-EEZ
respect of the previous year KER2 25(b)(i) 21111 1) (221.119)
Interim dividend declared in ERAERL
respect of the current year hEks 250)) (39.656)  (39,65) (39,656)
Dividends paidto HERER
non-controlling interests TERE (24563) (24563)
Balanceat 3lstMarch, 2016 RZE-RE
ZRE+-RE&R 733722 46959 52818 (48,622) 2261 217 1m) 31340 1389253 2199735 12128 2411863

The notes on pages 92 to 189 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

n‘/-_r\/\IE: M7 /)Il, ;«%

For the year ended 31st March, 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-E—XRFE=ZA=+—HLFE (UB¥HEH)

2016 2015
Note Hfi&E $'000 7T $'000 ¥t $'000 Tt $'000 F 7T

Operating activities REZFD
Cash generated from operations ~ S&EKFERE 17(b) 749,478 855,186
Tax paid EHFiE
- Hong Kong Profits Tax paid - OBEBFEH (43,340) (48,358)
- Tax paid outside Hong Kong - BHERUINEERE (75,394) (67,474)
Net cash generated from REED

operating activities e &3 630,744 739,354
Investing activities BREED
Payment for the purchase of other BEHMYE  BER

property, plant and equipment B2 IE (668,543) (521,034)
Payment for acquisition of WIERELEHE

interests in leasehold land BEEEBA

held for own use under ZHEE L

operating leases ERZHE - (39,136)
Proceeds from sale of property, HEYNE  MERRE

plant and equipment Fr85E 1,682 868
Government grants received for ~ WEBHERRE

acquisition of plant and equipment 2 B WH F# 8 30,839 -
Increase in long-term bank deposits & £$R 477703 N (1,406) -
Interest received BRAE 2,002 2,476
Net cash used in investing BEEEFRE

activities H&BE (635,426) (556,826)
Financing activities AEET
Capital element of finance ENREHEREESZ

lease rentals paid BRI G (1,006) (1,104)
Proceeds from new bank loans LR TERFTBRIE 435,114 190,324
Repayment of bank loans HERITER (242,257) (141,932)
Interest element of finance ENREHEREZ

lease rentals paid FE 5 (276) (412)
Interest paid BARANE (5,656) (5,243)
Proceeds from shares issued MITEBRERITRG

on exercise of share options FrEFE 48,501 19,207
Dividends paid to equity EARQFRERFEA

shareholders of the Company IRERE (260,612) (208,504)
Dividends paid to BEZZNE T

non-controlling interests KRS (24,563) (17,477)
Net cash used in financing MEEEMRA

activities HeRE (50,755) (165,141)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash HeRB&FEER

and cash equivalents (D) /1BmneE (55,437) 17,387
Cash and cash equivalents REA—AZHER

at 1st April RegEEH 334,580 320,425
Effect of foreign exchange EEEE

rate changes zRe (7,898) (3,232)
Cash and cash equivalents R=RA=+—HZ

at 31st March BeRBE&FEEE 17(a) 271,245 334,580

The notes on pages 92 to 189 form part of these financial FNREIBOHZME I AMBHRKRZ — 40 -

statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BRI AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBHAN - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing rules”). A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is set
out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 1(c) provides information on any changes in
accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current and prior accounting periods reflected
in these financial statements.

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31st March, 2016 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
derivative financial instruments are stated at fair value as
explained in the accounting policies set out in note 1(s).

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale are
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell (see note 1(w)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

1 FESTTEE
(a) ZHIEH

FMBEBRRBRRAABEAZ(ERMBREE
) - BEBARETRAREE (ARG 28
EmmE - (BEBMBREED) —AGEEES
S AEEG A AER BRI (EBYBRE
R - (BEBERER) K28 - APBHERF
RHEERARERBEREMERLAIZ LHR
B (TERRAU]) 2HBERE - FAREHRA2E
EETtEERMAMT

BEBEMMASCEME THIRKEI Z(F
BUBREER) YRAEEZENSTHE
BEXRERFATHERRN - EXEALZEAR
AEE o HETER S BREMKBESHNE
ZEMSF RSB ERAUBRRARR - &
BER SR 1(c) -

(b) BIF#HE 2z ImREE

BE-ZE-REZAZ+—-HULEEFEZHREH®
RRBEADPIREHMBLAR (KB AEH]) -

BRETEE 1(s) TREMBREBZITEESRM T AR
DAREFEIN > ERUYBBRRRUEERSIER

HEEE-

FRBDEERFEHECHEARRAKRAER
DAERHERE ZBEE AR (REEL(W)

ERBRAERRTS(EBUBRERER) </
BHERHEFLSHESTRRER  UREE -
BE WARIHZHBRESHE AL - A5 RR
R WEMTTREBRRERBUETERNERE
EREERERZACEZSEAMEARES
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B Rs AR MY

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHBI - LUBKFHE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 2.

(c) Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group:

e  Amendments to HKAS 19, Employee benefits: Defined
benefit plans: Employee contributions

e  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
e  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period. Impacts of the adoption of the amended
HKFRSs are discussed below:

Amendments to HKAS 19, Employee benefits: Defined
benefit plans: Employee contributions

The amendments introduce a relief to reduce the complexity
of accounting for certain contributions from employees
or third parties under defined benefit plans. When the
contributions are eligible for the practical expedient
provided by the amendments, a company is allowed to
recognise the contributions as a reduction of the service
cost in the period in which the related service is rendered,
instead of including them in calculating the defined benefit
obligation. The amendments do not have an impact on these
financial statements as the defined benefit plans operated
by the Group are wholly funded by contributions from the
Group and do not involve contributions from employees or
third parties.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BRI AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBHAN - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
and 2011-2013 Cycle

These two cycles of annual improvements contain
amendments to nine standards with consequential
amendments to other standards. Among them, HKAS 24,
Related party disclosures has been amended to expand
the definition of a “related party” to include a management
entity that provides key management personnel services
to the reporting entity, and to require the disclosure of
the amounts incurred for obtaining the key management
personnel services provided by the management entity.
These amendments do not have an impact on the Group’s
related party disclosures as the Group does not obtain key
management personnel services from management entities.

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to
the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and
in respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHBI - LUBKFHE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests
and the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans from
holders of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as financial
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position
in accordance with notes 1(m) or (n) depending on the nature
of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an

investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(j)(ii)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BRI AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBHAN - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
(e) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 1(j)(ii)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

(f) Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(i)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include land held for a currently undetermined future use
and property that is being constructed or developed for
future use as investment property.

Investment properties held under operating leases are
accounted for as if they were held under a finance lease (see
note 1(i)). Investment properties are stated in the statement
of financial position at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (see note 1(j)(ii)).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of investment
properties using the straight-line method over the shorter of
the unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful lives,
being no more than 50 years.

The useful life of investment properties is reviewed annually.

Rental income from investment properties is accounted for
as described in note 1(t)(iii).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHBI - LUBKFHE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(g) Other property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are
stated in the statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note

1()(ii):
- Freehold land and buildings;

- Land held under operating leases and buildings thereon,
where the fair values of the leasehold interest in the
land and buildings cannot be measured separately at
the inception of the lease and the building is not clearly
held under an operating lease (see note 1(i));

- Buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land, where the fair value of the building
could be measured separately from the fair value of the
leasehold land at the inception of the lease (see note
1(i)); and

- Other items of plant and equipment.

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they
are located, and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads and borrowing costs (see note 1(v)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

(i)  Freeholdland is not depreciated.

(i) Buildings situated on freehold land are depreciated
over their estimated useful lives, being no more than 25
years.

(iii) Leasehold land and buildings are depreciated over

the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their
estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BRI AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBHAN - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(g) Other property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

(iv) Other plant and equipment:

Factory machinery and equipment 4 - 25 years
Fixtures, furniture and office equipment 3 - 12 years
Motor vehicles 4 - 10years

No provision for depreciation is made for construction in
progress until such time when the assets are substantially
completed and ready for use.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately.

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.

(h) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and impairment losses (note 1(j)(ii)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives. The following intangible assets
with finite useful lives are amortised from the date they
are available for use and their estimated useful lives are as
follows:

- Brand name
- Customer list

20 vyears
7 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

(i) Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form
of alease.

1 EESTTEE @)
(g) BEtY*%¥ - BERRE (&)

(iv) EAmFERRME

IR RRE 4_25%
HE -  GZRMEBRLAERE 3-12%
"= 4_10%

EERREEC AR RAHRERA - LERR
HEIRFEHITERE -

il —EMX  BMERREFZEHHEFER 2T
ERAEH ZBEZREIEGEBIBEERE
7 MEHOUBIULRITE

BE>TERFHRENGEE (ME) KNS
R -

(h) BEEE (BEKFS)

AEERBcERVEEZRAERERIT#E
(A st AT E A FEMAR) RBEBRE (& 1)
(i) IR -

ERARAERAFH BV EERENEEMLE
AERFHANESRERNERZRNE - THRE
BERUEAFHz2EFEERRTHEAERE
e HESTAEAFHOT

- mEER 205
- EFRE 7%

BECHBARGEINSFER

() HEEE
MASEEE - HZHEEEHEMRABERX
- —RIRE RMBESEAR-BEE
ENZHEEZEN  URZH (H—RXER
—RIRZEK) RAERBEFEEE - ZEET
REBEZHFcARTEMEL  MAREZHERER
BHREZEERR -

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2015/16



Notes to the Financial Statements

e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHBI - LUBKFHE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
(i) Leased assets (Continued)

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases, with the following exceptions:

- Property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as investment property on
a property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if held under a
finance lease (see note 1(f)); and

- Land held for own use under an operating lease, the
fair value of which cannot be measured separately
from the fair value of a building situated thereon at the
inception of the lease, is accounted for as being held
under a finance lease, unless the building is also clearly
held under an operating lease. For these purposes, the
inception of the lease is the time that the lease was
first entered into by the Group, or taken over from the
previous lessee.

(i) Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance
leases, the amounts representing the fair value of the leased
assets, or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease
payments, of such assets are recognised as property, plant
and equipment and the corresponding liabilities, net of
finance charges, are recorded as obligations under finance
leases. Depreciation is provided at rates which write off
the cost of the assets over the term of the relevant lease or,
over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their
estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 years, or where
it is likely the Group will obtain ownership of the asset, the
life of the asset, as set out in note 1(f) and note 1(g).

Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance with
the accounting policy as set out in note 1(j)(ii). Finance
charges implicit in the lease payments are charged to profit
or loss over the period of the leases so as to produce an
approximately constant periodic rate of charge on the
remaining balance of the obligations for each accounting
period.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBHAN - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
(i) Leased assets (Continued)

(iii) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to profit
or loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset.

Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease
term except where the property is classified as an investment
property (see note 1(f)). Impairment losses are recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(j)(ii).

(j) Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets that are stated at cost or amortised cost are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to determine
whether there is objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

- significant changes in the technological, market,

economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHBI - LUBKFHE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
(j) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

- For trade and other receivables carried at cost or
amortised cost, the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition of the assets), where the effect
of discounting is material. This assessment is made
collectively where these financial assets share similar
risk characteristics, such as similar past due status, and
have not been individually assessed as impaired. Future
cash flows for financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment
loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding
assets directly, except for impairment losses recognised in
respect of trade debtors and bills receivable included within
trade and other receivables, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses
for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance account.
When the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off against trade
debtors and bills receivable directly and any amounts held
in the allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BRI AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBHAN - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
(j) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to identify indications that
the following assets may be impaired or, except in the case of
goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

- interests in leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases;

- investment properties;

- other property, plant and equipment;
- intangible assets;

- goodwill; and

- investment in subsidiaries in the Company’s statement
of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the recoverable
amount is estimated annually whether or not there is any
indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHBI - LUBKFHE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
(j) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit
to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit (or
group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), or value in use (if determinable).

- Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

(k) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.
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BRI AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBHAN - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(k) Inventories (Continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.

() Receivables

Receivables are initially recognised at fair value and
thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts (see note 1(j)(i)), except where the receivables are
interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

(m) Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective
interest method.

(n) Payables

Payables are initially recognised at fair value. Except for
financial guarantee liabilities measured in accordance with
note 1(r)(i), payables are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.

(o) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHBI - LUBKFHE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
(b) Employee benefits

(i)  Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

(i) Defined benefit retirement plan obligations

The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit
retirement plans are calculated by estimating the amount
of future benefit that employees have earned in return for
their services in the current and prior periods; that benefit is
discounted to determine the present value and the fair value
of any plan assets is deducted. The calculation is performed
by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.

Service cost and net interest expense/(income) on the
net defined benefit liability/(asset) are recognised in
profit and loss and allocated by function as part of “cost
of sales”, “marketing, selling and distribution expenses”,
“administrative expenses” or “other operating expenses”.
Current service cost is measured as the increase in the
present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from
employee service in the current period. When the benefits of
aplan are changed, or when a plan is curtailed, the portion of
the changed benefit related to past service by employees, or
the gain or loss on curtailment, is recognised as an expense in
profit and loss at the earlier of when the plan amendment or
curtailment occurs and when related restructuring costs or
termination benefits are recognised. Net interest expense/
(income) for the period is determined by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation
at the beginning of the reporting period to the net defined
benefit liability/(asset). The discount rate is the yield at the
end of the reporting period on high quality corporate bonds
that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the
group’s obligations.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit retirement
plans are recognised in other comprehensive income and
reflected immediately in retained earnings. Remeasurements
comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan
assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability/(asset)) and any change in the
effect of the asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability/(asset)).
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(BREBHAN - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
(b) Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii) Long service payments obligation

The Group’s net obligation in respect of lump sum long
service amounts payable on cessation of employment in
certain circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance is the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in return for their services in the current
and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine
the present value and reduced by entitlements accrued
under the Group’s retirement plans that are attributable
to contributions made by the Group. The discount rate is
the yield at the end of the reporting period on high quality
corporate bonds that have maturity dates approximating the
terms of the Group’s obligation. The obligation is calculated
by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.

(iv) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in the share-based compensation reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at grant date using the
binomial lattice model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total estimated
fair value of the options is spread over the vesting period,
taking into account the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that
is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is
charged/credited to the profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee expenses qualify for
recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share-based compensation reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the
actual number of options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the share-based compensation reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of the Company’s
shares. The equity amount is recognised in the share-based
compensation reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is included in the amount recognised in share
capital for the shares issued) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to retained profits).
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHBI - LUBKFHE)

(iii)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused
tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities and all deferred tax assets, to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences include those that will arise from
the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in
periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred
tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused
tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are
taken into account if they relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss
or credit can be utilised.

HONEREEERAR —2-1/ - FER

1

FESHBER @)

(q) Arig#

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

FARSHEBERUBHERELERRAEEN
BEZ2H APBEREEHRBEENE
BB RNEETRER  HEREGE2ER
BREERNERBIZREEEERN - £
LERT - HERES I REMEEKES
HEERERTER -

RPBEAREFRNERBBRAUERACE
MAER EEER 2B RITE 2 RHEAB
B MBEFERMNBIRZEMHAR -

EEBREE R BED BB K R ERB
ERZREL ERZEREEEREER
MEFRENV I REERGREER  H 2=
B FEEHBREETHRBAZHEBERR
ABAZHATERELE -

BT REBRZHIIMER - FREEESEE
ERFAEEHEEE (RARRRITEES
REEAZEERE 2 RRERBRF) 19
TR XFEIALRVENTRZEMEL
EAEBEE E 2 RRERBUEFN RIFE B
BARRBEREZEMELE 28 25
e =R MARE-HEREARE—ER
MEREE YRBETENTHERAG
BE R - EANELERBEEEMEERK
BEATOEHREANBEE 2 HBRRE -
EREABERVEREZRRTGHAH
AEABBERNERMELE 2ELEHEE
ER TERAR-ZR IZRERE Eﬁiﬂ
—BBEEERE-ERHEEEEH AR
ﬁgﬁ REAEABEBERIER ZE - %H
e -

107



Notes to the Financial Statements

BRI AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBHAN - LUBREEE)

(q)
(iii)

(iv)
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

(Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they
are not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries
to the extent that, in the case of taxable differences,
the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it
is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse
in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously;
or
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(BREEHBI - LUBKFHE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(g) Income tax (Continued)

(v) (Continued)

- inthe case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net
basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

(r) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities

(i)  Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer
(i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse
the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss
the holder incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value
of the guarantee is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. The fair value of financial
guarantees issued at the time of issuance is determined by
reference to fees charged in an arm’s length transaction
for similar services, when such information is obtainable,
or is otherwise estimated by reference to interest rate
differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged by
lenders when the guarantee is made available with the
estimated rates that lenders would have changed, had the
guarantees not been available, where reliable estimates
of such information can be made. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
policies applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of
any deferred income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BRI AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBHAN - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(r) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (Continued)

(i)  Financial guarantees issued (Continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred
income is amortised in profit or loss over the term of the
guarantee as income from financial guarantees issued. In
addition, provisions are recognised in accordance with note
1(r)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder of
the guarantee will call upon the Group under the guarantee,
and (ii) the amount of that claim on the Group is expected
to exceed the amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation.

(ii) Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHBI - LUBKFHE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
(s) Cash flow hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a
hedge of the variability in cash flows of a recognised asset
or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction or the
foreign currency risk of a committed future transaction, the
effective portion of any gains or losses on re-measurement of
the derivative financial instrument to fair value is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the hedging reserve. The ineffective portion of
any gain or loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If the hedging instrument is a non-derivative monetary item,
which is permitted only for foreign currency risk, then the
effective portion of the foreign currency gains or losses
on the hedging instrument also are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity
in the hedging reserve. The ineffective portion of any foreign
currency gains or losses are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results
in the recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial
liability, the associated gain or loss reclassified from equity is
to be included in the initial cost or other carrying amount of
the non-financial asset or liability.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in
the recognition of a financial asset or a financial liability, the
associated gain or loss is reclassified from equity to profit
or loss in the same period or periods during which the asset
acquired or liability assumed affects profit or loss (such as
when interest income or expense is recognised).

For cash flow hedges, other than those covered by the
preceding two policy statements, the associated gain or loss
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss in the same period
or periods during which the hedged forecast transaction
affects profit or loss.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated
or exercised, or the entity revokes designation of the
hedge relationship but the hedged forecast transaction is
still expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss at that
point remains in equity until the transaction occurs and it
is recognised in accordance with the above policy. If the
hedged transaction is no longer expected to take place, the
cumulative unrealised gain or loss is reclassified from equity
to profit or loss immediately.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BRI AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBHAN - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(t) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the
customers’ premises or picked up by customers or when
goods are shipped on board/arrived the designated port
which are taken to be the point in time when the customer
has accepted the goods and the related risks and rewards
of ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of returns, rebates and
discounts.

(ii) Service fees

Service fees are recognised when the related services are
provided. Service fees exclude value added tax or other sales
taxes.

(iii) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term.

(iv) Interestincome

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method.

(v) Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHBI - LUBKFHE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
(t) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(vi) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised
as income in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same
periods in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and consequently are
effectively recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of
the asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.

(u) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss, except those non-derivative
monetary items used to hedge foreign currency risk which
are recognised in other comprehensive income (see note

1(s)).

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates.

The results of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items, including
goodwill arising on consolidation of subsidiaries outside
Hong Kong, are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a subsidiary outside Hong Kong, the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences relating
to that subsidiary outside Hong Kong is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BRI AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBHAN - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(u) Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from monetary
items that in substance form part of the net investment in an
operation outside Hong Kong, together with any related tax,
are reclassified to equity on consolidation.

(v) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing cost as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

(w) Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as held
for sale if it is highly probable that its carrying amount will
be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use and the asset (or disposal group) is available
for sale in its present condition. A disposal group is a group
of assets to be disposed of together as a group in a single
transaction, and liabilities directly associated with those
assets that will be transferred in the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the above
critieria for classification as held for sale ar met, regardless
of whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in
the subsidiary after the sale.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHBI - LUBKFHE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(w) Non-current assets held for sale (Continued)

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of the non-current assets (and all individual
assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is brought up-to-
date in accordance with the accounting policies before the
classification. Then, on initial classification as held for sale
and until disposal, the non-current assets (except for certain
assets as explained below), or disposal groups, are recognised
at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell. The principal exceptions to this measurement
policy so far as the financial statements of the Group and
the Company are concerned are deferred tax assets, assets
arising from employee benefits and certain financial assets.
These assets, even if held for sale, would continue to be
measured in accordance with the policies set out elsewhere
in note 1.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale,
and on subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are
recognised in profit or loss. As long as a non-current asset is
classified as held for sale, or is included in a disposal group
that is classified as held for sale, the non-current asset is not
depreciated or amortised.

(x) Repair and maintenance expenditure

Repair and maintenance expenditure, including cost of
overhaul, is expensed as incurred.

(v) Related parties

(a) Aperson,or aclose member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i)  hascontrol or joint control over the Group;
(ii)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BRI AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBHAN - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(v) Related parties (Continued)

(b) Anentity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or a parent
of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

(z) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHBI - LUBKFHE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(z) Segment reporting (Continued)

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

2 Accounting judgements and estimates

Notes 13, 22 and 23 contain information about the
assumptions and their risk factors relating to goodwill
impairment assessment, defined benefit retirement liabilities
and the fair value of share options granted. Other key
sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(a) Impairment of property, plant and equipment

If circumstances indicate that the carrying values of
property, plant and equipment may not be recoverable, the
assets may be considered “impaired”, and an impairment loss
may be recognised in accordance with HKAS 36, Impairment
of assets. Under HKAS 36, these assets are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that their recorded carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. When such a decline has occurred, the carrying
amount is reduced to recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and the value in use. In determining the value in use,
expected cash flows generated by the asset are discounted
to their present value, which requires significant judgement
relating to level of sales volume, selling prices and amount
of operating costs. The Group uses all readily available
information in determining an amount that is a reasonable
approximation of recoverable amount. However, actual sales
volumes, selling prices and operating costs may be different
from assumptions which may require a material adjustment
to the carrying amount of the assets affected. Details of
the nature and carrying amounts of property, plant and
equipment are disclosed in note 11.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BRI AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBHAN - LUBREEE)

2 Accounting judgements and estimates
(Continued)

(b) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (see note 11) are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, after
taking into account the estimated residual values, if any. The
Group reviews the estimated useful lives and the estimated
residual values, if any, of the assets at least annually in
order to determine the amount of depreciation expense to
be recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives
and residual values are based on the Group’s historical
experience with similar assets and taking into account
anticipated technological changes. The depreciation expense
for future periods is adjusted if there are significant changes
from previous estimates.

(c) Impairment loss for doubtful debts

The Group maintains an allowance for doubtful debts for
estimated losses resulting from the inability of the debtors
to make required payments. The Group estimates the future
cash flows based on the ageing of the trade receivables
balance as disclosed in note 16, debtors’ credit-worthiness
and historical write-off experience. If the financial condition
of the debtors were to deteriorate, actual write-offs would
be higher than estimated.

(d) Write down of inventories

The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying amounts
of inventories as disclosed in note 15 with reference to
aged inventories analysis, expected future consumption
and management judgement. Based on these reviews, write
down of inventories will be made when the estimated net
realisable value of inventories decline below the carrying
amount. However, actual consumption may be different from
estimation and profit or loss could be affected by differences
in this estimation.
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FEWRR TN BREE 2 BR il (RIHEE 161 E) - BBA
ZERRUEMMRS B2 KBmEDL - fHeE®
AZBBIRRBAL - BEMIRE TS RMEE -

(d) #EFE

FEEMSEFEREDT AHRREAERE
BEzHE HEE REAEETEHER (R
MEISHE)  HMEFEEZEFATE2RFERER
REREE @ RIASESRIEEFB 2 & R M
FEZEE- A BERERAETREMGTER
AR - Mk dsz AR SR -
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2 Accounting judgements and estimates
(Continued)

(e) Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
and temporary deductible differences. As those deferred
tax assets can only be recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the unused tax benefits can be utilised, management’s
judgements is required to assess the probability of future
taxable profits. Management’s assessment is constantly
reviewed and additional deferred tax assets are recognised
if it becomes probable that future taxable profits will allow
the deferred tax assets to be recovered. Details of the nature
and carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are disclosed in
note 24(b).

3 Revenue and segment reporting

(a) Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and
sale of food and beverages.

Revenue represents the invoiced value of products sold, net
of returns, rebates and discounts.

(b) Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by entities, which are
organised by geography. In a manner consistent with the way
in which information is reported internally to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment, the Group
has presented the following five reportable segments. No
operating segments have been aggregated to form the
following reportable segments.

- The Mainland China business mainly represents the
manufacture and sale of soymilk, tea, juice, etc. in
Mainland China;

- The Hong Kong Operation (Hong Kong, Macau and
Exports) mainly represents the manufacture and sale of
soymilk, tea, water, juice, tofu, etc. in Hong Kong, sale
of beverages in Macau, export of beverages from Hong
Kong and the operating of tuck shops and catering
businesses;

- The Australia and New Zealand business mainly
represents the manufacture and sale of soymilk and
rice milk etc. in Australia and sales of beverages in New
Zealand;

HONEREEERAR —2-1/ - FER

2 EFHERMAR @

() ELHEEE

EEBHEEDRABABRKBER TENT K
EEMBER - ARNBELEBHEERRRNE AJREME
RABABBIERREH B RERBUEN KA S
BR AUREEEEHH AR SERBER
ZARE ARETHFRNEEE 277 - iR
RERBANEFEELEHRBEERD - FEEA
BOZEEBHEE - BEEHBREEZHERK
HEEF R R EE 24(b) K EE -

3 WARZEHRE

(a) KA
AEBZTEEKARERHERRRASA -

BAECEEmZRREERERE
e

(b) 7 EBEEE

FEEEBRUER L ERERER - £A5H
RERENASEREETREEASREREE
RERBFEZABEREN —BFHEX - 2/
JIREAREDM AEEAESHEED I
LA T 2 BHREDEB -

CEID &)

- HPERAMEREIEEETEAMEEREE
2 KREAEFER

- BEEK (BB RMERLE0O) TIBEESR
BEEREESN X Kk RIARERE
Em - ERMESE - REBHOE
IR EEBRDMRBRERELR ;

- BNRHEARMESIEREERMNEERMEE
EMRRPEER UREFERHEER
&
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3 Revenue and segment reporting
(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

- The Singapore business mainly represents the
manufacture and sale of soy related products in
Singapore and sale of soy related products in overseas;
and

- The North America business mainly represents the
manufacture and sale of tofu and pasta; and sale of
imported soymilk, imported juice, imported tea, etc. in
North America.

All of the Group’s revenue is generated from the manufacture
and sale of food and beverages.

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets, intangible assets
and current assets with the exception of deferred tax
assets, current tax recoverable and other corporate assets.
Segment liabilities include trade creditors and bills payable
attributable to the manufacture and sales activities of the
individual segments, bank loans and obligations under
finance leases managed directly by the segments with the
exception of employee retirement benefit liabilities, current
tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and other corporate
liabilities.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is “profit/
(loss) from operations”. To arrive at “profit/(loss) from
operations”, the Group’s profit is further adjusted for items
not specifically attributed to individual segments, such as
finance costs and unallocated head office and corporate
expenses. Income tax is not allocated to reporting segments.
Inter-segment sales are priced at cost plus a profit margin.
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(b) 7 EBEE (&)

- FMREREREERMREEREERT
HEERREBINEEXRTHBER &

- EEMNEBTIEEELALEIMNEEREESTRE
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() o8*E BEREE

BRAGIBREARZTIBEZ2ERREMS » &
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3 Revenue and segment reporting 3 WARDHHRE @
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) HEBEHE (&)
() Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) (i) 2P¥E EEREE (A)
Information regarding the Group'’s reportable segments as BE-ZE—R"ER-FE-HF=A=+—HLHF

provided to the Group’s most senior executive management E ﬁﬁﬁ I"]Zlﬁﬁlﬁ ) Jﬁiﬂﬁ"é‘ﬁkﬁhf ZE&
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of FERERSBREAFLEZEARESBERWT -
segment performance for the years ended 31st March, 2016

and 2015 is set out below:

Mainland China Hong Kong Operation Australia & New Zealand Singapore North America Total
HER FRRE AHRIER Wi e @it
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
ZZ-Xf C-E-Rf ZEZ-R§¥ C%-BF ZB-R§¢ C-%-RF ZE-R§¢ C-Z-EF ZB-R§ CZZ-RF ZE-RF C3-%f
$000F%  $000Fxm  $000FT $000Fm  $000FT $000Fm  $000FT $000Fm $000FE S000FT  SO00FE  $000FR

Revenuefromexternal ~ RESNEER
customers ZHA 2404155 | 1915922 | 2,069,421 | 2048335 419,807 479,079 106,058 86,489 552,457 522002 | 5,551,898 | 5,051,827
Inter-segmentrevenue  AFERA 91,920 178,574 235,609 170,773 281 660 1,279 850 - - 329,089 350,857

Reportable segment ABEID
revenue A 2496075 | 2094496 | 2305030 | 2219,108 420,088 479,739 107,337 87,339 552,457 522,002 | 5,880,987 | 5,402,684

Reportable segment AREIDZ
profit/(loss) from E8RN/
operations (E#) 281,494 199,416 380,350 355,101 84,199 84,460 10,993 8,160 (32,758) (1417) 724278 645,720

Interest income from BIER

bank deposits ZHERA 727 424 1,118 1461 156 589 1 1 - - 2,002 2475
Finance costs BERK (109) (161) (728) (389) (3,137) (4,790) - - (70) (315) (4,044) (5,655)
Depreciation and REEZRE

amortisation REs

for the year (84,877) (67,040) (93,890) (86,081) (10,188) (23,634) (3,215) (4.691) (18,651) (17,119 | (210,821)]  (198,565)
Other material EHEX

non-cash e FHEER
- Equity settled - BB A

share-based fIRER
payment expenses ZER (405) (456) (2,519) (2,106) - - - - - - (2,916) (2,562)

Reportable segment ARERD
assets CEE 2,125,058 | 1575290 | 2,868,189 | 2,026,141 350,193 334,996 102,129 95,908 263,671 250,712 | 5,709,240 | 4,283,047

Reportable segment ARESD
liabilities AR 1,394,335 | 1,014,383 774,536 574,802 116,569 124,026 16,988 12,326 385,193 98,535 | 2,687,621 | 1824072

Additions tonon-current  FEEHIE
segment assets ZHRE
during the year SHEE 593,121 357,728 81,985 100,172 19,299 18,561 3861 7,905 12,759 27,584 711,025 511,950
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3 Revenue and segment reporting

(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

3 WARDEHRE @)

(b) 7 EBEE (&)

(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, (i) ARELIBRA - B - EEREEZ
profit or loss, assets and liabilities ¥ER
2016 2015
—E—REF —E—FHEF
$'000 7T $'000 Tt
Revenue A
Reportable segment revenue AREDE 2 WA 5,880,987 5,402,684
Elimination of inter-segment revenue 7 3B R U A 2 i 84 (329,089) (350,857)
Consolidated revenue HEWA 5,551,898 5,051,827
2016 2015
—E—REFE —E-HF
$°000 ¥7T $000 Tt
Profit or loss "a
Reportable segment profit/(loss) BRE D2 B HR,
from operations (E518) 724,278 645,720
Finance costs mE R A (4,044) (5,655)
Unallocated head office AAMZBRATR
and corporate expenses T¥EH (120,926) (116,456)
Consolidated profit before taxation RERBATRF 599,308 523,609
2016 2015
—E—-R¥F —E-IF
$°000 7T $'000 ¥t
Interest income FIRUWKA
Reportable segment interestincome ~ BIRED W2 M E WA 2,002 2,475
Unallocated head office AAMZBRATR
and corporate interest income ER S WA - 1
Consolidated interest income SFERBEWA 2,002 2,476
2016 2015
—E—RFE —ZE-I0F
$°000 7T $000 Tt
Equity settled share-based DERraARERZER
payment expenses
Reportable segment expenses BRESBZEH 2,916 2,562
Unallocated head office AAMZBATR
and corporate expenses TEER 9,477 8,562
Consolidated equity settled URBABARERZ
share-based payment expenses weER 12,393 11,124
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o ~\ 37
3 Revenue and segment reporting WARDEHHRE (@)
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) T EERE ()
(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, BARESBBRA - B  EERAGBZ
profit or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued) HER ()
2016 2015
—E—-R¥F —E-IOF
$'000 F7T $'000 F 7t
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets BAREIBZEE 5,709,240 4,283,047
Elimination of inter-segment 2 EB [ FE UL =R
receivables 2 i gE (1,635,884) (685,158)
4,073,356 3,597,889
Deferred tax assets EERBEE 101,290 32,678
Current tax recoverable FEWRHAR 8 8,072 5,435
Unallocated head office RAOM2BRARR
and corporate assets TEEE 2,108 1,456
Consolidated total assets mEBEE 4,184,826 3,637,458
2016 2015
—"EF —
$°000 7T $000 T 7t
Liabilities afE
Reportable segment liabilities BRESBZEE 2,687,621 1,824,072
Elimination of inter-segment payables %3 & F& {5 7% =~ i 88 (1,049,399) (443,165)
1,638,222 1,380,907
Employee retirement benefit liabilities EERKEIEE 28,033 10,234
Deferred tax liabilities EZEHEEE 65,075 69,377
Current tax payable R AR E 16,675 27,324
Unallocated head office RAMZBELATR
and corporate liabilities TEEE 24,958 24,944
Consolidated total liabilities mABMEE 1,772,963 1,512,786
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3 Revenue and segment reporting
(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(iii) Geographic information

The following table sets out information about the
geographic location of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment, deposits for the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets and goodwill (“specified non-
current assets”). The geographic location of the specified
non-current assets is based on the physical location of the
asset, in the case of property, plant and equipment and
deposits for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment,
and the location of the operation to which they are allocated,
in the case of intangible assets and goodwill.

3 WARDEHRE @)

(b) 7 EBE#HE (4)
(iii) HEEHR

TR EBEEEYE - BERRHE - BEY
X BERREZITE BREERBE ([H
EHFERBDEE]) cHBNEZER - REBEFE
RBEEMS HAYE BERRBRBEEY
X BERREZTE AMEBEVENREZE
EBRBHEE MRELEEREEMSA
EHERERBREN -

Specified
non-current assets
WEFRHEE
2016 2015
—E—REF —E-HF
$'000 FIT $'000 ¥t
Mainland China o A i 1,402,372 946,239
Hong Kong Operation BREK 560,564 573,295
Australia and New Zealand BN R F 195,363 184,086
Singapore 003K 70,059 68,021
North America b =M - 126,214
2,228,358 1,897,855

The revenue from external customers and specified non-
current assets of the Group attributed to Hong Kong, the
Group’s place of domicile, amounted to $1,863,386,000
(2015: $1,851,356,000) and $552,901,000 (2015:
$566,813,000) respectively.

124

FR(AKEMAEN) GXAKERBIEE
EZBMARAERERERRDEES AR
1,863,386,0007t (= F—HF: 1,851,356,0007T)
§552,901,0005t (=2 —H £ : 566,813,0005T) °
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4 Other revenue 4 HA
2016 2015
—E—RE —ZE-HEF
$’000 ¥t $'000 F 7t
Government grants (note) BUF#BD (FfFaE) 8,283 17,174
Scrap sales BEREE 8,611 8,864
Rental income HEWA 4,191 4,880
Interest income FEW A 2,002 2,476
Reversal of long outstanding REKREEEMmE
other payables BT 1,720 1,875
Sundry income HMIEW A 7,243 9,419
32,050 44,688
Note: B &E -
Government grants mainly relate to value-added tax refunded BREHEEEFEARENE ([HE]) BFEE

and other financial assistance received from the government of ZEEHEEENRZEMSEEDR RBERER
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”). Other government grants BREBEWE Z EABUTFHEEICRIEBEE 2 RA KR (M
received in relation to the acquisition of plant and equipment were F11(a)) °

netted off against the cost of the related assets (note 11(a)).
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5 Profit before taxation 5 BREANEF

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BB AIGRIEHIRR (5T A) -
(crediting):

2016 2015
—E—REF —E—8F
$'000 F7¢ $000 Tt
(a) Finance costs: (a) WTREEF:
Interest on bank loans MITERZFE 5,656 5,243
Finance charges on obligations MEHEEKZ
under finance leases B%ER 276 412
5,932 5,655
Less: interest expense capitalised W WERER
into property, plant and WE - BERRE
equipment* ZREXH* (1,888) -
4,044 5,655
*  The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 1.47% * WERENBERTREF 14792 EEFE
per annum (2015: Nil). (ZZE—HF ' &) -
2016 2015
—E—RE —E-HEF
$’'000 FiT $'000 F 7t
(b) Staff costs: (b)) BIR®*:
Contributions to defined REMTEAKETE
contribution retirement plans Z AR 64,015 49,716
Net expenses recognised LTHEREZEER
in respect of: BRFHE:
- retirement gratuites -EBRE
(note 22(c)(v)) (FfFEE 22(c)(v)) 4,036 4104
- long service payments - RER¥ES 457 1,017
Total retirement costs IR KRR 68,508 54,837
Equity settled share-based DR BNRERZER
payment expenses (note 23) (FfaE 23) 12,393 11,124
Salaries, wages and other benefits e IERHMER 1,197,248 1,040,749
1,278,149 1,106,710
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5 BRBADEF &)

5 Profit before taxation (Continued)

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/
(crediting): (Continued)

BB EIEREHIER (5T A) © (#)

2016 2015
—RE —E-AF
$'000 F7¢ $000 Tt
(c) Other items: (c) HMIEA :
Amortisation of interests in RELEHEESEE
leasehold land held for own use BERAZHEE T hER
under operating leases 2N 1,607 1,000
Amortisation of intangible assets B EE2#E 367 2,059
Depreciation e
- Investment properties -REWE 526 526
- Assets acquired under finance leases - UBEHEBAZEE 248 1,166
- Other assets -HttEE 208,073 193,814
Recognition of impairment losses e BR RN % H i FE UL X
on trade and other receivables ZREEE 141 229
Recognition/(reversal) of impairment M¥E - BERRE
losses on property, plant and ZEEEBE
equipment (£mE) 679 (224)
Auditors’ remuneration ZEME <
- Audit services - B R
- Provision for the current year -REEZEE 5,121 5,234
- Under/(over)-provision -LUEEEZBEBRES
in respect of prior year (EBEERE) 56 (545)
- Tax services - BRI 193 289
- Other services - H AR # 755 378
Operating lease charges: REHEER -
minimum lease payments BRIEAESR
- Hire of properties -BRME 86,088 73,159
- Hire of factory machinery - T T Ries
and equipment R 858 873
- Contingent rent -RAESE 203 791
- Other assets -HtEE 1,056 434
Net loss on disposal of property, HENE  BE
plant and equipment EREZEEFR 5,110 4,410
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss SNE (k3s) BB R (3,875) 1,289
Net loss on forward exchange contracts FEIEEAE T T E 2R
not designated as hedging instruments SNE& QN 2 FEE 2,190 -
Cost of inventories (note 15(b)) BFEERZA (FEF 15(b)) 2,808,139 2,607,466
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. . M AL 32 /8
6 Income taxin the consolidated 6 HmEERmRZMEBH
statement of profit or loss
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) ZEBEmARHBENT :
profit or loss represents:
2016 2015
—EB—RE —E—RF
$°000 T $000 Tt
Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax REIRIE - FHFIFN
Provision for the year FARE 50,095 44,306
Over-provision in respect of prior years U E 2 B RE (54) (20)
50,041 44,286
Current tax - Outside Hong Kong HEMIE - FELIME
Provision for the year FREE 55,984 71,781
Under-provision in respect of DEFEEZ
prior years BETE 61 798
56,045 72,579
Deferred tax EFERIA (72,022) (1,977)
34,064 114,888
Notes: B EE
()  The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2016 is calculated (i) ZE—REzEBANSHRBERRFRZMATE
at 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for EBBRNLL165% (=B —FF : 16.5%) 2B =R
the year. & -
(i) In accordance with the relevant PRC corporate income (i) WRBAEEPETEFRSHEE ZFRARERES
tax laws, regulations and implementation guidance notes, g BARAQARZFI - L - EEREE
the statutory income tax rate applicable to the Company’s MBARZEERSHER25% °
subsidiaries in Shenzhen, Foshan, Shanghai and Wuhan is
25%.
In addition, the Group is subject to withholding tax at the rate o BRIEBKARER > SRFEEERSEE
of 10% (unless reduced by treaty) on distribution of profits FEMECEUR-_ZEZLtF+-_A=+—H#%
generated after 31st December, 2007 from the Group's EEZRAEL Z22RIE 10% B R HMENH -
foreign-invested enterprises in the PRC. As more than 25% of HRAEEFMETRNIECEDER25% EARH
the capital of all the Group’s foreign-invested enterprises in —EREBTFMRLZMEBLRES  HMtEL
the PRC is owned by a Hong Kong incorporated subsidiary, a ENBRFBERAZRELS% - REECRILIBE
rate of 5% is applicable in the calculation of this withholding FENMECENRTBRRRETUAR=ZBZLE
tax. Deferred tax liabilities have been provided for in this TZA=ZT—HEAEEZBEANDRZREFTIRIE
regard based on the expected dividends to be distributed EBIBEEE -

from the foreign-invested enterprises in the PRC in the
foreseeable future in respect of the profits generated after
31st December, 2007.
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6 Income taxin the consolidated 6

statement of profit or loss (Continued)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss represents: (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iii)  Taxation for subsidiaries outside Hong Kong and Mainland (iii)
China is charged at the appropriate current rates of taxation
ruling in the relevant tax jurisdictions.

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and

MyEE ()

mEBERRZMEBH @

(a) HEBmEHEBUT @ (&)

BFREE A SN E 2 B A F 2z IR AR
FRARERZERECRITERARRIEH -

(b) HEXHEE BRI ABAHESNE

accounting profit at applicable tax rates: ZHR
2016 2015
—E—RE —E-HEF
$'000 F3T $000 Tt
Profit before taxation BRB A& R 599,308 523,609
Notional tax on profit before taxation, ZEBHREBERLZEEEER 2
calculated at the rates applicable FIEBBRAERBIANER 2
to profits in the tax jurisdictions ERBIE
concerned 117,733 104,413
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A X H 2 #i #5 82 & 2,960 9,093
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue FRBMA BB L (1,620) (778)
Withholding tax of PRC subsidiaries ~ FEKEB QT 2 ENH 4,024 5,459
Tax effect of current year’s unused REFERBRZAEABRKEES
tax losses not recognised ZRBEE 2,763 488
Tax effect of current year’s deductible KNEERBRZANBRETRFEE 2
temporary differences Bxsge
not recognised 8,514 29,216
Tax effect of recognition of tax loss BRENRERZHIEER
not previously recognised ZHBEHE (54,156) -
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses MERALARBERZHEEER
and other temporary differences PHMEREECBKTE
not previously recognised (38,439) (30,697)
Net under-provision in respect DEFEZRETRFE
of prior years 7 778
Others Hith (7,722) (3,084)
Actual tax expense BEHIESH 34,064 114,888
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7 Emoluments of Directors

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the

7 EEZME
BBEE (D TRA) 2 383(1) R (AT (BB

EERmER) 8O F2BRBE2ESHEW

Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of I
Directors) Regulation are as follows:
2016
ZE-iE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-
Directors' and benefits Discretionary scheme based
fees inkind bonuses contributions Sub-total payments Total
fid o R mig & HRiE
ESHe REMEN SRR iR Mt BRZAR )
(note)
(M&E)
$000FT  $000F®  $000FT  $000FT  $000FT  $000FT  $°000FT
Executive Directors BiTES
Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO BEREXE 231 4,904 3,808 314 9,257 3532 12,789
Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI BEEELE 116 6,089 3,676 216 10,097 3,309 13,406
Non-executive Directors FUTES
Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO BRELt 131 - - - 131 - 131
Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO ERRZT 131 - - - 131 - 131
Independent Non-executive BiknfTEs
Directors
Dr. the Hon. Sir David Kwok-po L ZEEEL 413 - - - 413 - 413
Mr. Valiant Kin-piu CHEUNG REERE 426 - - - 426 - 426
Mr. Jan PS. ERLUND JanPS.ERLUND %4 402 = = = 402 - 402
Mr. Anthony John Liddell BEELE
NIGHTINGALE
(appointed on 26th June, 2015) (A=E-1FxA
Z+XAREZEE) 307 - - - 307 - 307
2,157 10993 7,484 530 21,164 6,841 28,005
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7 Emoluments of Directors (Continued)

7 EEzME @

2015
—E-1E
Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-
Directors’  and benefits Discretionary scheme based
fees inkind bonuses  contributions Sub-total payments Total
R 1.1 B 2N DV E]
EEhe REWEN  BHeR4 A Nt EBRZAR h
(note)
(MzE)
$000Fx  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000Fxk  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000F7k
Executive Directors BEs
Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO BERERE 214 4,965 3459 299 8,937 3,314 12,251
Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI EEELE 107 6,848 3,340 206 10,501 3,693 14,194
Non-executive Directors FUTES
Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO ERART 122 - - - 122 - 122
Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO ERRLL 122 - - - 122 - 122
Independent Non-executive BIkR{TES
Directors
Dr.the Hon. Sir David Kwok-poLl ~ ZEIEH+ 383 - - - 383 - 383
Mr. lain F. BRUCE hELTEE
(retired on 4th September, 2014) (R=Z-mF
NEEBRE) 176 - - - 176 - 176
Mr. Valiant Kin-piu CHEUNG REERE 378 - - - 378 - 378
Mr. Jan PS. ERLUND JanPS.ERLUND &4 372 - - - 372 - 372
1,874 11,813 6,799 505 20,991 7,007 27,998
Note: MieE

These represent the estimated value of share options granted
to the Directors under the Company’s share option scheme. The
value of these share options is measured according to the Group’s
accounting policies for share-based payment transactions as set
out in note 1(p)(iv) and, in accordance with that policy, includes
adjustments to reverse amounts accrued in previous years where
grants of equity instruments are forfeited prior to vesting.

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal terms
and number of options granted, are disclosed under the paragraph
“Share option scheme” in the directors’ report and note 23.

HONEREEERAR —2-1/ - FER

DUERORBERNRERBA AR ZBRESERT
EECEREZMGTEE LWEBREZEELRE
Y EE Up)(iv) FrB A KB AR O BN RER 2 X 5 HF
RzegstBEMTE  MERZBEK  SFEUBEF
ERAMARHNREATAERBAC AR EZR

EEE

BEBYEFNFHE (BREBRHZBREZ T EHKN
RBE) RESSRE [ BRESS | —RRME23H

W -
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BRI AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBHAN - LUBREEE)

8 Individuals with highest emoluments 8 EmEeMEAL

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two ELEBREMeALTP MBE(ZE—HF W
(2015: two) are Directors whose emoluments are disclosed B)AEE BECCHNERAMTE7HIRE - Hek

in note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the SER(ZE—HF  =R) BeMes AL zE#E
other three (2015: three) individuals are as follows: BB

2016 2015
—E—RFE —E-AF
$’000 F7T $'000 7t
Salaries and other emoluments FEeRHEMHE 11,771 10,135
Retirement scheme contributions BRIRET B 533 471
Discretionary bonuses BB Rz B AL 4,413 4268
Share-based payments DU BER IR 4,368 3,550
21,085 18,424

The emoluments of the three (2015: three) individuals with ZHE(ZE—HE:=Z8) BeaMEe AT @S
the highest emoluments are within the following bands: NFLATAER -

2016 2015

—E—REF —E-hF

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AB A

$4,500,001 to $5,000,000 4,500,001 Jt # 5,000,000 7T - 1
$6,000,001 to $6,500,000 6,000,001 Jt £ 6,500,000 JT 1 1
$6,500,001 to $7,000,000 6,500,001 jt £ 7,000,000 J© 1 -
$7,000,001 to $7,500,000 7,000,001 jt # 7,500,000 JT - 1
$7,500,001 to $8,000,000 7,500,001 jt £ 8,000,000 Tt 1 -
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(BREBHBN - LUBREEE)

9 Other comprehensive income

(a) Tax effects relating to each component of

9 HittExEWE

(a) BERMEE Wi %500 2 HEF
&

other comprehensive income: = -
2016 2015
t- e —Z2-1%
Before tax Tax  Net-of-tax Before tax Net-of-tax
amount benefit amount amount expense amount
RiRsSE RENE MBREAKE BREASHE BEER NRiEsE
$'000 ¥7¢ $'000 F7T $°000 ¥t $'000 ¥t $'000 F 7t $'000 Tt
Exchange differences RBEEERUME
on translation of financial B R 2K EE
statements of subsidiaries MEENERZH
outside Hong Kong (41,943) - (41,943) (49,581) (49,581)
Cash flow hedge: HEeREHMT
net movement in the HhRETF
hedging reserve 25 (260) 43 (217) 1,916 1,600
Remeasurement of employee B2 RKBHNEE
retirement benefit liabilities ~ ZEH & (13,704) 2,247 (11,457) 4295 3,538
(55,907) 2,290 (53617)|  (43370) (44,443)
(b) Components of other comprehensive income: (b) BtEE Kz 254 -
2016 2015
—E—REFE —E-hF
$'000 F7¢ $000 Tt
Cash flow hedges: HEREH P :
Effective portion of changes FRERZEHPIA
in fair value of hedging instruments DRERE 2 EHRBH
recognised during the year (1,114) 1,010
Amounts transferred to initial HBFEHHIEE &
carrying amount of hedged items REBEZ2HE 854 906
Net deferred tax credited/(charged) &t A (1) Ef2EKE =2
to other comprehensive income EER B S 43 (316)
Net movement in the hedging reserve FRAEMEEINZER 2
during the year recognised i FEFEE
in other comprehensive income (217) 1,600

HONEREEERAR —2-1/ - FER
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(BREBHAN - LUBREEE)

10 Earnings per share

(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
of $530,616,000 (2015: $372,079,000) and the weighted
average number of 1,042,467,000 ordinary shares (2015:
1,037,669,000 ordinary shares) in issue during the year,
calculated as follows:

10 BREF

(a) BRELXEF

BREXBANDREADARESHAEG G

#530,616,000 T ( — & — & % : 372,079,000

) RFRACRTEBERZNEFHIRE

1,042,467,000 % (=2 —F F : 1,037,669,000
EER) stH - HtEW T

Weighted average number of ordinary shares ERERZNETERE

2016 2015

—E—RE —E-AF

Number of Number of

shares shares

BinEE BHEE

’000 FB% '000 F &

Issued ordinary shares at 1st April REUE—BZERTZER 1,039,515 1,033,976

Effect of share options exercised EBITHEEREZSE 2,952 3,693
Weighted average number of R=EA=+—HzEBRZ

ordinary shares at 31st March INREE IR E
(note 10(b)) (B & 10(b)) 1,042,467 1,037,669

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
of $530,616,000 (2015: $372,079,000) and the weighted
average number of 1,053,076,000 ordinary shares (2015:
1,046,742,000 ordinary shares) after adjusting for the
effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, calculated as
follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)

(b) EREEET

EREBEENDBEARDITREZEAEBEER
530,616,000 7T (=8 — FH 4 : 372,079,000 7T.)
RREABERERF 2T ERZEEMES
ARZEZERMETFHRE1,053,076,000 i
(ZZ2—FH%F :1,046,742,000 R EZER) 51 & -
HErEwT -

BEERZMEFIRE (#5F)

2016 2015
—E—RE —E-hF
Number of Number of
shares shares
BB BHEE
000 T B% '000 F A%
Weighted average number of R=A=+—HzEBERZ
ordinary shares at 31st March INREF IR E
(note 10(a)) (FfF=E 10(a)) 1,042,467 1,037,669
Effect of deemed issue of BERERBEARATZ
ordinary shares under the IS AR RECHE
Company’s share option scheme DEESRBRTEBR
for nil consideration 21 10,609 9,073
Weighted average number of R=A=+—Hz2EBERZ
ordinary shares (diluted) IR E (#5E)
at 31st March 1,053,076 1,046,742
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(BREEHBI - LUBKFHE)

11 Property, plant and equipment

11 W% - BERRE

(a) (a)
Interests in
Other property, plant and equipment leasehold
% BERZE land held
Land and Factory ~ Fixtures, for own use
buildings ~ machinery furniture under
held for and  and office Motor Construction Investment  operating
ownuse equipment  equipment vehicles inprogress  Sub-total  properties leases Total
RELe
20 RE. HERER
Rz IRH#E AR ERZEE
1HREF ke BLERE nE EEIR N REME 1HBE )
$000Fm $000Fm $000Fm $000Fm $000Fm $000Fm $000Fm $000Fm  §000F 7w
Cost: BE:
At 1st April, 2014 RZE-MEMA-A 855952 2087797 241716 107560 33013 3326038 22,698 41,280 3390016
Exchange adjustments EiRE (21,768)  (59,390) (1,899) (789) (2252)  (86,098) - 55 (86,043)
Additions AE 66,915 136,965 17,950 18028 250558 490416 - 39136 529,552
Transfer B 12963 97,562 1,697 - (112220 - - - -
Disposals HE (728)  (57,45) (5723) (9,785) - (73481) - - (73481)
At 31st March, 2015 RZE-E§=fA=1-H 913334 2205689 253741 115014 169,097 3,656,875 22,698 80471 3,760,044
Accurnulated amortisation, RS FER
depreciation and BEER:
impairment losses:
At 1st April, 2014 R-E-MEMA-A 360521 1201316 161,785 75,842 - 1799464 16,506 7358 1,823,328
Exchange adjustments EidE (5,476) (37,976) (1,061) (381) - (44.894) - 14 (44.880)
Charge for the year REERERTE 30692 137727 20,189 6,372 - 194,980 526 1,000 196,506
Reversal of impairment losses HEFREE (168) (56) - - - (224) - - (224)
Written back on disposals HEBRE (244) (52752 (5,600) (9,607) - (68,203) - - (68,203)
At 31st March, 2015 RZB-1f=fA=1-H 385325 1248259 175313 72,226 - 1881128 17,032 8372 1,906,527
Net book value: BESE
At 31st March, 2015 R-E-RF=A=1-8 528009 957430 78428 42,788 169097 1,775,752 5,666 72099 1853517

HONEREEERAR —2-1/ - FER

135



Notes to the Financial Statements

BRI AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBHAN - LUBREEE)

11 Property, plant and equipment

(Continued)

11 W% - BERRE @)

(a) (Continued) (a) (#&)
Interestsin
Other property, plant and equipment leasehold
A% BERRNH land held
Land and Factory  Fixtures, for own use
buildings  machinery  furniture under
held for and  and office Motor Construction Investment  operating
ownuse  equipment  equipment vehicles inprogress  Sub-total  properties leases Total
it
Kat EE. BERAE
BRZ  IR## R BRZER
THREF Ritfi  MOERGE RE  ERIR Mt BEWE  LiRS &t
$000FT $000FT $000FT $000FT $000FT $000FT $000FTE $000FE  §000FT
Cost: BE:
At 1st April, 2015 R-E-REMA-A 913334 2205689 253741 115014 169097 3,656,875 22,698 80471 3,760,044
Exchange adjustments ERAR (16,067)  (34,247) (1,646) (1,018) (9461)  (62439) - (3,289)  (65,728)
Additions AE 17,654 149279 20,000 24454 502953 714,340 - - T14340
Transfer B 14237 290,796 4,386 - (309,419) 5 = 5 5
Disposals HE (777)  (37,092) (7,832) (8,716) - (54,417) - - (54,417)
Classified asassetsheld forsale ~ AEBEELEEE
(note 18) (H&E18) (76,268)  (257,421)  (21,376) (644) (1,869)  (357,578) - - (357,578)
At 31st March, 2016 RZE-RE=A=1-A 852,113 2,317,004 247273 129090 351,301 3,896,781 22,698 77,182 3,996,661
Accurnulated amortisation, Rith FER
depreciation and HEBR:
impairment losses:
At 1st April, 2015 RZE-1EMA-A 385,325 1248259 175313 72,226 - 1881123 17,032 8372 1,906,527
Exchange adjustments ERAZ (5,487) (15,127) (857) (546) - (22,017) - (365) (22,382)
Charge for the year AEERERNE 30980 147539 21569 8,233 - 208321 52 1607 210454
Recognition of impairment losses BB ERE - 679 - - - 679 - - 679
Written back on disposals HERRE (188)  (33,980) (5,291) (8,161) - (47,620) = 5 (47,620)
Classifiedasassetsheld forsale  ABBEFHEEE
(note 18) (Hiz 18) (52,024)  (164,267)  (24,158) (520) - (237969) - - (237969)
At 31st March, 2016 RZE-~EZA=1-H 358,606 1,183,103 169,576 71,232 - 1782517 17,558 9,614 1,809,689
Net book value: BESE -
At 31st March, 2016 RZE-~EZA=1-H 493507 1,133,901 77,697 57858 351,301 2,114,264 5,140 67,568 2,186,972

RHPBEBFUERHREREBERERRENBUT®E
B1% 30,839,000t (ZE—HF : &) S +EE
BEZBRANR -

Government grants of $30,839,000 (2015: $Nil) were
received from the PRC government in relation to the
acquisition of plant and equipment and were netted off
against the cost of the related assets.
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11 Property, plant and equipment

(Continued)

(b) The analysis of net book value of properties is

11 W% - BERRE @)

(b) YEZREFEZ LT -

as follows:
2016 2015
—E—REF —E-HF
$°000 ¥7¢ $000 Tt
In Hong Kong BE
- medium-term leases - FHIFAL 131,309 140,221
Outside Hong Kong FRUMNME
- freehold - KAEERE 77,230 99,307
- long-term leases - REIFEAY 11,040 11,194
- medium-term leases - REAFAY 346,567 354,900
- short-term leases - BEEY 69 152
566,215 605,774
Representing: Rk :
Land and buildings held for own use BEEERAZLHREF 493,507 528,009
Investment properties REWE 5,140 5,666
Interests in leasehold land held RELEHEREE
for own use under operating leases BERZHEE I hiER 67,568 72,099
566,215 605,774

(c) Property, plant and equipment held under

finance leases

In addition to the leasehold land classified as being held
under finance leases, the Group holds factory machinery and
equipment under finance leases expiring from one to seven
years. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

At the end of the reporting period, the net book value of the
factory machinery and equipment held under finance leases
of the Group amounted to $3,269,000 (2015: $3,494,000).
The Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured by
the lessor’s charge over the leased assets.

HODNEREESRAR —F-8/—X

(c) UBEHEEFEZYRE BERRE

BRIMELBERERG2HAE LI FEEE
BR-ZLtFAINHMMERT  FEITHE:S
k& ZEHETESFERNARAEE -

REHRH AEEUREEESE 2 THREBER
E-HF:
3,494,0007t) - AEERBEMERE 2 BRI

R ZREFER3,269,0007T (=

HEAZBEEERCHFRR -
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(BREBHAN - LUBREEE)

11 Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

(d) Property, plant and equipment leased out
under operating leases

The Group leases out investment properties under an
operating lease. The leases runs for an initial period of three
years, with an option to renew the lease after that date at
which time all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases
includes contingent rentals.

The Group’s total future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating lease are receivable as follows:

11 W% - BERRE @)

(d) RELEHEHEL Y  BERRK
-}

AEEUEERTAHRENE - ZSHEDNS
RHY=F YERAEBREEIYARELR BR
FIBRREIEHNEE - ZFHEXEBEIR
HE -

FEERBERABRzELEHEEIRBR Z&
BERAENREEOT

2016 2015

—EB—RE —E—RF

$°000 T $000 Tt

Within one year —FR 833 1,910

(e) The fair value of investment properties

The fair value of investment properties at 31st March, 2016
is $53,800,000 (2015: $57,450,000) which is estimated
at their open market value by reference to recent market
transactions in comparable properties (2015: same basis
of valuation adopted). The valuation was carried out by an
independent firm of surveyors, Roma Appraisals Limited,
who have among their staff members of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in the location
and category of the properties being valued.

The fair value measurement is categorised as a Level 3
valuation under the three-level fair value hierarchy as
defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into
which a fair value measurement is classified is determined
with reference to observability and significance of the inputs
used in the valuation technique as follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level
1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement
date;

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data
are not available; and

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs.

138

(e) REWRZLAE

REMENR-ZB—XE=ZA=1+—-HZARES
53,800,000t (=& —HF : 57,450,000 t) °
RSB EREYWEZEHTERSZRERAHN
TEEEETEY (ZE—FE  KEE—{4E
HE) HEDBEBIIEMTESERIGE
RARET HEMBEATEIEMES S
E - EFAEVECHERENEEHBERE
gﬁ °

AREFERB(FREVBEREERD) F13%
[AREFEIMREZ=ZRAAERBIERSE
=REE - BEAAREFEIBZERIESZ
MTMEEREFABE2IBREEREEMKE

=

&£

- B-RMEE:EEAS-RBARE (DR
AEAREEENRERNERT S ZRER
BBE) SFEZDRE

- BORME: ERAE-R@ABE (BREE
EIF-RUBRmABE) B REH
ERATUEEGARBITEZQNE - T
BEEG ABBAETESRBZBARE &

- FDRMEE: EREXTTEEGARIET

BeARE-
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11 Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

(e) The fair value of investment properties
(Continued)

The fair value of investment properties is determined by
using direct comparison approach with reference to the
market price of comparable properties and adjusted for
building quality and timing of the reference transaction. The
significant unobservable input in the fair value measurement
is the property-specific adjusting rate, which ranged from
0.95t0 1.05(2015:0.97 to 1.06).

(f)  Property, plant and equipment pledged
against bank loans
The following items of property, plant and equipment are

pledged to secure certain bank loans or bank facilities
granted to the Group (note 20).

11 W% - BERRE @)

(e) REYEZANIE (&)

REMEZAAREBEDSETEEYEZHEMER
BERELMEBLAEE  IRSERGZETEERE
BELHAZ - DABEFEZERTTHER A
HEDENMERAER  NF09I95F1.05(=F
—HE 1 0.97F1.06) °

(f) BRITESBHEZYF  BERRE

LT3 - MERRERE S TEAF  WERS
SEERETRITENRHRITEE (HEFE20) -

2016 2015
—E—REF —E-HF
$'000 F7T $000 3t
Net book value of pledged assets: BHAEEZREFEE
Factory machinery and equipment ITRMBERRE 67,871 72,163

(g) Deposits for the acquisition of property, plant
and equipment

As at 31st March, 2016, the Group paid deposits totalling
$309,000 (2015: $3,716,000) to acquire property, plant
and equipment. The remaining amount of the consideration
for the acquisition is included in capital commitments (note
27(a)).

HONEREEERAR —2-1/ - FER

(8) BEYF BERZREZTE

R-ZE—XRF=ZA=+—HB TX5EHBEEY
¥ BEERREMIZAET£E61£309,0005w (=
T—FHF :3,716,0007T) - BEREZHRT L5
FFABEREE (FiE27(a)) ©
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12 Intangible assets

12 BILEE

Brand Customer
name list Total
mhE BB EFRE #et
$'000 ¥t $'000 ¥t $'000 F T
Cost: 5% 3
At 1st April, 2014 R-E—NENA—H 8,073 11,957 20,030
Exchange adjustments BE A (674) (999) (1,673
At 31st March, 2015 R-EBE-HF=H=+—H 7,399 10,958 18,357
Accumulated amortisation: Rt
At 1st April, 2014 R-E—NEM™AE—H 2,422 10,249 12,671
Exchange adjustments BE AR (226) (956) (1,182
Charge for the year REEEH 394 1,665 2,059
At 31st March, 2015 R-E—HE=A=+—H 2,590 10,958 13,548
Net book value: REBE :
At 31st March, 2015 HNR—_ZB—-—HE=A=+—H 4,809 - 4,809
Brand Customer
name list Total
mhEEIB EFRRE #st
$'000 FIT $’000 FT $’000 7T
Cost: 5% -
At 1st April, 2015 R-ZE—-—HFMWAB—H 7,399 10,958 18,357
Exchange adjustments B WA 151 - 151
At 31st March, 2016 R-ZEBE—RE=ZA=1+—H 7,550 10,958 18,508
Accumulated amortisation: FEts
At 1st April, 2015 R-B—HFMNA—H 2,590 10,958 13,548
Exchange adjustments BENAE 63 - 63
Charge for the year AEFE 367 - 367
At 31st March, 2016 R-EB—-—XR"EFE=HA=+—H 3,020 10,958 13,978
Net book value: RE$BE :
At 31st March, 2016 R-BE—-—XRFE=ZHA=+—H 4,530 - 4,530

The amortisation charges for the year are included in “other
operating expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss.
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13 Goodwill 13 &

2016 2015
—E—REF —E-HEF
$’000 ¥t $'000 F 7t

Cost: 5%,
At 1st April ROEA—H 35,813 39,076
Exchange adjustments E R 734 (3,263)
At 31st March H=A=+—H 36,547 35,813

Impairment tests for cash-generating unit
containing goodwill

Goodwill arose from the acquisition of the entire share
capital in Unicurd Food Co. (Private) Limited (“Unicurd”).
Therefore it is allocated to the Singapore segment according
to the country of operation of Unicurd for impairment
testing purposes.

The recoverable amount of the Unicurd operation is
determined based on a value-in-use calculation. That
calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a three-
year period. Cash flows beyond the three-year period are
extrapolated using an annual growth rate of 3% (2015: 3%).
The growth rate does not exceed the long-term average
growth rate for the business in which the Unicurd operation
operate.

Key assumptions used for the value-in-use calculation:

BEBECHLELENZRERZ

BAERWELE—Rm (BA) BRLF ([H—1)
ZEMBRAMEL - Akt - HERRE—KEHR
EERD EZH KD JLGETRER -

%ﬁ—%iﬁzﬁﬂlﬂﬁlﬁgﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ”ﬁﬁ

ZAEERAREEEM A =FHYRAR
Eziﬁﬁ;lbiﬁlﬂl SHEHURZRERER
ﬁﬁ]:&%(_ —hF 1 3%) cFEREBEH - &
BRETEBR -—XBHREEXER R FI9E

AEERAEERRAZEERROT

2016 2015

—RE —E—FHEF

- Gross margin - BF=E 35.0% 39.4%
- Average annual sales growth rate -REFHEZ

for the three-year period FHFHEERE 12.0% 18.5%

- Pre-tax discount rate - BRBATITEIR =R 14.0% 14.0%

Management determined the budgeted gross margin
and sales growth rate based on past performance and its
expectation for market development. The discount rate used
is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to the relevant
segment.

Management believes that any reasonably possible change
in the key assumptions on which the recoverable amount
is based would not cause the carrying amount to exceed its
recoverable amount.

HONEREEERAR —2-1/ - FER

EEEREBEIXRANRAEHENERRE2ER &
EREENRREERRER - IEAZINREA
ARBERL B ERBRZBRBRATITRE -

ERERS BEUWEEHEAEEZEEZR/R
HEEMASETEEE YIS EYRAERE
HABE <5 -
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14 B AT

TREEFEENB AT 2F1F - RE B
o AREREZRHEREGREER -

14 Subsidiaries

The following list contains the particulars of the subsidiaries
of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless
otherwise stated.

S 049 R 1) SR B 4R A
DE WEREEZHBBRAGTE -

All of these are controlled subsidiaries as defined under note
1(d) and have been consolidated into the Group’s financial

statements.
Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and
establishment paid-up Proportion of Principal
Name of company and operation capital ownership interest activities
BEREREE
held by the held by a
Company subsidiary
i BB BERTR b /N S H
VNCIEE EEME BB 2] 2] EEEB
% %
Vitasoy USA Inc. United States Common stock: 100 - Manufacture
of America US$32,841,222 and sale of
EANRERE LB soy related
32,841,222 E T products
(note 18)
Convertible YERHEE
series A THRER
preferred stock: (MfE 18)
US$38,400,000
AR A
BERK
38,400,000 % 7T
Shenzhen Vitasoy The PRC RMB80,000,000 85 - Manufacture
(Guang Ming) FEl AR and sale of
Foods and Beverage 80,000,000 jt beverages
Company Limited EER
(note (i) HERm
Y 4EM () BRECH
BRAT (FFEE))
Vitasoy (China) Investments Hong Kong 2 shares 100 - Investment
Company Limited 58 2 BB holding
#fbys (PED) REFBRAA REER
Vitasoy (Shanghai) Company The PRC HK$219,461,176 - 100 Manufacture
Limited (note (ii)) A B 219,461,176 T© and sale of
#fbys (L38) BRAR beverages
(Bt & (i) tERHFERMR
Vita International Holdings Hong Kong 2 shares 100 - Investment
Limited &iE 2 R g 12 holding
HHERRERERA T REZER
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14 Subsidiaries (Continued)

14 B AT @)

Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and
establishment paid-up Proportion of Principal
Name of company and operation capital ownership interest activities
BERERLEFE
held by the held by a
Company subsidiary
MBI R BERTR ¥ /N i A H
YNCIEE SR BEREFE 58 B8 EFEXH
% %

Vitasoy Australia Products Australia V class shares: - 51 Manufacture
Pty. Ltd. (“VAP") BN A$8,925,000 and sale of
(T'VAP]) VER : beverages

8,925,000 % 7T YER
HEMMm

N class shares:

A$8,575,000

N :

8,575,000 & 5t
Vitasoja (Macau) Limitada Macau MOP100,000 100 - Distribution
#qhgh GRMY) BRAE B BP9 ¥ 100,000 T of beverages
2 EHERm

Produtos De Soja Hong Kong Macau MOP10,000 - 100 Dormant
(Macau) Limitada B BP9 10,000 7T HmEE

EB8E M ORM) BRAF

Vitaland Services Limited Hong Kong 300,000 shares 100 - Operation of

4t R 3 AR A B PR A B &iE 300,000 A% i 12 tuck shops

and concessions

REBER

PREBRNREN

Hong Kong Gourmet Limited Hong Kong 2 shares - 100 Provision of
EBERERAT A 2 I i 17 catering
services

REE IR

The Hong Kong Soya Bean Hong Kong 2 shares 100 - Property
Products Company, 58 2 BBz investment
Limited MERE

EBSHRERAH

Vitasoy Distributors Singapore $$2,500,000 100 - Dormant
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd. Fonig 2,500,000 3 7T Emez

Vitasoy Investment Hong Kong 1share 100 - Investment
Holdings Limited &E 1R R holding

BEHIDREZERERAR REZR

HONEREEERAR —2-1/ - FER
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14 Subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of

Particulars of

14 BT &)

incorporation/ issued and
establishment paid-up Proportion of Principal
Name of company and operation capital ownership interest activities
BEREREE
held by the held by a
Company subsidiary
i BB BERTR ¥ /N 82w
DR SR BERREFFE 58 58 FEXRH
% %
Vitasoy Holdings (Malta) Malta Ordinary shares: - 100 Sales of beverages
Limited Eff HK$20,257 and exploitation
LB of intellectual
B 20,257 rights of property
HERmR
Deferred share: ERABERE
HK$7
BELERSG
BT T
Vitasoy International Hong Kong 1 share 100 - Investment
Investment Limited 5B 1R holding
HHDMERRERRAR REER
Vitasoy Investment Singapore $$10,000 - 100 Investment
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd. 3 10,000 3% 7T holding
REER
Unicurd Food Co. (Private) Singapore $$1,800,000 - 100 Manufacture
Limited N3 1,800,000 3% J© and sale of
Hm—Rm (FAA) BRAF soy related
products
EERHEE
THEM
Vitasoy (China) Holdings Hong Kong 1share 100 - Investment
Limited BB 1RRG holding
#fbys (PED) ERBRAR REZER
Vitasoy (Foshan) Company The PRC RMB200,000,000 - 85 Manufacture
Limited (note (iii)) FEl AR and sale of
HEAMLLI (FhL) BRAF 200,000,000 7t beverages
(B & (iii)) TERBEERR
Vitasoy (Wuhan) Company The PRC RMB170,000,000 - 100 Manufacture
Limited (note (iv)) /i AR and sale of
#eqhgn (KE) BRAAE 170,000,000 J© beverages
(B (iv)) YEREESRM
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14 Subsidiaries (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Shenzhen Vitasoy (Guang Ming) Foods and Beverage
Company Limited (“Shenzhen Vitasoy”) is a sino-foreign
equity joint venture established in the PRC and is to be
operated up to 2049.

Vitasoy (Shanghai) Company Limited is a wholly foreign
owned subsidiary established in the PRC and is to be operated
up to 2045.

Vitasoy (Foshan) Company Limited (“Vitasoy Foshan”) is a
sino-foreign equity joint venture established in the PRC and is
to be operated up to 2049.

Vitasoy (Wuhan) Company Limited is a wholly foreign owned
subsidiary established in the PRC and is to be operated up to
2064.

HONEREEERAR —2-1/ - FER

14 B AT @)

Fia
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

RN L) BRREEAERAR (DRYI&
Bl BRPBERIzFHEEEERE K&
HE—FNMAFIL -

@i (£8) ARATBRTERT 220G
HWEAR SEHZ_BMEFL -

A (BL) BRAF ([HLEMBD]) BR
FERIZFNEECELE  REPE=T
MmAEFIE

g (BE) ARAABNRPERLZENE
MEAR KREME_TAWEFEL-
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14 BT &)

TREBIFEREAFERES ([FERES])
ZAREEMNE LT RN - BILEMTR
VAPEBZER - T2 2 BENBEEF

14 Subsidiaries (Continued)

The following table lists out the information relating to
Shenzhen Vitasoy, Vitasoy Foshan and VAP, the subsidiaries
of the Group which have material non-controlling interests

(“NCI”). The summarised financial information presented

below represents the amounts before any inter-company

HEMARBMFHN SR -

elimination.
Shenzhen Vitasoy Vitasoy Foshan VAP
AR fth 8 Il
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
ZE-RE CZE-1f IZE-RE C-E-1f ZB-R"E CZE-I%f
$000F  $000Fx  $000FT  $000FiwT  $000FT  $000 F
NCl percentage FERERB O 15% 15% 15% 15% 49% 49%
Current assets RBEE 189,525 204,741 141,795 159,350 156,264 151,015
Non-current assets FRBEE 216,695 217,463 640,058 502,090 197,353 188,419
Current liabilities RERE (126,692) | (144,634) | (422,533) | (265,953) | (106,794) (94,955)
Non-current liabilities kRBEE - - - - (9,475) (30,952)
Net assets FEE 279,528 277,570 359,320 395,487 237,348 213,527
Carrying amount of NCI FERES 2 REE 41,929 41,636 53,898 59,323 116,301 104,628
Revenue 9N 626,322 739,517 585,794 508,065 420,088 479,740
Profit for the year REERF 60,568 76,018 50,511 57,243 36,665 33,986
Total comprehensive income  2EKFAE 60,568 76,018 50,511 57,243 35,078 33,972
Profit allocated to NCI PEEFERES 2 BF 9,085 11,403 7,577 8,586 17,966 16,653
Dividend paid to NCI EFERERRERE 6,991 10,118 10,499 - 7,073 7,359
Cash flows generated BETHRBHERE
from operating
activities 67,049 177,812 164,890 45877 38,914 59,196
Cash flows used in RETHFARERE
investing activities (47,818) (83,336) (251,076) (102,105) (20,941) (14,805)
Cash flows (used in)/ BEEE (FFA) /8
generated from BeRE
financing activities (47,295) (67,333) 70,290 76,057 (31,122) (37,101)
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15 Inventories

(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise:

15 78
(@) HEHBRIZTZFEERE

2016 2015
—E—REFE —E-hHfF

$'000 FIT $000 F T

Raw materials Rt 317,051 311,313
Finished goods B MR 211,213 249,939
528,264 561,252

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense and included in
profitor loss is as follows:

(b) ERBmANBERBHZTZFELHES
wWaF :

2016 2015
—E—REFE —E-hfF
$’000 ¥t $'000 F 7t
Carrying amounts of inventories sold CE&FEZEREE 2,789,077 2,603,572
Write down of inventories WREE 19,062 3,894
2,808,139 2,607,466
. =+, =+,
16 Trade and other receivables 16 FEURBRFR R H it FE UL FX
2016 2015
—E—RE —E-HEF
$'000 7 $000 Tt
Trade debtors and bills receivable EWERAF R EKRZE 637,940 668,091
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts W RERBERE
(note 16(b)) (FftEE 16(b)) (1,227) (1,287)
636,713 666,804
Other debtors, deposits HMEWR - BE&Rk
and prepayments FENRRIE 190,914 138,378
827,627 805,182

The amount of the Group’s other debtors, deposits and
prepayments expected to be recovered or charged as
expense after more than one year is $29,691,000 (2015:
$18,966,000). All of the other trade and other receivables
are expected to be recovered or recognised as expense
within one year.

HONEREEERAR —2-1/ - FER

FEERANBE - FRUORNBRAMI 2H
fbEYR - RERBAMNRIES 29,691,000 T (=
T—HF :18,966,0007T) ° Fr A H ftb U IR X
REMBEERARR - FAREREDZR/MX
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16 Trade and other receivables (Continued)
(a) Ageing analysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis
of trade debtors and bills receivable (which are included in
trade and other receivables), based on the invoice date and
net of allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows:

16 EWERR R EMEWR @)

(a) BRE AT

REHRA  BURRREKEE (EEERER
RAREMERRA) RERAHRNERRER
BEzRRIFTOT

2016 2015

—E—REF —E—-F1F

$000 7 $'000 F 7t

Within three months =@EAR 620,989 640,936
Three to six months =ZXEA 14,154 25,750
Over six months NMEA M E 1,570 118
636,713 666,804

Trade receivables are due within one to three months from
the date of billing. Further details on the group’s credit policy
are set out in note 26(a).

(b) Impairment of trade debtors and bills
receivable

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors and bills
receivable are recorded using an allowance account unless
the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote,
in which case the impairment loss is written off against trade
debtors and bills receivable directly (see note 1(j)(i)).

BUERRERBHES —ZE=BARNEH-F
BAKEEEBRZE-SHBHERMEE26(a) °

(b) BRI R ERERZRE

BRIEAREEGEAREZERB 2 ATREMEDSTE &
RIEW AR R B R 8 2 BE B B 6 R B E R
8% o BAIWE 2 R BRERESRERE
REWRRR R B RE M (RHEG)0) -

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during REREBRERFAZSHUOT :
the year is as follows:

2016 2015
—E—REF —E—FHEF
$'000 ¥t $'000 ¥t
At 1st April REA—H 1,287 1,107
Exchange adjustments BN AR (4) (10)
Impairment losses recognised BREEEBR 141 229
Uncollectible amounts written off AT Ur[E & 58~ M ss (197) (39)
At 31st March R=A=+—AH 1,227 1,287

At 31st March, 2016, the Group’s trade debtors and
bills receivable of $1,227,000 (2015: $1,287,000) were
individually determined to be impaired. The individually
impaired receivables related to customers that were in
financial difficulties. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.
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16 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

(c) Trade debtors and bills receivable that are not
impaired

The ageing analysis of trade debtors and bills receivable that

16 FEWBRF R EMEWER (@)
(c) IHEERE 2 EWFRFREKEE

3 42 48 51 = 58 B8 4 4R 1 B R E 2 FE W AR =R FE U

are neither individually nor collectively considered to be FEZRBRSFTWOT :
impaired are as follows:
2016 2015
—E—REFE —E-hHfF
$°000 ¥7T $000 Tt
Neither past due nor impaired BRI R (E 507,616 525,259
Less than one month past due BHLNR—EA 108,832 121,848
One to three months past due BHY—Z=@EA 15,966 17,955
More than three months but less BB B=EA
than twelve months past due ELR+=@A 4,237 1,724
More than twelve months past due BHEB+=@A 62 18
Amounts past due B 129,097 141,545
636,713 666,804

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

HONEREEERAR —2-1/ - FER

IR O E 2 B - 19 REVT Y EER

BRECECEZEFAR -

BMEYBBECERRREASEBYETFEE
ZEEFEAKREEZFELERY - REBBE
KR ARHEGFEERABSAEE - “‘IEJE*E

Fﬂﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ% HERME R E RS - FRR

w2 ElE - Zﬁiljt#wﬁﬂ:t%%*ﬁ%%ﬁ

EAERE - .
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17 Cash and bank deposits

(a) Cash and bank deposits comprise:

17 BERIBITER
(a) B RBTESEE:

2016 2015
—E—RE —E-HEF
$'000 F3T $000 7T
Cash at bank and in hand BITHEEREFRS 221,088 317,407
Bank deposits maturing within GFRER=EARZ
three months when placed BITER 50,157 17,173
Cash and cash equivalents in FEHERERAZ
the consolidated cash flow statement R&ERBEEZEEER 271,245 334,580
Bank deposits maturing after GEREEB=MEA
three months ZERITER 486 476
Cash and bank deposits in BEMBERRAERAZ
the consolidated statement RERBITHER
of financial position 271,731 335,056
Long-term bank deposits RESRITER 1,406 -
273,137 335,056

At 31st March, 2016, certain Renminbi bank balances
totalling $55,921,000 (2015: $Nil) were designated as a
hedge against the foreign currency risk on future purchase
of raw materials. The loss on re-translation of these bank
balances at the exchange rate ruling at the end of the
reporting period was included in other comprehensive
income.
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17 Cash and bank deposits (Continued)

17 B REBITER @

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to (b) BRF TG FEAS & R P15 B & 2 2
cash generated from operations: 3
2016 2015
—E—-RE¥E —E-AF
Notes Fff&F $’'000 Fit $000 Tt
Profit before taxation BR B AT E A 599,308 523,609
Adjustments for: A
- Depreciation of property, -ME- -BER
plant and equipment REZITE 5(c) 208,321 194,980
- Depreciation of investment -REWE
properties ZIE 5(c) 526 526
- Amortisation of interests in -REKEHEREE
leasehold land held for own use BERZEE L
under operating leases sz e 5(c) 1,607 1,000
- Amortisation of intangible assets -BEEEZHEE 5(c) 367 2,059
- Recognition/(reversal) of -ME - BERRE
impairment losses on property, WEEE
plant and equipment (#m) 5(c) 679 (224)
- Interest on bank loans -RITERZRE 5(a) 3,768 5,243
- Finance charges on obligations -BMEHEEKZ
under finance leases e R 5(a) 276 412
- Interest income - FMEWA (2,002) (2,476)
- Net loss on disposal of property, -HEYE  BER
plant and equipment BREZEEEHE 5(c) 5,110 4,410
- Net loss on forward exchange -FEERBEHHPIAZ
contracts not designated BHMNEESNZ
as hedging instruments BEE 5(c) 2,190 -
- Equity settled share-based -URGBARERZ
payment expenses E2H 5(b) 12,393 11,124
- Foreign exchange (gain)/loss -ER (kF) B (1,393) 365
Changes in working capital: HEELEE
- Increase in inventories - FEEM (18,121) (39,258)
- Increase in trade - EWERR R
and other receivables H fth FEURFRIE AN (89,402) (96,726)
- Increase in trade and other payables - F& {3 BR 7 5 E 4th F& {5 =} 38 21,756 245,449
- Increase in employee retirement - EERKER
benefit liabilities B & m 4,095 4,693
Cash generated from operations KEEBEMBRE 749,478 855,186

HONEREEERAR —2-1/ - FER

151



Notes to the Financial Statements

BRI AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBHAN - LUBREEE)

18 Disposal group held for sale

On 24th March, 2016, the Group entered into an agreement
with Pulmuone Foods Co., Ltd. (the “Purchaser”) pursuant to
which the Group conditionally agreed to sell certain assets in
the Group’s business operation in North America, as operated
by Vitasoy USA Inc., to the Purchaser at a consideration of
US$50.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$387.5
million), subject to the net working capital adjustment, as
defined in the agreement with the Purchaser (the “Disposal”).
The estimated gain on disposal (before taxation) is
approximately US$19.8 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$153.5 million). Details of the Disposal are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 24th March, 2016. The
Disposal was completed on 9th May, 2016. The assets and
liabilities of Vitasoy USA Inc. attributable to the Disposal
have been classified as a disposal group held for sale and
are presented separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31st March, 2016.

Vitasoy USA Inc. continues to import beverage products
from Hong Kong for sale in North America after the Disposal.

The major classes of assets and liabilities of Vitasoy USA Inc.
attributable to the Disposal as at 31st March, 2016 are as
follows:

18 HEHEZHEAS

R-ZEB-RF=ZA-+HAB xEEH
Pulmuone Foods Co., Ltd ([ B A1) §T 215 -
Bt REBEC A KGR Z B E 50,000,000
E7 (HERAHB%387,500,0007T) HEARER
HVitasoy USA Inc. 8 B2 It EMNEK 2ETE
EFTEL ([HESHE]) BREASELEE
ELFHACAE (RAEBLSITIZHBENES) -
FAEE - RBAHHHEWREL A 19,800,000
ExT (HEMN B % 4153,500,000T) - HESE
BHeHABRERARAAR-E—R"F=A=-+HIA
22 e HESHER-ZE—A"EEANBEK °
Vitasoy USA Inc. ERAEESTEMNEEREEBE S
EABEHEHES  IR=-B—RE=ZA=1+—
HRGEHMBRRERASEET -

MNHEEEIE%  Vitasoy USA Inc. BB BB E
ORI ERNILEMNEE -

R-ZE—XR"F=H=+—HVitasoy USA Inc. B
BHEEE EEREBZETESENT

2016
—E—REF
$’000 FIT
Property, plant and equipment W BERSEE 119,609
Inventories TFE 39,727
Trade and other receivables JE Ut BR =X e EL At FE UL R 58,742
Total assets classified as held forsale 2D EABEHECHEE 218,078
Trade and other payables BRI EABELHECZEEZ
associated with the assets BRI HE AR
classified as held for sale 26,039
=h =h
19 Trade and other payables 19 EAERRR HAESF
2016 2015
—ZE—REFE —E-HF
$°000 F¥7T $'000 Tt
Trade creditors and bills payable ERERREMANERE 416,294 417,361
Accrued expenses and other payables FEZE AR EMEMAK 868,395 830,547
Derivative financial instruments TTEEMI AR 2,190 -
1,286,879 1,247,908

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled
within one year, except for customer deposits amounting to
$15,545,000 (2015: $15,297,000) which are expected to be
settled after more than one year.
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19 Trade and other payables (Continued)

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
trade creditors and bills payable, based on the invoice date, is
as follows:

19 BEERRREMBEMSRK @

RERH - BEIRRARENRBERZRAHZEK
oM

2016 2015

—E—REF —E—F1F

$’000 ¥t $'000 F 7t

Within three months =@AR 401,024 407,224
Three to six months =ZxEA 14,364 8,944
Over six months ~EA MU E 906 1,193
416,294 417,361

The Group'’s general payment terms are one to two months
from the invoice date.

20 Bankloans

At 31st March, 2016, the bank loans were repayable as
follows:

REBZ—RAFHEREEREH LT —
@A -
20 SRITER

RZB-ARF=ZA=1+—-8 ' KRTERER TSI
HARRMEE

2016 2015

—RE —E—FHEF

$'000 FIT $'000 F 7t

Within one year or on demand —FRFEER 139,652 125,948
After one year but within two years —FZERMER 107,341 20,444
After two years but within five years WEZRERAER 100,000 7,270
207,341 27,714

346,993 153,662

At 31st March, 2016, bank loans totalling $27,986,000
(2015: $48,357,000) are secured by charges over property,
plant and equipment with net book value totalling
$67,871,000 (2015: $72,163,000) (note 12(Jacky)).

Certain of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the
fulfilment of covenants relating to certain financial ratios, as
are commonly found in lending arrangements with financial
institutions. If the Group were to breach the covenants, the
drawn down facilities would become payable on demand.
The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these
covenants. Further details of the Group’s management of
liquidity risk are set out in note 26(b). As at 31st March, 2016
and 2015, none of the covenants relating to the drawn down
facilities had been breached.

HONEREEERAR —2-1/ - FER

R-ZE—XRE=ZA=1+—H " &§#27,986,000
JT(ZEE—FF :48,357,0007t) Z2RITERT
LERmEESH+67871000t (=B —HF .
72,1630007t) ¥ - RERZHEERAER
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AEEETFROTCEEFCHE TH R ERER
RE ERENEEBIVERREECZER
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21 Obligations under finance leases 21 BMEHEZE®K
At 31st March, 2016, the Group had obligations under R-ZE-—RF=ZA=+—H ' xEEREMEHR
finance leases repayable as follows: ERAEBEZBERWT :
2016 2015
—E—R¥ —E-A%F
Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments  payments  payments  payments

REHER REHR REHAE REESE
fIRZBE fiR@E ARZRE TRBE
$000F $'000FT $000FT $000FiT

Within one year —FR 1,135 1,342 1,043 1,329
After one year but within —FE#&ER
two years MER 1,223 1,341 1,124 1,329
After two years but within MEFEEZER
five years AER 911 933 2,114 2,252
2,134 2,274 3,238 3,581
3,269 3,616 4,281 4,910
Less: Total future B RRFE
interest expenses BERAE (347) (629)
Present value of lease HEEKZRE
obligations 3,269 4,281
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22 Employee retirement benefits

The Group operates and participates in a number of defined
contribution and defined benefit retirement plans in and
outside Hong Kong.

(a) Defined contribution retirement plans

(i)

(ii)

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement
plan, Vitasoy International Holdings Limited Staff
Provident Fund, which is available for all eligible staff
employed by the Group in Hong Kong and Macau
before 1st August, 2000. The plan is funded by
contributions from employees and the Group, both
of which contribute sums representing 5% - 7.5% of
basic salaries. Forfeited contributions are credited
to members’ accounts in accordance with the rules
of the plan. The plan is administered by trustees with
the assets held separately from those of the Group.
The employees are entitled to 100% of the employer’s
contributions after ten completed membership years,
or at an increasing scale of between 50% to 90% after
completion of five to nine membership years.

Staff employed by the Group in Hong Kong not joining
the defined contribution retirement plan are required
to join the Group’s Mandatory Provident Fund scheme
(“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The MPF scheme
is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by an independent corporate trustee. Under the
MPF scheme, the Group and the employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of $30,000. Contributions to the MPF
scheme vest immediately.

Employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members
of the central pension scheme operated by the PRC
government. The Group is required to contribute a
certain percentage of employees’ remuneration to the
central pension scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation for the Group with respect to the central
pension scheme is the associated required contribution
under the central pension scheme. Contributions to the
plan vest immediately.

HONEREEERAR —2-1/ - FER

22 EERKEF
ARBEEBRESUNMBERIRSNSER

EHRRRAERBABRAKTE -

(a) RERFBRIKEE

(i)

AEBAMER-SEEENA—HZAHE
ERARBAMZRE2AEESEREIRIL
—IEREMREARE (FEMPBEREEE
RATIBERESR) - ZtBcELXREE
ERFTEEZHR EHFHRSERRH
Z5%ZE7.5% - RUWHERIGRIETEI 2R A
BAGTEIREZRFE - ZstE8XBETRAE
B REETHEAEEZEESHER -
ESHEGERTER EETVEEEIESE
HE MBEFGESERZENFETEZEZEE
HRBEDLRAIH50%ZF S E 90% o

ZRERAEE I ES MR ERFTRAKTE
ZBERBET LARBEB (EHEQIES
BRG] 2 MALE 2 BEMAEESTTE
(IBEEQXEEFTE]) - BEHMLIBESE
R —BRAEHFRKE - HBELEERE
AAEE - REBFMLBSHE  A5H
FEEZEAZESRBAKVA (FRAKRAZ
A EBR%30,0007T) 2 5% @& -
EEEME AR BN 2 HRDEEE -

BRRPEZHEA TR 2EETS NH HE R
BRI ZHRBARETE - NEBEARES
MEz R -—BoARRBARESEEIGRK
RENREHES - FREFPREASE
FrAEITZE—BEER B R REBAKE T EME
KR 2 HEHERK - [E 8 2 HRAE
BB -
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22 Employee retirement benefits (Continued)

(a)

(iii)

(b)

Defined contribution retirement plans
(Continued)

For employees in Australia, contributions are made by
the Group to a registered superannuation fund for its
employees, at 9% of the employees’ salaries. The assets
of the scheme are held separately by an independent
administered fund. Contributions to the plan vest
immediately.

The Group also operates a defined contribution
retirement plan for its employees in the United States
of America (“the USA”). The Group is required to make
contributions to the plan at various applicable rates of
monthly salary that are in accordance with the local
practice and regulations. Where there are employees
who leave prior to vesting fully in the contributions,
the forfeited employer’s contributions shall be used to
reduce the future contributions of the employer.

Defined benefit retirement plans

At 31st March, 2016, the Group recognised employee
retirement benefit liabilities in respect of the following
employee retirement benefits:

22 EEERNKEFN @)
(a) REMBRFEIKGE (&)

(iii)

(iv)

(b)

A=

ANRESE  AEMAREEFS > 9%
B-EAEEEMRSMERES M -
HEEEMBYEEESHHRE - At
B% A HRERRE -

AEETHERIE 2RBERIAEHNRR
Kit 8 - AEEMARBEWEG R KOIRE
B8 RBRALRETEELAHR - M
BEEREZEZHHERARE - Hitgilz
BEHZSARNBBE R ZBEMRK -

REWEFEMKE

E-ANF=ZA=1T—-H ' FKEHTIES

RHBEANRIABRERKAENEE

2016 2015
—E—REF —E—RE
$'000 F7¢ $000 Tt
Employee retirement EEENREFNEE
benefit liabilities
- retirement gratuities - Bk
(note 22(c)(i)) (FHF&EE 22(c)(i)) 22,132 7,239
- long service payments - RERES
(note 22(d)) (FffE 22(d)) 5,901 2,995
28,033 10,234
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22 Employee retirement benefits (Continued)

(c) Retirement gratuities

Employees of the Group in Hong Kong and Macau, who
have completed a prescribed minimum period of service
and joined the Group before a specific date, are entitled to
retirement gratuities upon retirement age. The gratuity is
based on the employee’s last month'’s salary and the number
of years of service.

A funded defined benefit retirement plan, Vitasoy
International Holdings Limited Defined Benefit Scheme (“the
Plan”), was established for the retirement gratuities. The Plan
is administered by an independent corporate trustee, with
assets held separately from those of the Group. The Plan is
funded by contributions from the Group in accordance with
an independent actuary’s recommendation.

The latest actuarial valuation of the Plan was at 31st March,
2016 and was prepared by independent professionally
qualified actuaries at Willis Towers Watson, using the
projected unit credit method. The valuation indicates that
the Group’s obligation under this defined benefit retirement
planis 74% (2015: 91%) covered by the plan assets held by
the trustee.

(i)  The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position are as follows:

22 EEERNKERN @)
(c) Btz

FEBEEERAMZEEERBFEED —R
BEZREMRRNEEBHZAMALXER -
HERTEERAFRERIEAS - SERTE
EREMEARFRBRBEFEME

FEBHRAKER L —HEY R ERFRMAKE

g - G lEREEERARAAEEATE ([Z

S8l - ZETEHBYZEEIAEE  HEE

EEEZF%lZi%EJJ Eﬁa‘%ﬁ ZarEHAKREEZER
MREE BB -

B BN BEGEIR=-"F—AF=H
E+—-HAHERERIBYEXRSERBEMKR
RAERENEERET AREERRAKRER
B2 ERAMEAG BT ABIT ZEEE S 74%
(ZF—1F 1 91%) ZERXAFEZFHEER
BE

(i) RESHBRRREIZSE|NOT

2016 2015
—E—REFE —E-HEF
$'000 7T $000 7T
Present value of wholly E2HEEPERE
funded obligations ZBE 85,403 83,633
Fair value of plan assets STEIEEZARE (63,271) (76,394)
Employee retirement EERKEF
benefit liabilities aE 22,132 7,239

A portion of the above liabilities is expected to be settled
after more than one year. However, it is not practicable to
segregate this amount from the amounts payable in the
next twelve months, as the retirement benefit entitled
by scheme members and future contributions to the plan
will also depend on staff turnover and future changes in
actuarial assumptions. The Group expects to pay $225,000
in contributions to defined benefit retirement plan during
the year ending 31st March, 2017 (2015: $192,000).

HONEREEERAR —2-1/ - FER

AL aEROEREBB—FREH - A
HRFERETRZAZRHRBANR AR Z5E
HRATKRFEIRBDEREERRARZEH
ME WAL REERR T —EARNTEXNZ
SHEPHBALFAT  FARERPRBE_F
—tF=ZA=Z+-BLFERRERARAKGE
XAF#FK225,000T (ZF—HF : 192,0007T) °
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22 Employee retirement benefits (Continued)

(c) Retirement gratuities (Continued)

(ii)  Plan assets consist of the following:

22 EERKERN @&
) EHE @)
(i) stEEEEETHES

2016 2015
—E—REF —E-HEF
$'000 F7¢ $000 F 7t
Plan assets with quoted price in RiEETHEEN
active market HEIEE

Equities BRE
- Financial - B 14,883 18,695
- Consumer discretionary -EMEHER 4,772 5,885
- Industrials -T ¥ 4,201 5,258
- Consumer staples -MEHER 4,007 4,881
- Other - Hith 17,821 21,263
45,684 55,982

Bonds &%
- Corporate bonds - NREIESH 9,727 8,311
- Government-related bonds - BUFHEREES 2,345 2,341
- Treasury bonds - BB 5,237 7,812
17,309 18,464
Money instruments E¥TE 278 1,948
Total quoted plan assets EREFEEELE 63,271 76,394
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22 Employee retirement benefits (Continued)

(c) Retirement gratuities (Continued)

(iii) Movements in the present value of the defined benefit

obligations are as follows:

22 EEERNKERN @)
(c) BkL (&)

(i) REBANEEZREZBHWOT :

2016 2015

—E—REF —E-FHEF

$000 F7T $000 7t

At 1st April REA—H 83,633 83,911

Remeasurement: EHFE

- Actuarial losses/(gains) arising from - B B ¥ BR=R &

changes in financial assumptions FEMBEEE (kH) 5,441 (267)

Benefits paid by the Plan ZErEE AR A (8,475) (5,314)

Current service cost 5 RIS KA 3,749 4,003

Interest cost F B A 1,055 1,300

At 31st March WN=A=+—H 85,403 83,633

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit

REBMNEEZMEFIIHRABEF (ZF—

obligation is 8 years (2015: 8 years). F.8%F)-
(iv) Movements in fair value of plan assets are as follows: (iv) StBIEEZARESHNT :
2016 2015
—NE —E-REF
$'000 F7T $'000 ¥t
At 1st April REA—H 76,394 77,076
Contributions paid to the Plan B AN 225 228
Benefits paid by the Plan ZETEIE BRI (8,475) (5,314)
Administrative expenses paid Hit8IEEX(I=Z
from plan assets THEHR (193) -
Return on plan assets, STEIEEER -
excluding interest income TEEFEMNERA (5,641) 3,205
Interest income FEW A 961 1,199
At 31st March MWR=A=+—H 63,271 76,394

HONEREEERAR —2-1/ - FER
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22 Employee retirement benefits (Continued) 22 EEEAKERN @

(c) Retirement gratuities (Continued) (c) BUhE (#&)
(v) Net expenses recognised in the consolidated statement (v) REEEBEREMEZERSERBERZEAIF
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income are as QI N
follows:
2016 2015
—E—RE —E-AREF
$'000 F3T $000 7T
Current service cost RERKE KA 3,749 4,003
Administrative expenses paid from HF8EELZ2
plan assets THEHR 193 -
Net interest on AEEFNEEREN
net defined benefit liability FERE 94 101
Total amounts recognised in RIBRERNELE
profit or loss 4,036 4,104
Actuarial losses/(gains) BEEE (&) 5,441 (267)
Return on plan assets, STEIEEER -
excluding interest income TEFEFMEWA 5,641 (3,205)
Total amounts recognised in REAZE W E
other comprehensive income BB EE 11,082 (3,472)
Total defined benefit expenses RERAEREX 15,118 632

The current service cost and the net interest on net defined AERANEBEFEZEEREREARFZFEECR
benefit liability are recognised in the following line items in FEBREXRPETIGERR .
the consolidated statement of profit or loss:

2016 2015

—E—REF —E—8F

$'000 F7¢ $'000 Tt

Cost of sales SHE R 845 847
Marketing, selling and HE - HER

distribution expenses 2EHEH 1,112 1,200

Administrative expenses THEA 1,533 1,482

Other operating expenses Hihk&EEH 546 575

4,036 4,104
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22 Employee retirement benefits (Continued)

(c) Retirement gratuities (Continued)

(vi) Significant actuarial assumptions and sensitivity
analysis are as follows:

22 EERKERN @&
c) Rt (&)
(Vi) TERBEBEREEBESKDT :

2016 2015

—E—RE —E-HEF

Discount rate EE 1.10% 1.30%
Future salary increases R &L 4.5% per annum | 4.5% per annum
B|E45% BF45%

The below analysis shows how the defined benefit
obligations as at 31st March, 2016 would have increased/
(decreased) as a result of 0.5% change in the significant
actuarial assumptions:

UToMBETRR-Z—RFZA=+—HZAE
BAEEEEARERROSKEEHMEHA (T
)

2016 2015
—E—RE —E-RfF
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
in0.5% in0.5% in0.5% in0.5%
EFH0.5% TB0.5% EH0.5% T¥0.5%
Discount rate R=E (3,683) 3,934 (3,330) 3,442
Future salary increases KRR E S ILIF 3,906 (3,695) 3,436 (3,338)

The above sensitivity analysis is based on the assumption
that changes in actuarial assumptions are not correlated
and therefore it does not take into account the correlations
between the actuarial assumptions.

(d) Long service payments

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group
is obliged to make lump sum payments on cessation of
employment in certain circumstances to certain employees
who have completed at least five years of service with
the Group. The amount payable is dependent on the
employees’ final salary and years of service, and is reduced
by entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement
plans that are attributable to contributions made by the
Group. The Group does not set aside any assets to fund any
remaining obligations.

An actuarial valuation of long service payments was
also carried out at 31st March, 2016, by independent
professionally qualified actuaries at Willis Towers Watson,
using the projected unit credit method.

HONEREEERAR —2-1/ - FER

LPRBRBED T ABRRBERR 2E 22 E W
BEERARAEE  ALYEFTABERRZE
ZEERR -

(d) RAREZ

REEE (EEEA)  AEEAEETHERTA
LEARESFEEBRBEED HE 2 EABOR
LR —FBRE - FAXN2SHERTEAR
% AH S RIS FRME - LR A LR
B 81T 538 B AR SR B AT A 53 2 ARl - AR
BB R L AR R
E2ES -

ﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁ’j‘m /\fﬁ H + HEH:..-H—
%’MZE\"$¥A§$§F§%%F§§‘E§ B fEE
EETREME -
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22 Employee retirement benefits (Continued)

(d) Long service payments (Continued)

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position are as follows:

22 EERKERN @&
(d) RERBEE (&)
REABBRTRBRIZSENT :

2016 2015
—E—RE —E-HEF
$'000 F7¢ $000 F 7t
Present value of unfunded mEHEMT
obligations ZBE 5,901 2,995

A portion of the above liabilities is expected to be settled
after more than one year. However, it is not practical to
segregate this amount from the amounts payable in the next
twelve months, as the retirement benefit payable will also
depend on staff turnover and future changes in actuarial
assumptions.

23 Equity settled share-based
transactions

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 4th
September, 2002 (the “2002 Share Option Scheme”)
whereby the Directors of the Company are authorised, at
their discretion, to invite employees of the Group, including
Directors of any company in the Group, to take up options to
subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company. At the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 28th August, 2012,
ordinary resolutions were passed for the adoption of a new
share option scheme (the “2012 Share Option Scheme”) and
the termination of the 2002 Share Option Scheme. Subject to
their respective exercisable periods, all outstanding options
granted under the 2002 Share Option Scheme will still be
valid and exercisable after the expiration of the 2002 Share
Option Scheme.

The exercise price of the options is determined by the
Directors of the Company and is the higher of (i) the closing
price of the shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the date of grant, which
must be a business day; and (ii) the average of the closing
prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant.

The options are exercisable for a period not to exceed 10

years from the date of grant. Each option gives the holder the
right to subscribe for one share in the Company.
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23 URBABNIRERZRS
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B (22 -FRERESH]) Bt X227
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23 Equity settled share-based
transactions (Continued)

(a) The terms and conditions of the unexpired and
unexercised share options at the end of the reporting

23 ARG BNE

RER RS #|)

(a) REBAZRERRRTEBREZGIR
BENT  FIEBRESURGZEYRK

period are as follows, whereby all options are settled by wE
physical delivery of shares:
2016 2015
ZE-RE “E-EF
Contractual Remaining Remaining
life of Exercise contractual Number of contractual Number of
Date of grant Exercise period options price life options life options
BREZ RER | 3 e B BREZ
REBHE Grd BHNEH THE BNEH A BNES £ ]
$ 71T '000 FB% '000 %
1/6/2005 1/6/2006 to & 31/5/2015 10 years 2.375 - - 2 months A 62
5/6/2006 5/6/2007 to £ 4/6/2016 10 years 2.900 2 months B 30 1year 60
21/7/2008 21/7/2009 to & 20/7/2018 10 years 3.820 2years - 3years F 240
21/7/2009 21/7/2010to £20/7/2019 10 years & 4.580 3years 234 4years 1,240
9/6/2010 9/6/2011to £8/6/2020 10 years & 6.022 4years 404 5years & 1,504
7/9/2010 7/9/2011 to E 6/9/2020 10 years 5.942 4years i - 5years 2,120
15/6/2011 15/6/2012 to & 14/6/2021 10 years 6.424 5years 992 6 years 1,726
8/9/2011 8/9/2012 to & 7/9/2021 10 years £ 6.358 5years 1,740 6 years 2,320
22/6/2012 22/6/2013 to £21/6/2022 10 years & 6.274 6 years$ 2,231 7 years & 3,268
31/8/2012 31/8/2013 to £ 30/8/2022 10 years & 6.400 6years 2,822 7 years & 2,822
2/4/2013 2/4/2015 to & 1/4/2023 10 years & 9.090 7 years 1,900 8 years F 2,100
28/6/2013 28/6/2014 to £27/6/2023 10 years 9.370 7 years 4,090 8years 4,530
9/9/2013 9/9/2014 to & 8/9/2023 10 years 9.370 7 years 1,704 8years 1,704
2/7/2014 2/7/2015 to £ 1/7/2024 10 years 10.080 8 years 4,089 9 years 4,354
10/9/2014 10/9/2015 to £ 9/9/2024 10 years & 10.080 8 years 1,792 9years & 1,792
26/6/2015 26/6/2016 to £ 25/6/2025 10 years & 13.600 9yearsF 4,124 - -
14/9/2015 14/9/2016 to £ 13/9/2025 10 years & 13.600 9yearsF 1,588 - -
27,740 29,842
Except for the options granted on 2nd April, 2013 which BA-—E—=FBE_-_HEtERELEEH

was fully vested after two years from the date of grant, all
the options are exercisable progressively and the maximum
percentage of the options which may be exercised is
determined in stages as follows:

MBS MEREZNEEN BT TITEZ
BREBEDESEMN  MEKRATTEERE
ZEALLERNOT :

Percentage of
options granted

LERREREZ

B

On or after 1st year anniversary of the date of grant REBHEF—BFHEE 25%
On or after 2nd year anniversary of the date of grant REBHETMEFRER another 2 25%
On or after 3rd year anniversary of the date of grant REBHEF=BFHE another 2 25%
On or after 4th year anniversary of the date of grant RHEBHETNEFEHER another & 25%

During the year, 6,909,000 options (2015: 5,540,000
options) were exercised under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme, and 905,000 options (2015: Nil) were exercised
under the 2012 Share Option Scheme.

HONEREEERAR —2-1/ - FER

FR69900070 ERE(=ZF—H F:

5,540,000 BB #E) BB =
EEITER 905,000 ERE (== —
BE—ZT—

EE_FRRETE
hE E)

—FERET SO RITE
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23 Equity settled share-based
transactions (Continued)

(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of
share options are as follows:

23 LR ANRER 2R S )

(b) BREZHE RMNEFLITEEDT :

2016 2015
—E—-REF —ET-HF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise  Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
niEFEY g InfEFEIg BREZ
TR 8H TEE £ 4=
$T '000 T B $ T '000 F &
Outstanding at 1st April REA—BEKRITE 7.789 29,842 6.504 29,880
Exercised during the year RERTHE 6.207 (7,814) 3.467 (5,540)
Granted during the year REARRY 13.600 5,712 10.080 6,146
Forfeited on termination HE&EKSH
of employment of EEBMNER
eligible participants or R U k3%
lapsed during the year - - 7.248 (644)
Outstanding at 31st March RZA=+—BHKRTE 9.431 27,740 7.789 29,842
Exercisable at 31st March R=A=+—BATHE 12,747 12,764

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for
share options exercised during the year was $12.490 (2015:
$10.082).

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share
options granted is measured based on a binomial lattice
model. The contractual life of the share option is used as
an input into this model. Expectations of early exercise are
incorporated into the binomial lattice model.
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23 Equity settled share-based
transactions (Continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions

(Continued)

Fair values of share options and assumptions:

23 ARG BNE

(c) BREZAZERER (&)

BREZDOERRR :

Date of grant
REAE

RER RS #|)

1/6/2005

5/6/2006

21/7/2008

21/7/2009

9/6/2010

7/9/2010

15/6/2011  8/9/2011

22/6/2012  31/8/2012

2/4/2013

28/6/2013

9/9/2013

2/7/2014

10/9/2014

26/6/2015

14/9/2015

Fair value at RtERH
measurementdate ~ ZARAE 05227
Share price KE $23757
Bxercise price g $23757
Expectedvolatilty ~ BERIR 35%

Expected optionlife  EHERE
ZENE  10yearsE
Expected dividends ~ BHKE 7.5%
Risk-free interestrate MERAE  3520%

$05557
$29007%
$29007%

30%

10years £
75%
4.690%

$05077
$38207%
$38207

2%

10years &
7,000
3.600%

$06277
$45807
$45607

2%

10years
7.0%
2.190%

$0956 7
$5.9507T
$60227%

26%

10years £
5.6%
2.120%

$0956 72
$6.0807%
59427

2%

10years &
5.6%
1.900%

08957 $0.6057
61607 $54907
$64247%  $6.3587

25% 25%

10years®  10years
55% 5.5%
2040% 1750%

$09537
$6.1707%
$6.2747

2%

10years
50%
0.810%

$10437
$6.6207
$64007

26%

10yearsE
50%
0.620%

$144070
$9.0907
$9.0907

26%

10years
4.9%
1092%

$1827 7
$9.3707%
$9.3707

2%

10years £
40%
1720%

$2247
$99507%
$9.3707

26%

10years &
4,000
2400%

$21507
$100807
$100807
2%

10years £
3.5%
1870%

$20827
$9.9207%
$100807%
26%

10years £
35%
1.940%

§3.0387
$136007
$13.6007

2%

10years &
30%
1.750%

22487
$118407T
$136007T

26%

10years £
30%
1730%

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility,
adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility based
on publicly available information. Expected dividends are
based on historical dividends. Changes in the subjective input
assumptions could materially affect the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service condition. This
condition has not been taken into account in the grant date
fair value measurement of the services received. There
was no market conditions associated with the share option

grants.

HONEREEERAR —2-1/ - FER

AHRERELREEE  YRERQIMERE
BARBIE 2 EMEHRCTURE - BHKRE
BELREEE - IRATBBARR 22T

HOAREZAFELEEKX

E/48 .

E

BRERBRERBGAMRE - WARFETE
FEREs2AE (RRERY) BREEREZ
KRB REN R A TSRS o

5l o
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24 Income tax in the consolidated
statement of financial position

(a) Current tax recoverable/(payable)in the
consolidated statement of financial position

24 HREMBRRERZFAER

(a) HEHBMRIEZEYR "~ (BT 5
R BT -

represents:

2016 2015

—E—REF —E—FHEF

$'000 FIT $'000 7t

Provision for Hong Kong KEERE

Profits Tax for the year FEBRE (50,095) (44,3006)
Provisional Profits Tax paid SRS ZESRER 47,509 48,421
(2,586) 4,115

Taxation outside Hong Kong EB LM ERIE (6,017) (26,004)
(8,603) (21,889)

Summary BE

2016 2015

—E—REFE —E-hEF

$’000 F7T $'000 F 7t

Current tax recoverable PR HAS | 8,072 5,435
Current tax payable SRR E (16,675) (27,324)

(8,603) (21,889)
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24 Income tax in the consolidated
statement of financial position
(Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised:

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

24 HRE

(b) ERZELHELE (BE):

B AR R R 2 T8 8 (|

RESHBRAREAZEEHREE  (BF)

recognised in the consolidated statement of financial RFERZESEBWMT :
position and the movements during the year are as follows:
Depreciation Fair value
allowances adjustment on
inexcess Future Employee Withholding  tangible and Cash
of the related benefitof  retirement taxon intangible flow
depreciation tax losses benefits Provisions dividends assets hedges Total
AR
BHERAE  REBRZ ] BV REZ hg
ZHEERE FRHSG B BiE RERAR  ONERE wEHN it
§000Fx  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000FR
Deferred tax arising from: REUTREZEERS -
At 1st April, 2014 R-E-MEMA-A (70,598) 8711 1479 33,236 (8,286) (2,171) 316 (37,313)
Exchange adjustments Exf% 56 (3) - (499) 156 - (290)
(Charged)/credited to profitorloss  EH (H1B) /3t A (42891) (256) 753 8512 (2571) 430 - 1977
Charged to reserves REETR - (757) - - - (316) (1,073)
At 31st March, 2015 RZE-EE=fA=1-H (75,433) 8,452 1475 41,249 (10,857) (1,585) (36,699)
Deferred tax arising from: REUTEECRERS
At 1st April, 2015 RZE-REMA-A (75,433) 8,452 1475 41,249 (10,857) (1,585) (36,699)
Exchange adjustments ERfZ (128) (1) - (1,234) - (24) (1,398)
(Charged)/credited to profitorloss  AEH (H1B) /3t A (2,048) 65,752 658 6,318 941 401 - 72,022
Credited to reserves e - - 2047 - - - 43 2290
At 31st March, 2016 R-E-RE=A=1-8 (77,609) 74,189 4,380 46,333 (9,916) (1,205) 43 36,215

HONEREEERAR —2-1/ - FER
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24 Income tax in the consolidated
statement of financial position
(Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised:

24 HREMBMRRRZFAEH @)

(b) EEZEEFHELE (BE) . (&)

(Continued)
Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of e MR R REER
financial position
2016 2015
—E—REF —E-hHEF
$°000 F7T $'000 Tt
Net deferred tax assets REFEHBRTKERZ
recognised in the consolidated ERIEBEEEFHE
statement of financial position 101,290 32,678
Net deferred tax liabilities REBEHBRRERERZ
recognised in the consolidated EERIEEEFHE
statement of financial position (65,075) (69,377)
36,215 (36,699)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
1(qg), the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in
respect of tax losses and other temporary differences of
$279,800,000 (2015: $547,188,000) as it is not probable
that future taxable profits against which the losses and other
temporary differences can be utilised will be available in the
relevant tax jurisdictions and entities.

Included in unrecognised tax losses is an amount of
$10,896,000 (2015: $Nil) and $224,735,000 (2015:
$378,753,000) which can be carried forward up to five years
and twenty years respectively from the year in which the loss
originated. The remaining balance of $10,586,000 (2015:
$10,373,000) does not expire under current tax legislation.

Also included in unrecognised deferred tax assets for other
temporary differences is an amount of $33,583,000 (2015:
$158,062,000) which does not expire under current tax
legislation.
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(c) KRERZELFBEEE

RIBMIEE 1) B2 S5 ER » REBLEER
FERBEBERELMERZESR 279,800,000 7T
(ZZE—H % :547,188,000t) 2 ELERIEE
B REERERRARZERERERAAT
REEAARRERBENUEF TR 2BRAEE
REMERBESR -

AERBKEE S E 10,896,000 (=ZE—H
F£: Bx) K224,735000 (=& — 1 &F:
378,753,000t) S A SR EBEEEZFEER
HFEHEZSHEER 1% - H£10,586,0007T (=
ZT—H%:10,373,000t) EH T ERBETH
EE o

o REREERHEET 2 HMERERS

# 733,583,000t (=T —H £ : 158,062,000
) FERBRITHLER
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25 Capital, reserves and dividends

(a) Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes in

25 BAX - @ERKRE
(a) HEALE 2B E

equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s individual
components of equity between the beginning and the end of

the year are set out below:

FAEEGRESRBEEARBO 2 FNRFREHR 2
HIRENGERBEEB R - AR AEEMERAK
MOERFARFRZBEFBWE :

The Company AKAFE
Share-based
Share Capital General  compensation Hedging Retained Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve profits equity
RHER
A& EXi -RiE HERE it REEF ERAE
Note iz $000 F 70 $000 ¥ $000 ¥ $000 ¥ $000 ¥ $000 ¥ $000 F7t
Balance at 1st April, 2014 R-E-RERA-BLH 655,299 55,133 2,261 18,538 (1,600) 717,861 1,447,492
Changes in equity REEVERET .
for the year:
Transfer from capital BELREERE
reserve toretained profits ~ RE&EA 25(d)(i) (4,087) 4,087
Sharesissued onexerciseof ~ A{THEBRE
share options MBTRG 25(c)(ii 22395 (3188) 19,207
Equity settled share-based ~ RBBARER 2R S
transactions 11,124 11,124
Finaldividend approvedin ~~ #tEBRE-EE2
respect of the previous FHRE
year 25(b)i) (176,527) (176,527)
Interim dividend declaredin ~ ERAEE 2HHRE
respect of the current year 25(b)(i) (33,245) (33,245)
Total comprehensiveincome ~ AEE2FREEE
for the year 9 1,600 319,072 320,672
Balance at 31st March, 2015 H=E-1&
ZRZt-RER 677,694 51,046 2,261 26,474 831,248 1,588,723
ERNEREEERAT —$—8 —AFER 169
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25 Capital, reserves and dividends 25 B - RERRE @)
(Continued)
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) BEZAHKEG ZEE) (&)
(Continued)
The Company (Continued) QT (4E)
Share-based
Share Capital General  compensation Hedging Retained Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve profits equity
ki ER

k% A& —R G HRES HingaH RERH L
Note ffi $000 7% $000 7% $000 7 $000 7% $000 7% $000 7% $'000 7

Balance at 1st April, 2015 RCE-REMA-AER 677,694 51,046 2,261 26,474 - 831,248 1,588,723
Changes in equity REEELRET .
for the year:

Transfer from capital BEAREERE

reserve toretained profits A& & 25(d)i) - (4,087) - - - 4087
Sharesissued on exerciseof TR E

share options ESEEY 25(c)(ii) 56,028 - - (7,527) - - 48,501
Equity settled share-based ~ URBBRFER 2R

transactions - - - 12,393 - - 12,393

Final dividend approvedin ~~ #EBRE-EEZ
respect of the previous RERE

year 25(b)1i) - - - - - (221,119) (221,119)
Interim dividend declaredin ~ ERAEEZHERE

respect of the current year 25(b)1i) - - - - - (39,656) (39,656)
Total comprehensiveincome ~ AFE2FREEE

for the year 9 - - - - (217) 701,453 701,236
Balance at 31st March, 2016 R=Z-~E=R=+-BE&H 733,722 46,959 2,261 31,340 (217) 1,276,021 2,090,086
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25 Capital, reserves and dividends
(Continued)

(b) Dividends

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the

Company attributable to the year

25 BX - HERRE @

(b) K&
() ENFRIAREFBEAZEFERE

2016 2015
—E—REFE —E-FHEF
$'000 FIT $'000 F 7t
Interim dividend declared EERREIZFHERE
and paid of 3.8 cents per -BREBER3.81L
ordinary share (ZE—5F BREBER3.2MW)
(2015: 3.2 cents per ordinary share) 39,656 33,245
Final dividend proposed after RERBZERZRBRKRE
the end of the reporting period of - BREBR 26510
26.5 cents per ordinary share (Z=2—hF 8REBRK21.24)
(2015: 21.2 cents per ordinary share) 277,935 220,433
317,591 253,678

The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting
period is based on 1,048,811,500 ordinary shares (2015:
1,039,779,500 ordinary shares), being the total number
of issued shares at the date of approval of the financial
statements.

The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting
period has not been recognised as liabilities at the end of the
reporting period.

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the

REBREBERBERAKPREDRMEVTBERRE
ACRITRMEAE 1048811500 REEMR (=
T—HF :1,039,779,500 RZ @) 51& -

REHERBERZAHRERERALRERS
&fE-

(i) BRE-—BMBFE IRFARERS

Company attributable to the previous financial FFERRABBREFEAZRE
year, approved and paid during the year
2016 2015
—E—RE —E-FEF
$'000 F3T $000 7
Final dividend in respect of BRE—BMBEE  XRER
the previous financial year, HERIFHZRERE
approved and paid during the year, -BREBER21.210
of 21.2 cents per ordinary share (ZE—1F BREBER17.014)
(2015: 17.0 cents per ordinary share) 221,111 176,527

The final dividend approved and paid during the year is based
on the total number of issued shares at the date of Annual
General Meeting.

HONEREEERAR —2-1/ - FER

REAMERINFZRBREDERRBFARE
ERCRTROMETE -
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25 Capital, reserves and dividends
(Continued)

25 BEXR - #FERKRE @)

(c) Share capital (c) K&
(i) Issued share capital () BERITBRX
2016 2015
ZE—RE —Z-HE
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
B & &% BE ot |
‘000 FBE  $°000 F7T '000 &  $'000 F7t
Ordinary shares, issued EZ#TR
and fully paid: E#EZER
At 1st April HOA—H 1,039,516 677,694 1,033,976 655,299
Shares issued on exercise of AT R
share options 1T R 12 7,814 56,028 5,540 22,395
At 31st March W=BA=+—8 1,047,330 733,722 1,039,516 677,694

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to
one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary
shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual
assets.

(ii) Sharesissued under share option schemes

During the year, options were exercised to subscribe
for 7,814,000 ordinary shares in the Company. The net
consideration of $48,501,000 was credited to share
capital. $7,527,000 was transferred from the share-based
compensation reserve to the share capital account in
accordance with the policy set out in note 1(p)(iv).
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EBERZFEEATRIRFARERZKRE » LTHN
KRR ZAELHREBRROEZE—ZEREE -5
ERRZNBEENS  MESEREZRREASHE
A e

(i) REBRETARTZRG

FR TRBAQTEER7,814,000 K 2 B
REREITE - REFEHFEA 48,501,000 T AR
7K 2 7,527,000 7T E AR I B & 1(p)(iv) Fr &k 2 BL 3R
BROEBHEMEERARAE -
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25 Capital, reserves and dividends
(Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Capital reserve

As part of the restructuring of the Group in February 1994,
the Company disposed of a property to a former subsidiary
and consideration was received in the form of cash and
another property. A total gain, representing the difference
between the historical carrying value of the property
disposed of and the fair value of the consideration received,
resulted from such transaction.

The gain arising from this transaction was divided into
realised and unrealised portions in the ratio of the amount
of cash and the fair value of the property received (“the
property”). The unrealised gain was taken to capital reserve
and is realised on depreciation of the property. During the
year, $4,087,000 (2015: $4,087,000) was transferred from
capital reserve to retained profits.

(i) Surplus reserve

The surplus reserve has been set up by Shenzhen Vitasoy,
Vitasoja (Macau) Limitada, and Vitasoy Foshan in accordance
with regulations in the PRC and Macau respectively.

(iii) Other reserve

The other reserve aroused from the equity transaction with
non-controlling interest of Shenzhen Vitasoy in 2011.

(iv) Hedgingreserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of
the cumulative net change in the fair value of hedging
instruments used in cash flow hedges pending subsequent
recognition of the hedged cash flow in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for cash flow hedges in note 1(s).

(v) Exchangereserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong and the
foreign exchange differences arising from translation of
monetary items that in substance form part of the net
investment in subsidiaries outside Hong Kong. The reserve is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 1(u).

HONEREEERAR —2-1/ - FER

25 EX - #HERKRE @)

(d) #HEZEERFEZE
(i) BEXRHE

ERFEER-NANBNFE-_AETZEA 22—
7 ARFE—BAKNEARHE-B'YE - K
BURERE —BYEXN - B EELWRE
MArHENRcBELREAEECRAEAREZ
=8

ZEXZZWBRERRERME ([HWXE]) 2
REZEHTREBREARBRIAH - REFW
HEFAERREE  URTENEFERER -
RER 4,087,000 (ZF—FHF : 4087,000
7) BERREERERE G -

(i) BERfEE

BERREEERYIEMD - EM5 ORM) ARA
B R 8 L 4 4 13 0 B AR 5 P B R RPY 2 R IR

3 o

(i) EALfEME
A4 2 R
——EZRERD -
(iv) i

HHREREREEFHRREBMEE 1) TR
BEREWHARACETREBRAUARERE
RESHREHHZHATIAZ AR BERTFEE
Z BB -

YNHEBDHFEREER _-F

(v) ERGHE

EX#ECSREFTBUINMGE ZME QR 28
BRREECHAEAZERBRETEUIEE
ZHBARBERRREFRE —HN2ENERE
EECEREZRE - ZRERBBRIBMEE 1(u) FrEz
BRI ERER
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25 Capital, reserves and dividends
(Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(vi) Share-based compensation reserve

Share-based compensation reserve comprises the fair value
of the actual or estimated number of unexercised share
options granted to employees of the Group or the Company
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy adopted
for share-based payments in note 1(p)(iv).

(e) Distributability of reserves

At 31st March, 2016, the aggregate amounts of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company, as calculated under the provisions of Part 6 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, was $1,278,282,000
(2015: $833,509,000).

After the end of the reporting period the directors proposed
a final dividend of 26.5 cents per ordinary share (2015: 21.2
cents per ordinary share), amounting to $277,935,000 (2015:
$220,433,000) (note 25(b)(i)). This dividend has not been
recognised as liabilities at the end of reporting period.

(f) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products
and services commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practices, the Group monitors its
capital structure on the basis of a debt-to-adjusted capital
ratio. For this purpose, the Group defines debt as the total
of bank loans and obligations under finance leases, and
adjusted capital as all components of equity less unaccrued
proposed dividends.
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25 BEXR - #FERKRE @)

(d) tHEZMEERFE (&)

(vi) RODERBERE

ROERBEREBESRTLAEEAIEQFES
ZEBRIMFTERTEBREZAAE  ARB
IRAETIRIBMEE 1(p)(iv) FrE B AR RER 2
MR 2 ST BER MR

(e) AR IklERE

RZZB-XRF=ZA=1+—-0 BREFB(AAHK
PI) BOBMHEXFTE 2 A H DK T AR A RER
BAZREHRTER 1278282000t (= F—H
£ 1 833,509,000 7T) °

REHHEZ EXZRRBERAPREEREER
265 (ZZF—HF : SREBR21.241) - &
$%277,935,0007T (ZF—HF : 220,433,000
7t) (MEE25(b)()) - BREAR SN ER B I RER
REfE-

(f) BEXEE

FEEMTEREAR AR RRARELASERE
RHESENRD  ZRRERKBRBHERTR
HEBEBNKERESEREIBERNE  £H
ﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁﬂiiﬁ{%lﬁliﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂémﬁﬁkiﬁ
R -

rEEEBEREHHELARBETRIRER
UHEBRSRREOBTEMNTRSEE LR
EEXTRz2BERREENETE  LEREL
BREZSCHERRBHEHRE -

REZERNEP  FAEEUREHERABER LR
ERAEEHERRERB EE - BUHEHN  A5H
HEERATARTENRBMEHAERHE 2B
RAREXRREBRCMBEARBORFERITER
BRE -
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25 Capital, reserves and dividends
(Continued)

(f) Capital management (Continued)

During 2016, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged
from 2015, was to maintain the debt-to-adjusted capital ratio
below 30%. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
issue new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise new
debt financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

The debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at 31st March, 2016 and
2015 was as follows:

25 BX - HERRE @

(f) BEXEE (&)

REZZB-AF  FAEEZRBE_ZF-HFER
B8 SEEHKHBEERLRERFN30% U
T BREFIAFREABL R XAEERSHEQ
BRERN2REEHE  BITHRG - ORREE
X  BEFERBEIHEEEURERS -

R-B-AER-ZE-HAFE=ZHA=+—Bz&E
HEAREARLRNT .

2016 2015
—RE —E—FHEF
$'000 F7T $'000 ¥t
Current liabilities: REEE
Bank loans (note 20) RITER (M&EE20) 139,652 125,948
Obligations under finance leases MEREZE®
(note 21) (FFzE21) 1,135 1,043
140,787 126,991
Non-current liabilities: FREBEE -
Bank loans (note 20) SRITER (MEE20) 207,341 27,714
Obligations under finance leases MEREZER
(note 21) (FEEE21) 2,134 3,238
209,475 30,952
Total debt AfE8E 350,262 157,943
Total equity XA 2,411,863 2,124,672
Less: Proposed dividends (note 25(b)(i)) & : BRI E (s 25(b)(i)) (277,935) (220,433)
Adjusted capital ERBEX 2,133,928 1,904,239
Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio AEHERAEEXRILFE 16% 8%

Certain of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to
fulfilment of covenants which include maintaining the
Group’s debt-to-adjusted capital ratio below a certain
amount and maintaining the Group’s net worth ratio above a
certain amount. Except for the above, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed
capital requirements.

HONEREEERAR —2-1/ - FER

FEBETRITEEAFSRR  BESAEKK
SE-REHEAREAR L REFTN —EHEU
TREFEELREFR—EBMENUL - BRIE
Frafish - A0 8 K EAE A M B 2 R #E 5B A E 7 o
BHEMZERRE

i



Notes to the Financial Statements

BRI AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBHAN - LUBREEE)

26 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.
The Group’s exposures to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a) Creditrisk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables. Management has a credit policy in
place and the exposure to this credit risk is monitored on an
ongoing basis.

The credit terms given to the customers vary and are
generally based on the financial strength of the individual
customer. In order to effectively manage the credit risks
associated with customers, credit evaluations of customers
are performed periodically. Trade receivables are generally
due within one to three months from the date of billing.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer. At the end
of reporting period, 17.7% (2015: 17.6%) and 36.7% (2015:
43.6%) of the total trade and other receivables was due from
the Group's largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which would
expose the Group to credit risk.

The Group’s cash and bank deposits are placed with financial
institutions with sound credit ratings, and the management
consider the Group’s exposure to credit risk is low.

The Group’s exposure to the credit risk and its policies for
managing such risk were unchanged from the year ended
31st March, 2015. Further quantitative disclosures in
respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
trade and other receivables are set out in note 16.

(b) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management for daily
operation, including placing short term cash deposits and
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands, subject
to approval by the parent company’s board when the
borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of authority.
Cash surplus over operating needs are closely monitored
and managed by the Group’s central cash and treasury
management system. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and long term. The Group’s
exposures to the liquidity risk and its policies for managing
such risk were unchanged from the year ended 31st March,
2015.
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26 BIEREERERTIAEZA
RE
REFBET—REEZBEGIEEEE  RmpES -

MREE W ERE - $%IE%ZE@HW&$%
BT RA B REREEBREEMNRBMOT -

(@) EEEE

AEBZEERRTIEREERERR R A EUW
R -EHEEECERR MEBZEEZRAR
BEZRIEE -
AEE-REEBRNEFZHMBRENGTFIEZ
=EH - - AENMEEEBEFZEERR &
SEEEHFEEFZGEEER - BUWERR—K
REBEBEAERT—Z=FEAREHPH - —KMs5» &
EETEREFNEGEFR -
AEEEYUZEERRTIESREF Z2EBER
EE . ANEHRR  AEERAFFREAFFZ
RADBMEEWBRFA R BN RBEEZ 17.7%
(ZE—HF :17.6%) R36.T%(=ZF—HEF :
43.6%) °

AEEEKREERKZ

gﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁ%%
$$EZE$&$ TERDERRARFEER

> omE SERRRAENEY 2 EERA
BARIE -

HEZ-_B-HEZA=+-ALEEE £
BEYCERRRASEENER > REES
B - 7 B B B R EL 7B K T

ke
A2EERBZE-—STEBRBERNME 16 -

(b) BB LR

AEEANCEER LA B E o
B AEFRERRSERREANERUREE
HRSER BMESBBETALEM K
T AEESARESRIE - BAEENE
ReRGAAENTRE SR REEEE
ERREE  AREOHEETHESRDES
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26 Financial risk management and

fair values of financial instruments

(Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group'’s financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on
rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the

earliest date the Group can be required to pay:

26 EEREERESMIECZA

B @)

(b) mEBEZEE &)

TREIFAGEEREHRAZEHEBZRTEN
HR - WOBRBENRTRBRESRE (BEFERS
WX FNBFZERERABTZANRFEZ

ME) UARAEEAEERER

2T

RIEZ&F B

2016
—E—REF
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
SHRMBEARLTH
More than More than
Within  1yearbut 2yearsbut
1vyearor less than less than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5years Total amount
—FRK —F& MEE
BEX EmER BERFER et RE{E
$°000Ft $'000FwT $'000FFT $000Fk $'000FTT
Trade and other payables BRI R EA
(excluding receipt in EAR (FBHE
advance) FEUWFRIE) 1,035,288 - - 1,035,288 1,035,288
Bank loans RITEXR 143,537 108,940 102,118 354,595 346,993
Obligations under finance ~ BWEHEE
leases Z &% 1,342 1,341 933 3,616 3,269
1,180,167 110,281 103,051 1,393,499 1,385,550
2015
—E—AF
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
EHRTHRBAESRE
More than  More than
Within 1lyearbut 2yearsbut
1vyearor less than less than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years Total amount
—FRR —F# MER
RER EWER BEER st IREE
$'000 ¥t $000F;t $000Fs;x $000Fst $000FT
Trade and other payables AR R HAL
(excluding receipt in BN (FEE
advance) FE UL FRIE) 957,594 - - 957,594 957,594
Bank loans RITER 128,171 21,414 7,325 156,910 153,662
Obligations under finance  BEHEE
leases ZE# 1,329 1,329 2,252 4,910 4,281
1,087,094 22,743 9,577 1,119,414 1,115,537
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26 Financial risk management and 26 BiIEREEREMIAZA
fair values of financial instruments AE @
(Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) HEELEL (&)
2016 2015
—Z-RE¥ —E-1%
Contractual undiscounted cash Contractual undiscounted cash
(outflow)/inflow (outflow)/inflow
AHWEFREAS (FH) /FA BNRFTRES (RE) /RA
More than More than
Within 1year but Within 1 year but
1yearor less than 1yearor less than
on demand 2years Total  ondemand 2 years Total
—FRE ~ERE —Ef
BEX EFER Mt REX EMER @t

$000FT  $000FT  $000FT  $000Fx  $000F7x  $000F7

Derivatives settled gross: ERETEIASE:
Forward foreign exchange BHMESK

contracts (note 26(d)(ii)) (BiFEE 26(d)(ii)
- Outflow - i (29,939) (5,773) (35,712) - - -
- Inflow -RA 27,711 5,329 33,040 - - -
(c) Interest rate risk (c) FIEE
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from interest- AEEZANEZARTIEREMEFBE - AEEHE
bearing borrowings. The Group monitors the level of its fixed RHEEREEEEKRE - AEEHEEEBER
rate and variable rate borrowings. The Group’s interest rate ZRAREREHRNR T ()HE -
profile as monitored by management is set out in (i) below.
(i) Interest rate profile (i) F=EHER
The following table details the interest rate profile of the TRFIAEERERENHMERFEZREF
Group’s interest-bearing borrowings at the end of the 15 :
reporting period:
2016 2015
—E—REF —E-HF
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate Amount rate Amount
ERfE &% BERRA= x|
%  $°000FT %  $'000 Fx
Fixed rate borrowings: EERE
Obligations under finance MEHEE2E%K
leases 7.50 3,269 7.50 4,281
Bank loans RITER 2.06 146,993 2.41 144,357
150,262 148,638
Variable rate borrowings: FEEE
Bank loans BITER 1.43 200,000 2.19 9,305
Total borrowings BB 350,262 157,943
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26 Financial risk management and
fair values of financial instruments
(Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis

At 31st March, 2016, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would have decreased/increased
the Group’s profit after taxation and retained profits by
approximately $1,670,000 (2015: $61,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit after taxation and retained
profits in respect of the exposure to cash flow interest rate
risk arising from floating rate instruments held by the Group
at the end of the reporting period. The impact on the Group’s
profit after taxation and retained profits is estimated as an
annualised impact on interest expense of such a change in
interest rates. Management assumed that certain interest-
bearing borrowings maturing during the next reporting
period will be rolled over upon the maturing for daily
operation purposes.

The Group does not account for any fixed rate borrowings at
fair value through profit or loss, and the Group does not use
derivative financial instruments to hedge its debt obligation.
The fixed rate instruments of the Group are insensitive to
any change in market interest rate. A change in interest rate
at the end of the reporting period would not affect profit or
loss.

The analysis has been performed on the same basis for the
year ended 31st March, 2015.

HONEREEERAR —2-1/ - FER

26 BEREEREMIAZA
RE @

(c) FIEmpBE (&)

(i) SRBIEDHT

REB—AREZA=+—80 G RRLEELA
TH—EREEY  EAEHATEBHRERET
BoBERT  AEERBEABINRRBERG
Hitm4, #in#% 1,670,000 (ZE—HE :
61,000 7%) °

LR SHBERAEERERBFHZFE
NRIASIHASERGREREN REARFTE
EXREERBEBFNRREEN BT - &
FERBEBRNRREBHNAZHE  DRA=E
SHUNEIHFELLEMLT EEERR
RT—ERSHBIAH ETHEEERIBR
HEGBUEREEEZA -

FEEVELEIMNESCERQIABTELTA
Bi BAKETECRATESRMTIARMER
BELE AEEZELIAHETATEFEEE
WA - BHRA2FREBI AL EER

BE_F-AF=-A=T-RLEFEEZINIE
AR EEET -
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26 Financial risk management and
fair values of financial instruments
(Continued)

(d) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales, purchases and borrowings which give rise to
receivables, payables, cash balances and obligations under
finance leases that are denominated in a foreign currency,
i.e. a currency other than the functional currency of the
operations to which the transactions relate. The currencies
giving rise to this risk are primarily United States dollars
(“USD”), Australian dollars (“AUD”), Singapore dollars (“SGD”)
and Renminbi (“RMB”).

For group entities whose functional currency is Hong Kong
dollars (“HKD”), all sales and purchases are denominated
in either HKD or USD, except for certain transactions
with group entities and purchases that are denominated
in AUD, SGD and RMB. Given the HKD is pegged to the
USD, management does not expect that there will be
any significant currency risk associated with such USD
denominated transactions.

For group entities whose functional currency is a currency
other than HKD, except for certain sales and transactions
with group entities and certain borrowings from group
entities that are denominated in HKD, most of the other
transactions are denominated in their functional currencies.

The Group's policies for managing such risk were unchanged
from the year ended 31st March, 2015. During the year
ended 31st March, 2016, the Group uses bank balances to
hedge its currency risk arising from the purchase of raw
materials that are denominated in foreign currency and
classifies these as cash flow hedges as set out in note 17(a).

The Group has also uses forward exchange contracts to
manage its currency risks.

Changes in the fair value of forward exchange contracts
that economically hedge monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or
loss. The net fair value of forward exchange contracts used
by the Group as economic hedges of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at 31st March,
2016 was liabilities of $2,190,000 (2015: $Nil), recognised
as derivative financial instruments.

180

26 BEREEREMIAZA
RE @

(d) ERERE

AEEEHcENERTERBREERMEEM
EEZERRAR BAR RELKREREHRSE 2
E% > ZEFRENERMNE (AXZHFEK 2
REEBLUN2ER) SHE - EXERABARCER
FERXR([Ex]) B ([Bx]) K
(ME]) RAR® ([AR¥]) -

BUEERREY ([BE]) 2AKESEEEM
F RETEHASESERETZREREEU
B RARARBEN  REEDEREBE
HETEE - ARBEEITHE  EEERY
EE&%Z%H%EE*EZ?%E%E@E?{E%EL

BRUEREBRBE UM ER 2 AREEERM
T RETHEREAEEIERET ZIEN
REFASEEER s TREZBEHEN &
e RBORBEATHREEWHE -

HEBZ-Z-—A=A=+—HBLEEE X&
BEEEERARCHRYENE REE-Z
—RNEZA=+—HLEEFE XEEAALRTE
FHHPHBEUNETHEZEMBRFAEEZE
ﬁmm W 17() TS EARESREY

FEETANAERMESHERLE R -

AEKEBEHHDUIIETHEZEREERERBZE
HMESHNZAARBEESHINERZABR - R-F
—RE=ZA=1+—HB  XEEFAEUIIMNETE
REMEEREBZREHP 2 EHMNEEGHNZ
FAARER2,190000T (ZE—HF : Ex) »
NEAATESMIACERS -
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26 Financial risk management and
fair values of financial instruments
(Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

In respect of other trade receivables and payables
denominated in foreign currencies, the company ensures
that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level, by buying
or selling foreign currencies at spot rates where necessary to
address short-term imbalances.

(i)
The following table details the Group’s significant exposure
at the end of the reporting period to currency risk arising
from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the entity to
which they relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts
of the exposure are shown in HKD, translated using the
spot rates at the year end date. Differences resulting from
the translation of the financial statements of subsidiaries
outside Hong Kong into the Group’s presentation currency,
the exposure arising from the borrowings from group
entities that in substance form part of the net investment in
subsidiaries and the bank balances that are designated as a
hedge of the Group’s foreign currency risk of highly probable
forecast transactions or committed future transactions are
excluded.

Exposure to currency risk

26 BIEREERERTAEZA
B @)

(d) E¥EE (&)

BMUNES B SR ER R EN RS -

AARAGEEER RN ERSEINE  UEE

SEHD KSR - RER R B D 4 S I Ak

() AZTEERE

T%?ﬂ$$l?&ﬁﬁﬁ#uﬁﬁﬁ?2%m

BN cERHENCRALEEIRBMELEZE
REBER - FRARBEAE 2B EFR 2
HERREDBEEZI 2R - REFBLUIM
ENEARZHMBRERAEEE 2 EEME
AZEH REAKEERZEE (BEBEAR
MEARCREFE 2 —B0) 2/ - URIE
EREHPREERRRUTEETZIRBHE &
RETZRRRG ZMERBZBTEFLETE
BHEA -

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in HKD)

SERRER (EKHT)

2016
A%

2015
—E-1F

usp
&
$000 7

SGD
Lo
$000F 7

HKD
i

$000F 7T

56D
#7
$000 7

HKD
i
$000 7

RMB
ARH
$000 7t

AUD
A%
$000 7

RMB
AER
$000F 72

AUD
an
$000F 72

usD
£33
$000 7

BERBAHR
B4/ (&
"ﬂiﬁlﬁ
EYER R AR
ERERREAGERT

Cash and bank deposits 972

Amount due from/(to)
group companies

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other payables

MELLE
347,195 4481
619

(9,480) (75)

15,535

(223423)
8

57,050 6 1,384 35579 17,208 6

(799)
3,981

(4874)
10
(10

51,794 6,720 47,395 20,500 6,611

(2,346) (946) (20,863) (710) (496)

CRIEERAEEL
ERARAR

Gross exposure arising from

recognised assets and liabilities 338,687 5,025
RSB RNESNE

ahEELE

Notional amount of forward exchange
contracts used as economic hedges

(207,880)

106,498 5,780 21916 3182 30,705 36998 6,121

(35712)

BEREEREMELL
FERAR

Net exposure arising from

recognised assets and liabilities 338,687 5,025

(207,880)

106,498 (29,932) 21916 3182 30,705 36998 6,121
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181



Notes to the Financial Statements

BRI AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBHAN - LUBREEE)

26 Financial risk management and
fair values of financial instruments
(Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the
Group’s profit after taxation and retained profits that would
arise if foreign exchange rates to which the Group entities
have significant exposure at the end of the reporting period
had changed at that date, assuming all other risk variables

BEEREEREMIAZA
RE @

26

(d) BHEERE (%)
(i) SBBMEDH

TRIIMREFBAFARESERAHEAARZ
EXHASHTRERAKEBRRRBENRRE
EN KR (BRAEAMEARZEERFT
) -BUMS NERBTRIT2HEER
TEEXRAAAMERERZ2EASBNZINE

remained constant. In this respect, it is assumed that the e -
pegged rate between the HKD and the USD would be
materially unaffected by any changes in movement in value
of the USD against other currencies.
2016 2015
—E—-RE —E—I0F
Increase/ Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit (decrease) in profit
in foreign after taxation inforeign  after taxation
exchange  andretained exchange  andretained
rates profits rates profits
FRIEET RRELEEF
EE BREEaH & % RREER
L EF# i 4 R
(FE%) (%) () ()
$'000 7T $'000 F T
usD Epo 5% (95) 5% (134)
(5)% 95 (5)% 134
SGD T 5% 210 5% 133
(5)% (210) (5)% (133)
HKD B 5% (5,839) 5% 1,215
(5)% 5,839 (5)% (1,215)
RMB AR 5% 4,796 5% 1,545
(5)% (4,796) (5)% (1,545)
AUD BT 5% 241 5% 256
(5)% (241) (5)% (256)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects on
each of the Group entities’ profit after taxation measured in
the respective functional currencies, translated into HKD at
the exchange rate ruling at the end of the reporting period
for presentation purposes.
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26 Financial risk management and
fair values of financial instruments
(Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign
exchange rates had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting
period, including inter-company payables and receivables
within the Group which are denominated in a currency other
than the functional currencies of the lender or the borrower.
The analysis excludes differences that would result from
the translation of the financial statements of subsidiaries
outside Hong Kong into the Group’s presentation currency,
the exposure arising from the borrowings from group
entities that in substance form part of the net investment in
subsidiaries and the bank balances that are designated as a
hedge of the Group’s foreign currency risk of highly probable
forecast transactions or committed future transactions. The
analysis has been performed on the same basis for the year
ended 31st March, 2015.

HONEREEERAR —2-1/ - FER

26 BEREEREMIAZA
RE @

(d) BE#/mE (&)

(i) SBEDH (&)

BRESMIBRERSHEANRENFELE
EREHRAFACSASERYIMERR 2EEH
THITE BEFAKEQARBUERATERA

ZNREE WS e EWTHE 2 BN R R B -
DM A BERREFBUINEEMNE QR 2P
BRAFEEZ2IERMELENEZE - KFER
EHMEARFEHER (REEERDAREH
BRARNFEREN M) MEEWERE - AR
EEREHHIEAEERBRILETZREHE
AHETZRRR G 2 MERME ZBITEFTE
EREE BE_Z-HF=A=1+—-HLEE
Z AT IRBAARE R T -
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26 Financial risk management and
fair values of financial instruments
(Continued)

(e) Fair value measurement

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
consolidated financial instruments measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into
the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13,
Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference to
the observability and significance of the inputs used in the
valuation technique as follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level
1inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement
date.

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data
are not available.

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs.

The fair value of forward exchange contracts is measured
using Level 2 inputs. The fair value is determined by
discounting the contractual forward price and deducting
the current spot rate. The discount rate used is derived from
the relevant government yield curve as at the end of the
reporting period plus an adequate constant credit spread.

(ii) Fair values of financial instruments carried at
other than fair value

All other financial instruments of the Group carried at costs
or amortised costs are not materially different from their fair
values as at 31st March, 2016 and 2015.
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26 BEREEREMIAZA
RE @

TIEFEE

TREJIEHRERBFEZAEEFRSERMT
AQnfE Y2 BER(EAMBREED) £13
RIAAEHEIFFREZ=ZRDIABEE - &
DMRBEFEDSE2ERNESEM T EEREMN
RBETEENREENEERE -

5
\

- B-RGEE:EERAE-RWABRE (AR
ARAREEERRERNERT S ZRER
BEE) SHEZARE-

- BORMGE: ERAE-REABE (BREE
EIF-RzUBEERARE) B KREH
ERTUEHEGARBITEZQRE - T
BEER \BBRAETSRB B ARE -

- BERME FRERTUERRARE

B2ARE-

BEMIMESNZDARETIRAE R ABIE
B WEBMBRAWEMERRIRREGNHE
REE - FRAZHRRERERA 2 HEBN
g%u&%%mﬁ  EMEHzEEREERER

(i) AHFRAARBIIRZEMTAZARE

N-BE-RER-ZE-—FHE=H=+—RH &&
EAEEMIRA AR BEEAART RS T AN
HARBYEEARER -
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27 Commitments 27 EIfE
(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31st March, 2016 (a) R=F—ARF=H =t—H8 REBERR
not provided for in the financial statements were as PREZRFTERAEFROT
follows:
2016 2015
—A%®  —®-Ef
$'000 F7¢ $000 ¥t
Contracted for [EHE) 113,622 161,442
Authorised but not contracted for EHUEERETH 633,957 877,023
747,579 1,038,465

As at 31st March, 2016, the Group is committed to certain R-ZZE—ARF=A=+—H0 FEEBETETR
contracts for the acquisition and construction of plant and BREEZRE  HEREFZEH -
machinery and buildings.

(b) At 31st March, 2016, the total future minimum lease (b) R=ZB—RE=ZA=+—-0  REFTTHER

payments under non-cancellable operating leases are ZREHEEHAEG2RERAENRETE
payable as follows: wmE
2016 2015
—E—RE —ZE-HEF
Factory Factory
machinery machinery
and and
Properties equipment Properties equipment
T atsss TRses
MmE Bk iE LYES &S
$'000 F7T $'000 7T $'000 ¥t $'000 F It
Within one year —FR 89,571 4,030 68,453 3,624
After one year but within —F#ERFRN
five years 109,996 4,045 39,151 3,563
After five years "EE 24,626 - 23,389 -
224,193 8,075 130,993 7,187

The Group leases a number of properties and items of AEERBLLHEEHAZSEYERZE TR

factory machinery and equipment under operating leases. BEkEE ZEHEVS AP —FE2AFXEB
The leases run for an initial period of one to six years, with an EERERAREEN  ENFERRETESN
option to renew each lease upon expiry when all terms are BIE °

renegotiated.

Some of the leases of the Group include contingent rentals AEERCHEET T RZEBR N EBUAREER
determinable at certain fixed rates on the turnover of the Bee¥HErvETEELREEZ2SLRES -
relevant concessions in periods in which the leases relate to.
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28 Material related party transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered
into the following material related party transactions.

(a)
(i)

(iii)

186

Transactions with related parties

The products of the Group are distributed in Australia
by a related party (non-controlling interests of the
Company’s subsidiary) and a management fee is
charged for the provision of services. The management
fee is calculated based on a pre-determined percentage
of the gross sales of products distributed by the related
party. Total management fees charged by the related
party for the year amounted to $21,681,000 (2015:
$24,577,000). The amount due to the related party as
at 31st March, 2016 amounted to $5,806,000 (2015:
$5,702,000).

On 28th June, 2013, the Group entered into a
distribution agreement with a related party (non-
controlling interests of the Company’s subsidiaries) in
Australia pursuant to which the related party agreed
to supply to the Group the dairy and juice beverage
products for distribution in Hong Kong and Macau, and
to grant to the Group an exclusive right to distribute the
products in Hong Kong and Macau. The unit price of the
dairy and juice beverage products was pre-determined
in an agreement entered into between the Group and
the related party, and would be revised by reference to
the prevailing market price of same products sold by
a related party to other distributors. Total purchases
from the related party amounted to $7,497,000 (2015:
$10,510,000). The amount due to the related party as
at 31st March, 2016 amounted to $782,000 (2015:
$738,000).

On 29th July, 2013, the Group entered into a
distribution agreement with a related party (non-
controlling interests of the Company’s subsidiaries)
in New Zealand pursuant to which the related party
agreed to distribute the products of the Group in New
Zealand. A management fee is charged for the provision
of services. The management fee is calculated based
on a pre-determined percentage of the gross sales
of products distributed by the related party. Total
management fee charged by the related party for the
year amounted to $5,063,000 (2015: $5,372,000). The
amount due to the related party as at 31st March, 2016
amounted to $1,290,000 (2015: $1,294,000).

28 ERBEALIRE

BRUBBREZARBEZRGRER)  FEEC
RIMUTERBAEALRS °

(a) BHEEALZXE

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

AEBZERB— %Eﬁ@ki(ﬂ:@?ﬁﬁ%
RAZHERER) REMNDHE  ZALH
REHBKEUNEERER - mﬁ%ﬁ#&ﬁ%ﬁ
EXZRAEALT T HERAHERZESD
TE - FR ;zsa;zxiwmzm;ﬁmA
321,681,000t (=ZZE—HF : 24,577,000
)  RZE—ARFE=ZA=Z1+—HERFFZ
BEALZHRESS5806000T (ZB—H
£ 15,702,000 7T) °

RZEB—Z=FXAZ+N\B xEEHE—
BHREALT (A2TMHBAT ZHFERE
=) RBMNET L —EH D HiHE - Bt %68
EATRERASEHEARRRETRA
REBREMSE  IRFEAEEREER
BASHERZERE ARRRETHS
ZBENECE—HAEEEZEEA L
NRBEPELAEE YEESEHR—F
BEATREMSHEHEERERZEA
TEELHAE NZBEATIRBEZERL
=l 7,497,000 T (ZF—H%F 10,510,000

) c RZEBE—ARE=Z=A=+—HENZH
BALTZE IE%78200075(:§—£$:
738,000 7T) °

R-ZF—Z=FtA=-+hB FTEFE-—-F
FAEMNBEAL (RQTAMBATZFE
RAER) ST —EHD HHE - Bt ZEE
ATRERFAMOEAEBZER - %5
BEAIHREHBREUNEERER EE2EH
REAEECZBEA L HERAHER
ZEALEE - REAFE  ZBEALTKRER
ZEHEBHAAEH5063000T (ZBE—HF:
5,372,000t) - R=ZEBE—XRF=A=+—
HENFZBEEAT Z2FHEAS 1,290,000 T
(ZZ—FH% : 1,294,000 7T) °
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28 Material related party transactions
(Continued)

(a) Transactions with related parties(Continued)

The related party transactions in respect of (i) and (ii) above
constitute continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The disclosures required
by Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are provided in section
“Connected Transactions” of the Reports of the Directors.

The related party transactions in respect of (iii) above
constitute continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. However they are exempt
from the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules as they are below the de minimis threshold
under Rule 14A.76(1).

(b) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s Directors as
disclosed in note 7 and certain of the highest paid employees
as disclosed in note 8, is as follows:

28 EXRBEEALIRS @)

(a) BHEFEANLZXE (#)

LHRBBOR()2BAEALXZERX LTRA
FUAEMREZKEBERS - LmRASE
VBAEZHBERATHRNESERE(HERS
—f .

EHRBRAGIZEEATIRZER LTHRAE
VAEFRAEZFEBERS - R - ARZF
RZERE 14A76(1) R EFIE - BUER R
BFETRAIZUVUAZZHERE -

(b) BBREZEASZHE

FEEBRREBEAB CME (BEME7HHE
BAARRAEEXN 2RBUARKESiKERE
THREFREEXNZHE) @F :

2016 2015

—B-RE —B-AHF

$'000 F7T $000 3t

Short-term employee benefits EHEERER 37,685 38,735
Post-employment benefits B2 ER 1,147 1,171
Equity compensation benefits BAFEERF 10,806 11,000
49,638 50,906

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 5(b)).
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29 Company-level statement of financial

29 AT B H B BT I AR R 3R

position
2016 2015
—E—REF —E—-HF
Note fi{z¥ $000F5E $000F5E $000Fmw $000FT
Non-current assets ERENFE
Property, plant and equipment  #1%¥ - B E R & E
- Investment properties -REWME 5,140 5,666
- Other property, plant -HihE - BE
and equipment R 447,797 454,611
452,937 460,277
Interest in subsidiaries RHB AR 2 ERE 1,124,984 654,108
Deposits for the acquisitionof BEWE - BMERRE
property, plant and equipment Zi & 309 527
1,578,230 1,114,912
Current assets mENEE
Inventories FE 173,160 195,119
Trade and other receivables JE U BR = B L th FE UK 394,882 408,411
Current tax recoverable FEWR AR 18 - 3,793
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUR I B A T RIE 720,923 457,733
Cash and bank deposits HERBITEX 66,729 29,010
1,355,694 1,094,066
Current liabilities mENAE
Trade and other payables BRI R M EAR 407,586 412,029
Bank loans MITER 95,000 96,000
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEASHT B D BIFRIE 64,896 50,941
Current tax payable PR ERE 2,958 -
570,440 558,970
Net current assets BREEE 785,254 535,096
Total assets less current HEERTHAR
liabilities 2,363,484 1,650,008
Non-current liabilities FRBAR
Bank loans RITER 200,000 -
Employee retirement EEENREFNEE
benefit liabilities 23,443 8,060
Deferred tax liabilities EEFEEE 49,955 53,225
273,398 61,285
NET ASSETS PEE 2,090,086 1,588,723
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BER s
Share capital &N 25(a) 733,722 677,694
Reserves 18 1,356,364 911,029
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 2,090,086 1,588,723

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors

on 23rd June, 2016.

Winston Yau-lai LO
ExRiE

Director

EFE
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e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHBI - LUBKFHE)

30 Non-adjusting events after the
reporting period

(a) Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the
Directors proposed a final dividend. Further details are
disclosed in note 25(b).

(b) The disposal of certain assets and liabilities of Vitasoy
USA Inc. as set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 24th March, 2016 was completed on 9th May,
2016. Further details are disclosed in note 18.

31 Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued
but not yet effective for the year
ended 31st March, 2016

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a few amendments and new standards
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31st March,
2016 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

Effective for

accounting periods
beginning on or after

Annual improvements to 1st January, 2016

HKFRSs 2012-2014 cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28, Sale or contribution
of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture

1st January, 2016

Amendments to HKFRS 11,
Accounting for acquisitions of
interests in joint operations

Amendments to HKAS 1,
Disclosare imitative

Amendments to HKAS 16 and
HKAS 38, Clarification of
acceptable methods of depreciation
and amortisation

HKFRS 15, Revenue from
contracts with customers

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

1st January, 2016

1st January, 2016

1st January, 2016

1st January, 2018
1st January, 2018

HKFRS 16, Leases 1st January, 2019

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments is expected to be in the
period of initial application. The Group is therefore unable to
disclose the impact that adopting the amendments and new
standards will have on its financial position and the results of
operations when such amendments are adopted.

HONEREEERAR —2-1/ - FER

30 BAEHARCERBRBREE

(a) EEREHRREBRERPRE - E—F
FHERAMIEE 25(b) PIRE -

(b) HEVitasoyUSAInc.2 ETEERERE (W
EATR=-ZBE—ARNEZA=+TBE 2T
#H)ER-BE—X<EFANATHK - E—%
HIERHE 18P E -

31 EEMEMAREEZE=Z—
E=ZA=t+-HLEFEERZ
1£5] - FE] ER KRB RS
R B

BEAMBERRTIH B EHSHASCHE

HEBE-_E—XNE=B=1t—-HLEEMKXE

B NEEAMBEBRREACEEBTIRFTE

B EEFETHTREEREERABZIEITRE

E o

RT3 A8
Z % B
ZEHRER

—E-CHEE_T-NF ZB-RF
BHERBYBEHREER —A—H
ZEENGE

(BBMBH/REER) 5 1057 —B-ARF
R(EBMBHRELER) —A—H
E285 [ REERABELF
NEETEZFEES Ei
RA | Z1EF]

(BRMBMEEA) 115 At
[KIEE & ¥ —A—H
ZETTEE | 285

(ERBEEER) % 157 —E-RF
[ #FE a1 & ZAEFT —A—H

(BREREA) % 165 —EB-ARF
R (EBEHERA) F 385K —A—H
[HTER 5 12 5%

2 EE ] 2 1BR]

(BRBUBREER) 5B 1555 —E-N\F
[BEFEFHUA ] —A—H

(BRAMBHREEA) LR —EB-N\F
[£@TA] —A—H

(BEMBRELEA) F 165 —E-hEF
[#HE] —A—H
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Five Year Summary

AFYHRE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BABHEETE)

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
—F-x% -F-IF  -B-WmF —F-=F  -%-=F
$'000F 7T $'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t $'000 F 1t $'000 F 7t
(Restated) (Restated)
(E351) 27)
Results ¥R
Revenue WA 5,551,898 5,051,827 4,493,885 4,051,248 3,716,539
Profit from operations e RF 603,352 529,264 469,669 444,160 425,336
Finance costs AE R A (4,044) (5,655) (13,068) (21,102) (17,243)
Profit before taxation BRBL AR A 599,308 523,609 456,601 423,058 408,093
Income tax gL (34,064) (114,888) (115,845) (88,742) (85,691)
Profit for the year REERF 565,244 408,721 340,756 334,316 322,402
Attributable to: THALERS :
- Equity shareholders of - KOEIRRE
the Company BEA 530,616 372,079 306,693 301,104 281,003
- Non-controlling interests - FERES 34,628 36,642 34,063 33,212 41,399
Profit for the year REERF 565,244 408,721 340,756 334,316 322,402
Assets and liabilities BERAR
Property, plant and equipment ¥ - BERRE 2,186,972 1,853,517 1,566,688 1,533,116 1,567,010
Other non-current assets HibFERBEE 144,082 77,016 94,304 67,558 69,941
Net current assets FREEE 383,392 304,702 443,197 384,096 191,275
Total assets less current liabilities AEERARBDEE 2,714,446 2,235,235 2,104,189 1,984,770 1,828,226
Non-current liabilities FREBAE (302,583) (110,563) (146,877) (166,925) (161,730)
NET ASSETS BEE 2,411,863 2,124,672 1,957,312 1,817,845 1,666,496
Capital and reserves BER A
Share capital (e 733,722 677,694 655,299 256,746 255,437
Reserves G 1,466,013 1,241,391 1,094,362 1,366,129 1,227,074
Total equity attributable to ERERRE
equity shareholders of BEAERL
the Company Emas 2,199,735 1,919,085 1,749,661 1,622,875 1,482,511
Non-controlling interests FERER 212,128 205,587 207,651 194,970 183,985
TOTALEQUITY g3 0 2,411,863 2,124,672 1,957,312 1,817,845 1,666,496
Earnings per share BREF
- Basic -ER 50.9centsfll | 35.9centsfll  29.8centsfli  29.4centsfli  27.5centsl
- Diluted -85 50.4centsfll | 35.5centsfll  29.4centsfll  29.1centsfll  27.3cents Al

Note: In order to comply with Revised Hong Kong Accounting
Standard 19, Employee benefits, that is effective for
accounting period beginning on 1st January 2013, the Group
adopted new accounting policies for defined benefit plans.
Figures for the years FY2011/2012 and FY2012/2013 have

been adjusted.
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